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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri Suresh Kumar, IAS- Retd.
Chairman and Nominee of JKSPDC Limited
DIN: 06440021
Shri Suresh Kumar, is a retired IAS officer (JK 1986) and has a distinguished academic background.
He has been awarded Silver Medal for his Contribution in an Outstanding Measure towards Creating
Atmosphere for Elections and Successful Conduct in the year 1996 & awarded Chief Ministers Gold

Medal for Honesty / Integrity and Meritorious Public Service in the year 2011.

Shri Suresh Kumar joined the Board of CVPPL on 22nd November, 2019.

Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS
Director-Nominee of JKSPDC Limited
DIN: 06516512

Shri H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS, is an Indian Administrative Services Officer of 1995 batch. Shri. Prasad is

a graduate in Commerce Stream and further completed Master of Business Administration from Indian
Institute of Management, Bangalore, M.P.M. from Pondicherry University & LL.B. Delhi from University
Delhi. He is presently Principal Secretary, PDD, GoJK.

Shri H. Rajesh Prasad joined the Board of CVPPL on 20th October, 2022.
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Sh. Santosh Dattatraya Vaidya, IAS
Director-Nominee of JKSPDC Limited
DIN: 05340193

Shri Santosh Dattatraya Vaidya, IAS, is an Indian Administrative Services Officer of 1998 batch.
Shri Vaidya, is presently Principal Secretary, to the GoJK, Finance Department. He is also holding

additional charge of Chairman & Managing Director JKIDFC

Shri Santosh Dattatraya Vaidya joined the Board of CVPPL on 31% August, 2023.

Sh. Rajendra Prasad Goyal
Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 08645380
Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal has a distinguished academic background and is a qualified CMA. He has
vast experience of more than 31 years in NHPC Ltd. in the core areas of Finance, coupled with in-
depth understanding of Financial, Contractual and Regulatory issues involved in construction and

operation of hydro projects. Presently he is Director (Finance) of NHPC Limited.

Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal joined the Board of CVPPL on 1st October, 2020.
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Sh. Sanjay Kumar Singh
Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited

DIN: 10718481
Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh, was working in SJVN Ltd. as Chief General Manager. He has more than 32
years of vast & varied experience in Power & Infrastructure sector in respect of execution of mega and
prestigious projects in India & Bhutan. He holds degree in Bachelor of Engineering (Civil). In SJVN, he
has worked as Head of the Project of Sunni Dam HEP (Construction stage), Naitwar Mori HEP
(Construction stage), Luhri HEP stage Il (S&l stage), Jhakhol Sankri HEP (S&I stage). He has also
served as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of STPL (A wholly owned subsidiary of SJVN Ltd.).

Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh, joined the Board of CVPPL on 4th September, 2024.

Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya
Managing Director-Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 10415607

Shri Ramesh Mukhiya is an alumni of Jadavpur University, Kolkata and completed his Graduation in

Civil Engineering in 1990. He started his career as Probationary Executive at Rangit Power Station,
Sikkim in 1991 and played an active role in the commissioning of Rangit Power Station in the year
2000. He was also instrumental in commissioning of Teesta-V Power Station in the year 2008, Teesta
Low Dam-lll Power Station in the year 2013. Moreover, during his tenure at Teesta Low Dam-IV HE
Project, he was instrumental in getting all the Statutory Clearances of the project and start the

construction activities. Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya had been Head of Project for Teesta-IV Project (500MW)
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and Pakal Dul HE Project (1000 MW) and also held additional charge of Regional Office, Banikhet as

Executive Director. As Project and Regional Head, he was instrumental in taking critical decisions

which have paved way for smooth functioning of Project as well as Power Stations.

Shri Ramesh Mukhiya has assumed the charge of Managing Director, CVPPL on 05th December 2023.

Smt. Madhusmita Pany
Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 09319007

Smt. Madhusmita Pany is Executive Director (Law) in NHPC Limited.
Smt. Madhusmita Pany joined the Board of CVPPL on 21st December, 2022.
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CHAIRMAN’'S SPEECH

“To be a world class clean
energy organization
with empathy and strong
commitment
to bring about inclusive and
sustainable Growth”

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

A very warm welcome to each one of you. It gives me immense pleasure to greet you
all at the 13" Annual General Meeting of CVPPL. On behalf of CVPPL Board, | want
to thank all of you for taking out time to join us today.

The Annual Report of the year ended 31 March 2024, along with the Board’s Report and
Audited Financial Statement have been circulated to you. With your permission, | shall

take them as read.
| will take up some of the notable achievement of CVPPL during the year ending March,

2024

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

The Company has not yet started its commercial operation from projects, which are still
under construction. Company has earned only ‘Other Income’ i.e. interest income on

short-term surplus funds invested in the form of Term Deposits with Banks.

The Revenue from Operations & Other Income for the year ending 31 March, 2024 is
Rs 35.75 Crores and in the year ending 31 March, 2023, it was Rs. 53.47 Crores.
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e HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
During the year under report, CVPPL achieved several milestones, some of them are as

under:
Pakal Dul HE Project:

1. The concrete faced rock fill dam of 167m height is the highest dam of its kind in
India and 72m of dam height progress with filling of 24.78 Lakh Cum was achieved
during the year.

2. The completion of Head Race Tunnel is critical for timely completion of the project
and Tunnel Boring Machine-1 was successfully launched on July’2023 for
excavation of HRT-1. Subsequently the excavation of 534m Adit of HRT-1 was
completed in January’2024 and excavation of 7350m HRT-1 started thereafter.
The assembly of TBM-2 also started during the year.

3. After completion of excavation of Power House Cavern, the main E&M activities of
the Project are under progress and in September'2023 erection of all four nos. draft
tube has been completed. Further, erection of spiral casing of Unit-1 and 2 also
completed in December'2023 and Feberuary’2024 respectively.

4. The excavation of two nos. 291m deep Vertical Pressure shafts i.e VPS-4 and 3
were completed in January’2024 and March’2024respectively and handed over to
HM contractor for steel lining erection works. Also, the slashing of VPS-2 and 1

have been started and is in progress.

Kiru HE Project (624 MW)

1. The completion of Dam concreting works is very crucial for timely completion of the
project works and progress of 3.5 Lakh Cum concreting has been achieved against
the total of 13.95 Lakh Cum.

2. The excavation of Inclined Pressure Shafts (4 nos.) of total length 500m completed
during the year and the site handed over to HM Contractor for erection of Steel
liners.

3. Further, during the year Power House cavern excavation of 174335 Cum has been
completed besides Transformer Cavern excavation, 4 nos. TRT excavation and 4
nos. Bus Ducts.

The works at all fronts of the project moved steadily during the year and works of
the project are anticipated to be completed as per the timeline fixed.
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Kwar HE Project (540 MW)

1. The major milestone of the project i.e Diversion of River Chenab was achieved
during Jan’2024. This is a major landmark for the project as the same has paved
way for start of main Dam works which are in progress.

2. Further, works at various front of the project were started during the period and
most notable being start of excavation of 609m long, 8m dia, Main Access Tunnel
(MAT) and excavation of tunnel from GIS (Cavern) to Transformer Cavern,

Excavation of Power House and excavation of Transformer cavern.

I would like to inform that Power Purchase Agreements in respect of Pakal Dul HE
Project and Kwar HE Project have been signed with Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution
Company Limited (CSPDCL) and Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited (GUVNL).

Further, consents for purchase of Power have also been received in respect of Pakal Dul
HE Project @ 250 MW from Haryana Power Purchase centre, @100 MW from Maharashtra
State Power Distribution Co. Ltd. and @ 444 MW from Power Company of Karnataka
Limited. Consents for purchase of Power received in respect of Kwar HE Project @ 200
MW from Haryana Power Purchase centre, Power @ 54 MW from Maharashtra State

Power Distribution Co. Ltd. and @ 240 MW from Power Company of Karnataka Limited.

Power Purchase Agreement in respect of Kiru HE Project for 543MW has been signed with
Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited (GUVNL) and further consents has also been received for
purchase of Power @250 MW from Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution Company Ltd.
@543 MW from Uttar Pradesh Power Corporation Limited (UPPCL) and @543 MW from

Power Company of Karnataka Limited.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CVPPL is committed and strives to promote and maintain good standards of CSR and
Sustainability in all its business activities. The CSR activities are being carried out in

accordance with Schedule VII of Companies Act, details as provided in Board’s Report.

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, places on record its sincere gratitude for the valuable
guidance and support extended by Prime Minister Office, Ministry of Power, Gol, Ministry
of Environment & Forest and Climate Change, Gol, Govt. of Jammu and Kashmir,
Central Electricity Authority, Central Water Commission and the Promoters of CVPPL,
without which the Company would not have been able to carry out its responsibilities.
We acknowledge the participation and involvement of each one of them, solicit their

continued co-operation, and support in the future as well.

Page 9



[C VPP’]

Chenab Valley
Power Projects Ltd

I, also deeply appreciate all the Employees working in CVPPL, for their immense

dedication, commitment and cooperation.

Thank You.

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
Dated: 09.09.2024 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 13th Annual General Meeting of the members of
Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited will be held on Monday, the 30™ day of September,
2024 at 11:00 A.M. through Video Conference (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)
to transact the following businesses. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be
CVPPL Registered Office, Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opposite Saraswati Dham, Rail Head
Complex, Jammu-180012-J&K.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 together with the Board’s report, the report of

auditor’s thereon and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.) (DIN: 06440021), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment for the term at the
pleasure of JKSPDC Limited/Govt. of J&K.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal (DIN: 08645380), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment for the term at the

pleasure of NHPC Limited.

4. To authorize Board of Directors of the company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions,

as Ordinary Resolution:

TSl HRATRere ster afFd oraet, FIEA 4TH F WA, I §3 FlEcadd, F9 180012, (S TF FRAR ww anfaww
Regd. Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opposite Saras?éakamwfail Head Complex, Jammu-180012, (UT of Jammu & Kashmir)
dearse/ WebsSi ww.cvppindia.com
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‘“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 read with relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being
in force), the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of

Statutory Auditor for the financial year 2024-25;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or

expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited

Sd/-
(SUDHIR ANAND)
Company Secretary

Date: 09.09.2024
Place: Jammu

Notes:

(i) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its circular dated September 25,
2023 read together with circulars dated December 28, 2022, May 5, 2022 and April 8,
2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021 and
December 14, 2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), permitted convening
the AGM through VC/OAVM, without physical presence of the members at a common
venue upto September 30, 2024. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

TSl HRATRere ster afFd oraet, FIEA 4TH F WA, I §3 FlEcadd, F9 180012, (S TF FRAR ww anfaww
Regd. Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opposite Saras?éaka , Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012, (UT of Jammu & Kashmir)
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(i) The instructions for joining the Annual General Meeting are as under:

a. The meeting will be held through Microsoft Teams/Zoom Application.

b. Members can join the meeting either through Microsoft Teams/Zoom app or
through desktop by using the link sent along with the Notice of AGM on the
registered email id.

c. In case of android/ iphone connection, Participants will be required to download
and Install the appropriate application as given in the e-mail sent to them.
Application may be downloaded from Google Play Store/ App Store.

d. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet audio settings
as and when asked while setting up the meeting on Mobile App.

e. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use
Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

f. The facility for joining the meeting will be kept open fifteen minutes before
scheduled time for AGM and will be closed at conclusion of the meeting.

g. For any assistance, members may write to Company Secretary at
cs@cvppindia.com or contact at +91-9419181543.

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since
the AGM is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC/ OAVM, the facility
for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available.

(iv) Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

(v) Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this

Notice.

TSl HRATRere ster afFd oraet, FIEA 4TH F WA, I §3 FlEcadd, F9 180012, (S TF FRAR ww anfaww
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(vi) In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.)
and Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal, Directors. Being eligible, Shri Suresh Kumar-1AS
(Retd.) and Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal, offers themselves for re-appointment.

The Board of Directors commends their re-appointment.

(vii) Brief details of directors seeking reappointment at the Annual General Meeting are as

under:
Name Shri Suresh Kumar-lAS (Retd.) Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal
Date of Birth & Age 27" June, 1959 08™ August, 1965
(65 years) (59 years)
Qualification B.Sc (Agri.), MA (Economics), | Associate Member of the institute of
M.Sc  (Agn), PG Diploma | Cost Accountants of India, Master’s
(Forestry), MA( Public Policy) Degree in Commerce from the

University of Rajasthan.

Terms & Conditions of | As decided by Appointing | As decided by Appointing Authority
appointment or | Authority ie. JKSPDC | i.e. NHPC Limited

re-appointment along | Limited/Govt. of J&K
with the details of
remuneration.

Date of first 22/11/2019 01/10/2020
appointment on Board.

Relationship with other NIL NIL
Directors, Manager &

KMP.

No. of Board Meetings 9/9 8/9

attended and held
during the year

2023-24.

Directorship, NIL 1.NHPC Limited (Director-Finance
Membership/Chairman and Member of Stakeholders’
ship in Committees Relationship Committee,
held in other Committee of Directors on CSR &
Companies Sustainability and Risk

Management Committee).

TSl HRATRere ster afFd oraet, FIEA 4TH F WA, I §3 FlEcadd, F9 180012, (S TF FRAR ww anfaww
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2.Chenab Valley Power Projects Ltd.
(Director)

3. Loktak Downstream Hydroelectric
Power Corporation Ltd. (Director
and Chairman of Audit
Committee).

4.NHDC Limited (Director, Chairman
of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee).

Number of shares held | 01 (One) Equity Share as |01 (One) Equity Share as Nominee
in the Company Nominee of JKSPDC Limited of NHPC Limited

(viii)  In compliance with the Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report
2023-24 is to be sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-malil

addresses are available with the Company.

(ix) Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG format) of the
Board Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and to vote at the AGM,
pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the

Company Secretary by e-mail through registered e-mail address to cs@cvppindia.com.

(x) The voting will be done by show of hands at the first instance unless chairman decides
otherwise or any member demand for poll. In case the poll is decided by the chairman
or demanded, the poll will be conducted immediately and all members are requested to

send their assent or dissent on each business at cs@cvppindia.com through the email

ids on which they have received the notice of AGM.

(xi) The Register of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts
and arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 will be available electronically for inspection by the members

during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for

TSl HRATRere ster afFd oraet, FIEA 4TH F WA, I §3 FlEcadd, F9 180012, (S TF FRAR ww anfaww
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electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of the
Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect documents can send an e-

mail to Company Secretary at cs@cvppindia.com mentioning their name, folio number

and Permanent Account Number (PAN).

(xii) Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 the statutory auditors of a
Government Company are appointed or re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG). Further, their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in
a General Meeting or in such manner as the Company in General Meeting may
determine in terms of Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The members may
authorised the Board to fix an appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors to be
appointed by C&AG for financial year 2024-25, as may be deemed fit by the Board.

(xiii)  None of the Directors of the Company is in any way related to each other except in

their professional/ employment capacity.
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BOARD’'S REPORT
Dear Members,

We are pleased to present the 13th Annual Report on the performance of CVPPL for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024. The report includes audited financial statements, the
Auditor's Report, and a review of financial statements by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG).

The year 2023-24 has been very significant in terms of major strides made in the progress
of construction projects of the company i.e Pakal Dul, Kiru, and Kwar HE Projects. The
construction works of the projects moved ahead with momentous impetus required for
realizing the ultimate goal of completion of the projects as per the set target. The company
is on the path to become a major player in the hydro industry in the UT of J&K as well as

the country in near future. Major accomplishments achieved during 2023-24 are as below:

» The first Tunnel Boring Machine (TBM) for construction of 7350m Head Race Tunnel-1 of
PakalDul HE Project was successful launched in July’ 2023. The TBM deployed is one of
the most advanced machine manufactured by M/s Herrenknecht, Germany considering the
site geological conditions and is capable of simultaneous boring and segment lining.
The Dam works and Power House works of PakalDul HE Project are already in advance
stage and with start of construction of Head Race Tunnel, the project is now fast

approaching to its completion as per the target.

» The excavation of underground Power House of Kiru HE Project as well as excavation of
four nos. inclined pressure shafts was completed in December’2023. This have paved the
way for start of E&M work activities of Power House and HM work activities of Pressure
shafts.

» The Diversion of River is an important milestone for every Hydro Electric project and same
was achieved by Kwar HE Project in January’2024. This is a significant event as
construction works of the Dam were started subsequently.

» During 2023-24, the company signed Power Purchase Agreement with Jammu and
Kashmir Power Corporation Limited (JKPCL), Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution
Company Ltd and Gujrat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd for off-take of power from PakalDul and
Kwar HE Projects. The Power Purchase Agreement for Kiru HE Project with Gujrat Urja

Vikas Nigam Ltd has also been signed.
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1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Company'’s financial performance for the year ended 31% March 2024 are summarized

below:
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from Operations & Other Income 3,575.40 5,346.69
Profit before Tax 1,971.10 3,814.12
Tax Expenses 898.85 1,345.35
Profit for the year before net movements in 1,072.25 2,468.77
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (net of Tax) (4.06) 45.77
Profit for the Year 1,068.19 2,514.54
Other Comprehensive Income 00 00
Total Comprehensive Income 1,068.19 2,514.54
Less Appropriations 00 00
Closing Balance of Retained Earnings carried 1,068.19 2,514.54
forward to Reserve & Surplus

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS:
The Company has not yet started its commercial operation from projects which are still
under construction and Revenue from Operations is therefore Nil. Company has earned only
Other Income i.e. interest income on short-term surplus funds invested in the form of Term

Deposits with Banks.

3. STATUS OF PROJECTS:

|. PAKAL DUL HE PROJECT (1000 MW):
Brief Introduction:
The Pakal Dul HE Project (1000MW) is under construction on river Marusudar, a tributary of
river Chenab in District Kishtwar of UT of J&K. The Project is a storage scheme and shall
utilize the permissible storage of 0.1 MAF under Indus Water Treaty. The project envisages
construction of al67m high Concrete Face Rock fill Dam, 2 nos. of Head Race Tunnel of
7.20 mtr. dia and 9.6 km length each, an underground Power House with 4 units of 250 MW
Vertical Francis Turbine each and 4 nos., 5.5 m dia. horseshoe shape, each 125 m long Tail
Race Tunnel. The annual energy generation will be 3230 MU.

Hon'ble Prime Minister of India laid the Foundation stone of the project on 19™ May 2018.
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PROJECT LAYOUT
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PROJECT SCHEME

Status of the project:
i. Statutory Clearances
Statutory clearances in respect of the project have been obtained from various departments
of the Central/State Governments namely- Techno Economic Appraisal (TEA) by CEA,
Environmental Clearance by MOEF, Forest Clearance by GoJK, Wildlife Clearance by GoJK,
Indus Water Treaty Clearance by MoWR, Clearance from Fisheries department and Hydraulic
Division (PHE & lIrrigation) GoJK, NOC from Geology and Mining Department GoJK, Consent
to Establish Pakal Dul project by J&K State Pollution Control Board etc.

ii. CCEA Approval

Investment Approval of Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA), Govt. of India was
accorded on 28.10.2014 at a sanctioned cost of Rs. 8112.12 Cr at March 2013 price level
taking in to consideration subordinate debt of Rs. 2500 Cr from Govt. of India and exemption
from WCT/entry tax and waiver of 12% free power & water usage charges for first ten years
from the date of completion of the project by GoJK. After implementation of GST in J&K,
efforts are being made by the Company to get reimbursement of GST paid by the company.
Further, Gol sanctioned release of equity contribution of Rs 1192 Crs. on behalf of JKSPDC
in the project as grant to CVPPL. The full equity amount has been released by MoP, Gol to
CVPPL.
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Land Acquisition

177.8 Ha of revenue land (Pvt. & State land) has been acquired by the Project for which
Project have deposited Rs. 115.84 Cr. with District Administration Kishtwar for disbursement
to rightful land owners. Further, about 26.685 Ha land is under acquisition process by District

Administration, Kishtwar.

. Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) plan

The Govt. of J&K has approved the Rehabilitation and Resettlement plan of the project
vide order dated 22.02.2017. Enhancement of compensation has been further approved by
GoJK vide order dated 07.03.2019.

CVPPL has deposited an amount of Rs. 74.09 Cr to District Administration Kishtwar for

implementation of R&R plan and an amount of Rs. 64.69 Crs disbursed so far.

Matter being pursued with Commissioner (R&R) i.e. DC Kishtwar for further disbursement to

PAF’'S and implementation of other components under R&R Plan of the Project

PROGRESS OF MAJOR WORK PACKAGES AS ON 313™MARCH 2024

The project being executed in five major packages viz. Power House Package, Dam
Package, E&M Package, HM Package and HRT-TBM Package. The physical progress

achieved as on 31.03.2024 is as below:

Sl. |Package Agency Awarded on | Physical Progress (%)
1 PH Package |M/s Afcons - JAL JV 21.02.2018 48.73%
2 Dam Package [M/s Jai Prakash Associates Ltd | 21.06.2018 34.52%
3 HM Package [M/s PES Ltd 26.08.2019 41.63%
4 E&M Package [M/s Voith Hydro Ltd 02.01.2019 59.42%
5 HRT-TBM M/s L&T Ltd 03.07.2020 16.61%
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STATUS OF MAJOR WORKS:

A. POWER HOUSE PACKAGE (as on 31.03.2024)

a) Excavation (Cum):

Total Qty : 145693
Executed : 145693 (100%)
Completed.

b) Power House Machine Hall
Concreting (Cum):

Total Qty : 54000

Executed 1 27275(51%)

Balance: 126725

SI. | Activity Photograph
1. | Power House
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2. | Main Inlet Valve Cavern:

a) Excavation

b) Concreting
Cavern (Cum):

Executed 1492

in

Total Qty : 2000

(25%)

Balance : 1508

Total Qty 119024
Executed : 19024 (100%)
Completed.

MIV
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c
Pon

3. | Transformer Hall

- Excavation (28175 Cum) and
Concreting  (3600.5 Cum)
works of Transformer hall
completed.

- Excavation (48.5m each) and
concreting (2000 Cum) of all
four nos. bus ducts also
completed.

4. | Pressure Shaft
a) Vertical Pressure Shaft — 4:

Slashing (m)

Total Qty 1 291

Executed : 291 (100%)
Completed.

b) Vertical Pressure Shaft - 3:

Slashing (m)

Total Qty 1 291

Executed : 291 (100%)
Completed.

c) Vertical Pressure Shaft - 2:

Slashing (m)

Total Qty 1291

Executed : 2.5 (1%)

Balance :288.50

d) Vertical Pressure Shaft — 1:

Slashing (m)

Total Qty 1291

Executed : 24.50 (8%)

Balance 1266.50

VPS-1
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5. | Surge Shaft
a) SurgeShaft-2

Slashing (m)

Total Qty : 200
Executed 14 (2%)
Balance 1196

b) Upper Surge Gallery-1 (m)
Total Qty : 260
Executed : 256.50 (98%)
Balance :3.50

c) Upper Surge Gallery-2 (m)

Total Qty . 257
Executed . 244 (95%)
Balance 113

6. | Valve House Excavation(Cum):

Total Qty 1 17295
Executed : 17295(100%)
Completed.
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Switch yard Excavation (Cum):

Total Qty : 95000
Executed : 95000 (100%)
Completed.

B. DAM PACKAGE(as on 31.03.2024)

Sl.

Activity

1.

CFRD Rock Filling (Cum)

Total Qty  : 7546000
Executed : 2478158(33%)
Balance . 5067842

Dam U/s view
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2. | Power Intake Structure

a) Surface Excavation (Cum):

Total Qty : 377500
Executed 1 271186 (72%)
Balance 1106314

b) Excavation of Gate Shaft for
Service Gate in HRT-1 (m)

TotalQty : 91
Executed : 35.5(39%)
Balance : 555

c) Excavation of Gate Shaft for
Service Gate in HRT-2 (m)

TotalQty : 91
Executed : 11(12%)
Balance . 80

d) Excavation of Gate Shaft for

Future HRT (m)
TotalQty : 91
Executed : 22.5(25%)
Balance 685

3. | Surface Spillway

Surface Excavation (Cum)
Total Qty : 763000
Executed : 587317 (77%)
Balance : 175683
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4. | Tunnel Spillway Outlet

Surface Excavation(Cum):
Total Qty  : 420000
Executed : 303515 (72%)
Balance © 116485

5. | Excavation of HRT'S

a) Excavation (m):

Total Qty . 4117
Executed : 3801.5(92%)
Balance : 3155
b) Concrete lining(m):
Total Qty @ 4117
Executed : 1608 (39%)
Balance : 2509




CVPPL- Annual Report 2023-24

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED
crenan valey | Registered Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opp. Saraswati Dham, Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012 (J&K)

Tel. No: 0191-2479531; E-mail Id: cs@cvppindia.com
CIN: U40105JK2011G0I003321

C. HRT-TBM PACKAGE
SI. | Activity Photograph

1. | Head Race Tunnel-1

a) ADIT (m)

Total Qty . 534

Executed . 534 (100%)
Completed.

b) HRT (m)

Total Qty . 7350

Executed . 348.5 (5%)

Balance 70015

2. | Segment Casted (Nos.)

Total Qty : 58800
Executed ;7014 (12%)
Balance : 51786
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3. | Assembly of TBM-2
- 55% assembly work of TBM-2
completed till 31.03.2024.

D. HM Works:

Sr.|Activity Unit [Total |Cumulative [Balance % Progress
Qty. |progress [Qty.

1. [Lower Horizontal Portion, 2.9m dia| M [ 218 218 0 100%

(downstream of MIV) (PS1A, PS1B, PS2A
& PS2B) - Completed.

2.IPS 1 - Top Horizontal Portion 6m diaj M | 221 200.4 20.6 91%
Including bend and Steel Transition

3. |PS 2 - Top Horizontal Portion 6m dia. M | 174 170 4 98%
Including bend and Steel Transition
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4. |Bifurcation of PS 1 - Completed. M |23.28 23.28 0 100%

5. |Bifurcation of PS 2 M [23.28 6.1 17.2 26.20%

Bifurcation Lower Horizontal PS — 3.9 m dia. U/s of MIV

o % o N - e B e e —_—
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E. E&M Works:

Work awarded to M/s Voith Hydro Ltd. on 02.01.2019 and scheduled activities are in

progress.

Equipment Reached at site: -

Draft Tube Liners and other associated accessories for all units received at site.
Embedded pipes for Oil & Water Drainage system in GSU Transformer Cavern
received at Site.

All material of PH EOT Crane-1, MIV crane & PP Valve crane received at site.
Grounding system, Stator bars, Rotor poles, Stator frame, Spiral case assembly &
Lower Pit Liner Segments of all units, 2 Runners, MIV & Butterfly valve of Unit#1 & 2, 2
nos. Generator Shafts, Rotor Rim & hub of U#1, GIS Components & GIS EOT Crane

and 13 no. GSU Transformer.

Erection:

Earthing of Power House Cavern, Transformer Cavern, 1, 2 &3 TRT, MIV Service Bay,
MIV Unit#1 completed.

Erection of Draft Tube Unit#1, 2, 3 and 4 completed on 30.08.22, 20.09.22, 11.01.23 &
24.07.2023 respectively.

Erection of PH 1st and 2nd EOT Crane completed.

Erection and commissioning of MIV EoT Crane completed in all respects along with
load test.

Erection of Spiral Casing of Unit#1 and Unit#2 is completed. Stator build up works of
Unit#1&2 is in progress.

Spiral casing erection of Unit#3 and Unit #4 is in progress.

All of 13 nos. GSU Transformers placed at their designated slots in the Transformer

Cavern. Installation of accessories in GSU Transformer is in progress.
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-

Erection of Spiral Casing Unit-1&2

. -
o =

Stator Build-up work in Progress in Service Bay
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Unit-1 Pit Liner

GSU Transformers
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II. KIRU HE PROJECT (624 MW):

Brief Introduction:
The project, a run-of-river scheme with pondage is located in District Kishtwar, J&K. The

Kiru HE Project is under construction on river Chenab and envisages construction of 135
m high concrete gravity dam near village Kiru/Patharnakki, 9 m dia. and 666m long horse
shoe shaped diversion tunnel, 4nos. 5.5m dia, 304m long underground circular steel lined
pressure shafts/penstocks, 4 nos., 7m dia horse shoe shaped concrete lined TRT with
lengths from 165m to 190mand an underground Power House of cavern size 182 m x 23.6
m x 51.2 m with 4 units of 156 MW each. The annual energy generation will be 2272 MU.

Hon’ble Prime Minister of India has laid foundation stone of the project on 3" Feb 2019.

PROJECT LAYOUT

N

o Power House Transformer cavern
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Status of the project:

i) Statutory Clearances

Statutory clearances in respect of the project have been obtained from various
departments of the Central/State Governments namely Techno- Economic Appraisal
(TEA) by CEA, Environmental Clearance by MOEF, Forest Clearance by GoJK, Indus
Water Treaty Clearance by MoWR, Clearance from Fisheries Department GoJK, NOC
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i)

from Geology and Mining Department GoJK, Consent to Establish the project by J&K

State Pollution Control Board etc.
CCEA Approval

MoP, Gol vide letter dated 08.03.2019 has conveyed investment approval for construction
of the project at a cost of Rs 4287.59 Crs at July 2018 PL.

e Exemptions Accorded by GoJK

- Water Usage Charges: For a period of 10 years from COD

- Exemption of 9% SGST: Consent given by GoJK

- Exemption of toll tax: Accorded by GoJK vide SRO 402 dated 14.09.2018.

e Assistance Accorded by Gol.
- Equity of GoJK as Grant from Gol. Equity contribution of JKPDC amounting toRs
630.50 Crs has been released to CVPPL.

Land Acquisition
Final award for acquisition of private land for construction of the project has been issued
vide letter dated 01.07.2017and an amount of Rs 32.47 Cr. has been deposited for
disbursement of compensation.
Diverted Forest land handed over by Forest Department, GoJK to CVPPL on 14.03.2018.

Rehabilitation and Resettlement(R&R) plan

The J&K govt. has approved the Rehabilitation and Resettlement plan of the project vide
order dated 07.03.2019.

Payment of Rs 55 Cr has been released for disbursement to PAFs and Rs 38.50 Crs
disbursed so far by District Administration, Kishtwar.

Progress of Major Works as on 31°%' March’2023

The project being executed in three major packages viz. Civil Work Package, E&M

Package, and HM Package. Details of the same is as below.

Sl. Package Agency Awarded on [ Physical Progress (%)
1 CivilWorks [M/s Patel Engineering Ltd.| 24.02.2020 28.55
2 HM Works M/s PES Ltd. 24.02.2020 21.00
3 E&M Works M/s Andritz Ltd. 24.02.2020 46.78
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A. STATUS OF MAJOR CIVIL WORKS: (as on 31.03.2024)

Activity

=l e

Dam Works

Photograph

a. River Bed Excavation(Cum)

Total Qty 230000

Executed 230000 (100%)
Completed.

b. Concreting(Cum)

Total Qty 1395400
Executed 318649 (23%)
Balance 1076751

Power Intake

Excavation (Cum)

Total Qty 56000
Executed 54980 (98%)
Balance 1020
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2. | Power House Cavern

Excavation (Cum) including

Draft tube pits

Total Qty : 148400

Executed : 148400 (100%)
Completed.

3. | Transformer Hall Cavern

Excavation (Cum)

Total Qty : 36000

Executed : 36000 (100%)
Completed.
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4. | Pressure Shaft:

- Excavation of Bottom
Horizontal Pressure Shafts
four nos. (Total 335m)
completed.

- Excavation of Top Horizontal
Pressure Shafts four nos.
(Total 241m) completed.

- Excavation of Inclined
Pressure Shafts four
nos.(Total 500m) completed

5. | Tail Race Tunnel

a) Excavation of TRTs (1 to 4)

(m)
Total Qty 467
Executed . 349 (75%)
Balance © 118

b) TRT - Draft Tube tunnel (1 to

4) (m)
Total Qty 150
Executed . 150 (100%)

Completed.

TRT-2
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B. Hydro mechanical Package (Lot-II)

e LOAissued to M/s PES Engineers Limited on 24.02.2020.

e Detailed Engineering, manufacturing, inspection & supply of HM Components are in
progress.

o Erection of Pressure Shaft Steel Liner started in Bottom Horizontal Pressure Shaft # 3
on 09.02.2024.

Erection of Steel Liners — PS 3

C. Electro Mechanical Package (Lot Ill)

e LOAssued to M/s Andritz Hydro Limited on 24.02.2020.

e Detailed Engineering, manufacturing, inspection and supply of E&M Equipment are
in progress.

e 2 no. EOT Crane, Upper & lower pit liner, 4 sets each of Draft Tubes Elbow liner, pit
liner, Draft tube Liner (Diffuser), Turbine & Rotor Shafts, MIV OPU, Stay ring & spiral
case, Stator frame & Stator sheets, 3 sets each of DT lower Cone & Stator pressing
sheets, Runner, thrust Bearing Pad & Bus Reactor, 2set DG Set, 11kv Switch gear
system, Insulating & lubricating Oil Handling system and Cooling water Pump sets &
LP Compressor system supplied at Site. Service bay area of Power House cavern
handed over to the E&M contractor on 22.07.2023 for start of E&M activities.
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Turbine: Stay Ring
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KWAR HE PROJECT (540 MW):
Brief Introduction

The project is located in district Kishtwar of J&K State on Chenab river. The Kwar HE
Project (540 MW) envisages construction of 109 m high concrete gravity Dam, 9.5 m dia.
and 685 m long horse shoe shaped diversion tunnel, 4nos. 5.65 m dia underground steel
lined penstocks of length 108 to 182 m, an underground Power House with 4 units of 135
MW each and 2 nos., 9.5m dia horse shoe shaped, concrete line TRT’s of lengths 2786m
and 2963m. The annual generation will be 1975 MU.

Hon’ble Prime Minister of India has laid foundation stone of the project on 24™ April 2022.

PROJECT LAYOUT

DT Inlet
EL 1293

Spillway Blocks

pam Top Level - EL 1387
Oulet For envirnoment release

Penstoe -
Penstock 2 =) -4 , 1

penstock 3 a
| |
| 1 L

astock 4

|
DT OUTLET

EL 1285

ROL ROOM
AVRAN
CABLE TUN

1278 EL 1242.5
I

Dam bottom(Deepest Foundation level) PLUNGE POO
POWER HOUSE CAVERN

ADIT TO PS BOTTOM
ADIT-CUM-SURGE
GALLERY FOR TRT- 2
Draft Tube Gate Shaft

EL 1310

EL 1310 ACCESS TUNNEL TO
TRANSFORMER CAVERN

Tail Race Tunnel 1

ADIT to Control Room

Tail Race Tunnel 2

ADIT-CUM-SURGE
GALLERY FOR TRT- 1

The status of the project is as follows:

Statutory Clearances

Statutory clearances in respect of the project have been obtained from various
departments of the Central/State Governments namely Techno- Economic Appraisal
(TEA) by CEA, Environmental Clearance by MOEF, Forest Clearance by GoJK, clearance
from Fisheries Department GoJK, NOC from Geology and Mining Department GoJK,
Consent to establish the project by J&K State Pollution Control Board etc.
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i)

i)

iv)

CCEA Approval
MoP, Gol vide letter dated 10.05.2022 has conveyed investment approval for construction
of the project at a cost of Rs. 4526.12 Crore at September2020 PL.

e Assistance accorded by GoJK:

Water Usage Charges : Exempted for a period of 10 years from COD

12% Free Power : The exemption of free power will be 10% in the first year
and will decrease by 2% every year upto 5th year after
COD of the project. The share of free power will restore to
12% from 6th year onwards.

Exemption of 9% SGST : To be Reimbursed

Exemption of toll tax : Accorded by GoJK vide SRO 402 dated 14.09.2018

e Assistance accorded by Gol

- Equity share for the Project: Equity of Rs. 655.08 Crores from JKPDC as Grant
from Gol. A sum of Rs 294.80 Crs as equity contribution of JKPDC has been
released to CVPPL till date.
Gol would arrange loan (NSSF loan) oR 3119.42 Cr @ 7.3% p.a. to CVPPL, with
loan tenure of seven years after commissioning of the project and extendable

depending upon the requirement.

Land Acquisition
Final award for acquisition of land for construction of the project has been issued vide
letter dated 22.03.2018. Rs. 24.34 Crs has been deposited by CVPPL for disbursement
to District Administration. Diverted Forest land handed over by Forest Department, GoJK
to CVPPL on 14.03.2018 & 25.01.2022 respectively.

Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) plan
GoJK has approved the R&R plan of the project with approved cost of Rs. 35.83 Cr.
vide order dated 03.08.2018.
Payment of Rs 5 Cr has been released to District Administration, Kishtwar for
disbursement to PAFs and Rs 1.32 Crs disbursed so far.
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v) Award &Tendering of Major Works

The project is to be executed in following three packages:
1) Civil Works Package (Lot-I)
i) Hydro mechanical Package (Lot-II)

iii) Electro Mechanical Package (Lot IlI)

Civil Works e Letter of Award of Civil Works Package for DT, Dam, Under
Package Ground Power House, TRT, Pressure Shafts, HM works of DT has
been issued on 11.05.22 to M/s Patel Engineering Ltd.
e DT portal development, DT Excavation & Benching and CVT
Excavation completed and River Diversion achieved on
15.01.2024.
e Excavation of MAT, PH Crown Excavation, Surge Gallery, GIS
Cavern excavation, stripping of Dam Abutments, Dam Pit
Excavation, TC approach tunnel and Construction of Coffer dam
are in progress.
HM Package e Re-tendering has been done by inviting fresh NIT dated 29.08.2023
(4th instance).
e Techno-commercial bids of three firms opened on 16.10.2023.
e The security clearance from MHA is awaited for opening of price
bids.
E&M e The Board of CVPPL in its 80th Meeting has resolved for
Package cancellation of current tendering process of E&M Works Package

of the Project and directed for re-tendering.
e Fresh NIT shall be issued during 1* Quarter of 2024-25
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Component Wise Progress of Civil works as on 31.03.2023

SI. | Activity
1. | River Diversion
- Diversion Tunnel Excavation o S REIIN, PATEL ENGINEERING LIMITED
iy N B il Kwar Hydroelectric Project {540 MW)
(701m)  completed  on ol = vl River Wator Divasion Programmme
30.09.2023. S r R
- Diversion Tunnel Concreting
(701m) completed on
13.01.2024.
- Diversion of River Chenab
achieved on 15.01.2024.
2. | Dam Works:

a) Stripping of Dam abutments
(Cum)

Total Qty : 220000

Executed : 135770 (62%)

Balance : 84230

b) Dam Pit Excavation (Cum)
Total Qty : 61000
Executed : 36200 (59%)
Balance : 24800

Dam Pit Excavation
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Excavation (m):
Total Qty : 609

Executed : 555 (91%)
Balance : 54

Tail Race Tunnel (TRT):

Adit to TRT (m)
Total Qty : 550

Executed : 317 (58%)
Balance : 233

Adit to TRT
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5. | Power House

a) Adit to PH crown (m)

Total Qty : 109

Executed : 109 (100%)
Completed.

b) PH Crown Excavation (m)
Total Qty : 140
Executed : 140 (100%)

Completed.

- Side slashing of PH cavern in
progress.

Power House Widening

6. | Surge Gallery of TRT

Adit Cum Surge Gallery for
TRT-1 (m)

Total Qty : 766

Executed : 469 (61%)
Balance : 297
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IV. KIRTHAI-Il HE PROJECT (930 MW)

The implementation of Kirthai-Il HEP (930 MW) is entrusted to CVPPL on the same terms

and conditions as have been agreed for Pakal Dul, Kiru and Kwar HE Projects as per Clause
No (I) of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) signed between JKPDD, JKSPDC and

NHPC on 03.01.2021 at Jammu.

i) Brief Introduction:

Kirthai-1l is a run-of- river project located in Kishtwar District, J&K at about 25 km upstream of

Kiru H.E Project on river Chenab. The project would provide an annual generation of 3329.52

MU in a 90% dependable year. The consultancy agreement between CVPPL and NHPC for

technical support for the project has been signed on 19.03.2021.

ii) Project Features (as per DPR):
e Dam
e Submergence at FRL
e Desilting Chamber

e Power House

e HRT

e Pressure Shaft

iii) Cost appraisal by CEA:

CEA's TEA Appraisal
e Appraised Cost

e Tariff as per TEA

e Updated Cost (NHPC)
e 1st Year Tariff

e 1st Year Tariff

e Completion period

: 121 m high Concrete Gravity
1.4 km?
: 4 nos., 440m x19mx 24.87m

: Underground (6x140=840 MW) +

Surface (2x10+2x35= 90MW)

: Type of Machine: Francis
: Main PH Cavern Dimension: 187.5x22x49.7m
1 4.29 KM

. 3 no. steel liner 0f 5.25m dia. 827m for Main PH

: 14.06.2019
: Rs 5989.75 crores at August 2015 PL

(Including IDC Rs 977.52 Crs and FC Rs 88.05 Crs)
Levellised Tariff- Rs. 3.53/ Kwh (without WUC)

Rs. 6384.39 crore at Feb, 20 PL

Rs. 5.06, Levellised Tariff: Rs. 4.58 (With WUC)

Rs. 4.55, Levellised Tariff: Rs. 4.08 (Without WUC)
60 months
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iv) GENERAL LAYOUT OF KIRTHAI-IIl HE PROJECT:

LAYOUT PLAN OF KIRTHAI-II
HE PROJECT (930MW)

v) The status of the project is as under:
STATUS OF CLEARANCES:

TEA : e Conditional TEC accorded: 14.06.2019
e Stipulations in TEC: Additional investigations on geological,
Geotechnical & construction material survey aspects etc.
e CEA vide letter dt. 27.12.2021 has transferred the TEA in favour
of CVPPL.
e Validity of Appraisal of TEC upto 13.06.2024 has been accorded
by CEA vide letter dt. 29.08.22.
Environmental . e Recommendation by EAC: 15.04.2021
Clearance e MOEF vide letter dated 24.5.2021 has intimated JKSPDC that
Environment Clearance shall be accorded after Stage-I Forest
Clearance is granted.
e Further proof of submission of Wildlife Conservation Plan for
Schedule-l species submitted to concern Forest Division
submitted to MOEF&CC on 30.11.2021.
e Approved CAT Plan and Biodiversity Management Plan
submitted to DFO Kishtwar on 03.07.2021.
e NOC issued by JKSPDC for issue of EC by MOEF & CC in the
name of CVPPL on 29.11.2021.
e Project vide letter dt. 30.11.2021 has requested the MOEF&CC
to issue EC in favour of CVPPL.
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e Project gave presentation on 26.07.2022, for the proposal
before the committee constituted by Forest Deptt. at PCCF
office. During presentation few issues on CAT plan were
communicated to project for revision of CAT plan.

e The work of preparation of revised CAT has been awarded on

31.03.2024.
Forest . e Part | submitted electronically by JKSPDC on 09.03.2021.
Clearance e Proposal for approval of land requirement (Forest, Govt., &Pvt.

Land) for submitting application for Forest Clearance
submitted on 13.12.2021 and same received back with certain
observations. After attending the observations revised proposal
was put-up on 28.05.2022 for approval of Competent Authority
and approval accorded on 03.08.2022.

e Application for FC on Parivesh Portal submitted successfully on
dated 19.10.2022. Meeting of Project Steering committee held
on 20.01.2023.

e Gram Sabha meeting of two Gram Panchayat under FRA 2006
compliance successfully conducted on 11.06.2023.

e Project has assessed the quantum of land required for various
purposes as per revised layout dt. 03.07.23 and the same has
been got approved. The total assessed quantity of land is
265.01 ha which comprises 215.60 ha forest land, 28.86 ha
govt. land & 20.55 ha pvt. Land.

e The process for accord of Forest clearance is in progress.

Indus Water . e Application for IWT clearance shall be submitted Application
Treaty for IWT clearance shall be submitted after compliance to TEA
conditions.
Defence : e Grant of NOC/Defence clearance has been conveyed
Clearance vide Ministry of Defence F. No. 22(15)/2021/D (Coord.) dated
24.03.2022.
4. DIVIDEND:

The Company has been assigned four projects for construction, maintenance and operation,
namely PakalDul (1000MW), Kiru (624MW), Kwar (540MW) and Kirthai Stage Il HEP
(930MW). Out of above, PakalDul, Kiru and Kwar H.E Projects are in active construction
phase and Kirthai Stage Il H.E. Project is under the process of clearance. As no project is in
operation and there is only interest income on short-term surplus funds invested in the form
of Term Deposits with Banks, therefore, Your Directors have decided not to declare any
dividend during the financial year 2023-24.
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. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND NET WORTH:

The company’s paid up share capital as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 4,45,034.13 Lacs.
The Paid up Share Capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 3,69,239.13 Lacs on
31° March, 2023 to Rs 4,45,034.13 Lacs as on 31st March, 2024. Further, we have received
Rs. 22,916.00 Lacs from Promoters towards equity contribution for which allotment of shares
is pending as on 31% March 2024. Thus, the total equity fund (including application money
pending allotment) and Net worth as on 31% March 2024 is Rs 4,67,950.13 Lacs and
Rs.4,76,933.60 Lacs respectively.

. TRANSFER OF SHARES:

There was transfer of shares during the financial year 2023-24. The details of the share

transfers are as.

Sl. | Name of Transferor [No. of Shares | Value of the | Name of the | Date of
Transferred Share Transferee Transfer
(Equity)
1. | Sh. Y.K. Chaubey 01 Rs. 10/- Sh. Raj Kumar 27.06.2023
Chaudhary

. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of the Company was duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

As on date of this report, the Board of Directors consists of following members:

Sl. Name Designation DIN Date of
appointment

1 Sh. Suresh Kumar, IAS(Retd.) | Nominee Director & | 06440021 22.11.2019
Chairman

2 Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS Nominee Director 06516512 | 20.10.2022

3 Sh. Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS Nominee Director | 05340193 | 31.08.2023

4 Sh. R.P. Goyal Nominee Director 08645380 01.10.2020

5 Sh. Vijay Kumar Sinha Nominee Director 09132059 01.01.2024
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6 Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya Managing Director 10415607 05.12.2023

7 Smt. Madhusmita Pany Nominee Director 09319007 21.12.2022

e Sh. Hasan Nadeem, ceased to be director due to withdrawal of nomination by NHPC on
05.12.2023.

e Sh. Biswajit Basu, ceased to be director due to withdrawal of nomination by NHPC on
31.12.2023.

9. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year, the directors of the company met on the following dates:

Number & Date Place Board No. of Directors Present
of Meeting of Strength In Through Name of Board Members % of
Meeting Person Video Attendance
Conferencing of Board
Meeting
72" BoD CO. 6 2 4 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 100
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS,
April 13, 2023 R.P.Goyal, Biswajit  Basu,
Hasan Nadeem & Madhusmita
Pany.
73" BoD CO. 6 2 3 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 83.33
Meeting Jammu R.P. Goyal, Biswajit Basu,
May 10, 2023 Hasan Nadeem & Madhusmita
Pany.
74" BoD CO. 6 2 3 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 83.33
Meeting Jammu R.P. Goyal, Biswajit Basu,
July 18, 2023 Hasan Nadeem & Madhusmita
Pany.
75" BoD CO. 6 2 4 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 100
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS, R.P.
August 31, Goyal, Biswajit Basu, Hasan
2023 Nadeem & Madhusmita Pany.
76"BoD CO. 7 2 4 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS, Santosh
September D. Vaidya-IAS, Biswajit Basu,
26, 2023 Hasan Nadeem & Madhusmita
Pany.
77" BoD CO. 7 2 4 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-IAS, R.P.
October 20, Goyal, Biswajit Basu, Hasan
2023 Nadeem & Madhusmita Pany.
78" BoD CVPPL 7 5 0 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), R.P. 71.42
Meeting Camp Goyal, Biswajit Basu, Ramesh
December 27, (Office, Mukhiya & Madhusmita Pany.
2023 Faridabad
79" BoD CO. 7 1 5 Suresh  Kumar-IAS  (Retd.), 85.71
Meeting Jammu H.Rajesh Prasad-1AS, R.P.
February 05, Goyal, Vijay Kumar Sinha,
2024 Ramesh Mukhiya &
Madhusmita Pany.
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80" BoD CVPPL 7 5 0 Suresh Kumar-IAS (Retd.), R.P. 71.42
Meeting Camp Goyal, Vijay Kumar Sinha,

March 09, Office, Ramesh Mukhiya &

2024 Faridabad Madhusmita Pany.

10. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:
The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the year 2023-24.
11. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The Statutory Auditors of the Company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG).
12. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
Secretarial Audit Report in prescribed format as given by M/s Ramit Mam & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries is enclosed at Annexure | to the Board’s Report, which
is self-explanatory.
13. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:
There are no material changes affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial

position relates and the date of this report.

The Paid up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 4,45,034.13 Lacs as on 31st March,
2024. During the year 2024-25, shares of Rs. 21,778.00 Lacs and Rs.1,138.00 Lacs have
been allotted to NHPC Ltd. and JKSPDC respectively on 07.05.2024 which has been
shown as share application money pending allotment in the Balance sheet as on 31%
March, 2024. Further, an amount of Rs. 7,107.00 lacs and Rs. 1,091.00 lacs has been
received from JKSPDC and NHPC Ltd. on 02.04.2024 and 26.04.2024 respectively for
which shares have been allotted on 07.05.2024. Accordingly, the paid up share capital of
the company amounting to Rs. 4,45,034.13 Lacs as on 31 March, 2024 has increased to
Rs. 4,76,148.13 Lacs after issuance of shares to NHPC Ltd. & JKSPDC during the year
2024-25. In addition, Subordinate-Debt amounting to Rs. 25,192.00 lacs has been received
from MoP, Gol for PakalDul HE Project on 10.05.2024.

14. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any public deposit from the public / members within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposit) Rules, 2014 made there-under and, as such, no amount of principal or interest

was outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet and on the date of this Report.
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15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In line with requirement of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is confirmed that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period.

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularity has been taken.

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts ongoing concern basis.

e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
Applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of

Directors’ and * General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY:

The Company has not given any loan nor guarantee or made any investments or acquired
any securities during the financial year 2023-24, which are covered under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES IF
ANY:
During the financial year 2023-24, the Company had not entered into any contract or
arrangement with related parties, which could be considered material. The Company’s
related party transactions are only with one of the JV partner (NHPC Limited) for receiving
the consultancy & other services. All the contracts/ transactions/ entered into with related
party was on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and in the Company’s

interest.
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There are transactions that are required to be reported in accordance with the section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2, which is annexed as Annexure |l

19. COMMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS
MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS, IF ANY ALONG WITH THE COMMENTS OF
C&AG:

The Statutory Auditors has not made any qualifications or reservation in their Independent
Auditors Report for the F.Y. 2023-24. Further, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
has issued Nil comments on financial statement for the financial year 2023-24 in pursuant
to section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 which is attached herewith as Annexure Il

20. STRENGTHING IN RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:
The Company is aware of the fact that the development of hydroelectric projects is
associated with various uncertainties like geotechnical surprises, hydrological uncertainties,
seismic risks, environmental issues, unforeseen contractual litigations, remoteness of
project location, long gestation period, regulatory risks, etc., which could lead to

unanticipated increase in project cost, time over-run, etc.

With the start of construction of 1000 MW PakalDul H.E Project and commencement of
construction activities, your company is formulating an appropriate risk management policy
identifying the risk exposures of the Company including steps required for managing and
mitigating the risks for implementation.
However, the Company has evolved and implemented Fraud Prevention and Detection
policy.
The risks associated with hydro projects being undertaken by the Company are broadly
classified into the following categories:
(a) Strategic Risk:
The HoPs of the projects are responsible for timely action to manage the risk, which may
have detrimental effect on the business of the Company.
(b) Financial Risk:
No financial risks, which may have effect on the balance sheet, have been identified so far.
(c) Operational Risk:
Mitigation measures have been taken by the HoPs of the project at Kishtwar wherever

required for the operational risk identified during the year.
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(d) Compliance risk:
The Company is complying with all the legal and regulatory requirements during the year.
21. VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES:
The objective of the vigilance function is to ensure that the highest level of integrity is
maintained throughout the company. The main function of the vigilance department is to
be vigilant and watchful and to keep the system awake against corruption through strong
vigilance administration. Vigilance administration comprises of preventive and punitive
anticorruption measures. It includes detecting irregularities, analyzing and finding out
reasons for such irregularities and making effective systematic improvements to curb them.
It also entails identifying the public servants responsible for misconduct and taking

appropriate punitive actions.

After the change in stock holding pattern of CVPPL, it comes under the supervision of
CVC through CVO-NHPC Limited, which mandates certain compliances related to CVPPL
like any other Central Government Department/PSU. Circulars/Memoranda/Guidelines
issued by CVC are mandatory compliance in CVPPL. Vigilance Department co-ordinates
with Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI), Central Vigilance Commission (CVC) and other
concerned departments of the Government.

The Vigilance activities/functions taken care by Vigilance Division includes handing of
Complaints/cases and its investigation, regular/surprise inspections, regular monitoring of
NITs uploaded on organization website/CPP Portal, concluded tenders, execution of works,
timely payments to contractors/ Suppliers and conducting awareness workshops/ training
for improvement of the system etc.

During the year 2023-24, six (06) number CTE type inspections were conducted by the
Vigilance Division. As a part of preventive vigilance, circulars and guidelines are being
issued regularly based on various inspections / examinations carried out from time to time.
Monthly /Quarterly reports are being updated to CVO-NHPC Ltd. and CVC. Half yearly
reports are updated for review by the CVPPL Board.

Vigilance Awareness Week on CVC Guidelines was observed at CVPPL from 30™ October

2023 to 5" November 2023 to promote transparency and ethics in working.
22. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

An extract of annual return in form MGT-9 is annexed to this report as Annexure-|V.
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23. STATUTORY INFORMATION:
A. Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption:

a. Natural lighting:
The orientation and glass paneling of CVPPL Corporate Office is in such a way that
significant natural sun light does enter in the CO thereby lessening usage of electrical
lightings hence reducing electrical consumption.
All the buildings of the Project are constructed / provided with glass windows to bring

natural light thereby reducing the artificial lighting to save energy.

b. Energy efficient LED lights:
LED lights have been installed in the Corporate Office of CVPPL to reduce the power

consumption.

c. HVAC:
Energy efficient HVAC system has been in operation at C.O Jammu so as to reduce the

power consumption.

d. Sewage Treatment Plant:
As per the Building Permission granted by JDA, there was requirement of providing only
septic tanks for sewage treatment, however, taking a proactive step, your company decided
to go for advanced technology and opted for installation of aerobic Sewage Treatment
Plant (STP) instead of traditional septic tanks. The STP with 70 KLD installed capacity
involving Fluidized Aerobic Bio Reactor technology has been installed for the waste water
management of the Corporate Office building. In addition to sewage, the STP shall also

treat the wastewater discharged from building.

e. Grid Connected Roof top Solar Power Plant:

Under Smart City Mission, 15KWp Grid Connected rooftop Solar Power Plant has been
installed at CVPPL, CO, Rail Head Complex Jammu so as to support the National Grid by

reducing the electrical load upon.

B. Adaptation and Innovation:
a) Building Orientation: The Corporate office building design has been developed to take
advantage of the best aspects of Jammu’s climate. The Facade Optimization Principle has

been applied in design for daylight & shading according to mass and orientation so as to
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adapt for future climate change. The building mass is oriented in the east-west direction
with the larger sides facing north and south thereby minimizing solar heat gain during
summers.

b) Site Planning: Availability of larger percentage of green/open areas around the building
(i.e. about 30% of the total site area) has been achieved by adopting Vertical Expansion of
the building (both over and underground). The underground area has been fully utilized by

providing two basement floors to be used for parking of vehicles.

c) Seating Arrangement: In order to avail maximum efficiency of HVAC and for reducing
power consumption, the seating arrangement has been planned in such a way that the
closed rooms and full height cabins are placed along the outer walls/glass walls so that the
heating effect of sun light does not extend to the work stations and other open areas, which

are placed on interior side of the floors.

d) Rain Water Harvesting System: With increasing concretization, most of the rain water in
urban areas finds its way directly into the drains resulting into heavy loss of recharge
potential of otherwise non-concrete areas. Reiterating its commitment towards sustainable
development, CVPPL has opted for developing Rain Water Harvesting System for recharge
of ground water. The system has been installed with 2 Nos. Rain Water Harvesting pits of
size 2.5m dia and 3.0m effective depth with 160 (OD) UPVC slotted pipe up to a layer
where sandy aquifers/permeable layers exist.

24. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The foreign exchange transaction is summarized below:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Expenditure in foreign currency

i) Know — how Nil Nil

1)) Interest Nil Nil

i) Other Misc. Matters 3,141.89 4,825.39
Earning in foreign currency

i) Interest Nil Nil

ii) Others Nil Nil

25. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND STANDARDS:

The company has engaged M/s BAWEJA & KAUL, Chartered Accountants as consultant for
“Providing Independent Review and Assurance on existence of Internal Financial Controls

and their operating effectiveness in CVPPL. The consultant has reported that internal
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26.

financial controls are operating efficiently and effectively in the Corporate Office and Projects
of CVPPL. Further, the efficacy of internal financial control systems has also been
reported by the Statutory Auditors in Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Internal Audit of the Company including its Projects
was conducted by external agency i.e., M/s GASM DANSR and Co., Faridabad for the
F.Y. 2023-24.

TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

Training and Development has become increasingly essential to the success of modern
organisations, emphasising on improving skills, gaining knowledge, clarifying concepts and
changing attitude through structured and planned education by which the productivity and
performance of employees can be enhanced along with increasing job satisfaction, overall
development of employee and reducing employee turnover. It is a process that “strives to
build the capacity to achieve and sustain a new desired state that benefits the organization or
community and the world around them.”

Marking a step in the achievement of the above, CVPPL nominated its employees to 34
different Training Programmes / Conferences / Webinars / sessions, etc. during the Financial
Year 2023-2024 including Technical/Non-Technical and Behavioural Programs. Training
Programs on PRIMAVERA and AUTOCAD were organised through recognised CADD
Centre to upgrade and acquaint our employees with the requisite latest technologies/
innovations in the respective software’s. Employees were also imparted hands-on training to
accommodate their day-to-day working on portals like: e-office, GeM, etc. along with other
technological topics covering the concepts of Pumped Hydro Storage, Engineering
Geological Mapping, Rock Mechanics &Tunneling Techniques, EPC Contracts, NITI Aayog

Model and Construction Claims Management, to name a few.

Statutory-oriented Programs on POSH Act,2013, RTI Act and National Apprenticeship
Scheme as well as a Program on Discipline Management and Disciplinary Proceedings were
also undertaken. A three-day behavioural Training Programme on Unleashing the power of
360 degree Interpersonal Relationships was too organised through M/s FCTD (LLP), New
Delhi along with a Workshop on Health & Stress Management through M/s Sampoorna
Health Education and Research Society. 9thinternational Yoga Day was also celebrated with

great enthusiasm.
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Further, the NHPC Cadre employees, presently posted in CVPPL, were also nominated to
more than 30 different programmes, as organised by the T&HRD Cell of NHPC during the
Financial Year 2023-2024.

High appreciation and satisfactory feedback has been received in respect of above listed

programs.

Training Programme on “AUTOCAD” at CVPPL Corporate Office, Jammu
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Program on “Savings & Investment” through M/s Geojit Financial
Services Ltd.
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Program on “Benefits of Salary Account & other Banking Products of
Canara Bank”
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Training Program on “e-Office Portal”
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Training Programme on “Health & Stress Management for Enhanced

Productivity”
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Awareness Programme on “Prevention of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace Act,2013
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Training Programme on “Discipline Management and Disciplinary
Proceedings”

Discipline Management and
Disciplinary Proceedings

19 - 10° October 2013
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Training Programme on “GeM Portal”
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Awareness and Outreach Programme “Nidhi Aapke Nikat 2.0” on
Employee Provident Funds Scheme, 1952
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Training Programme on “Strategy, Energy Transition & Renewable

Energy”
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Project”
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Training Programme on “Unleashing the power of 360 degree
interpersonal relationships”

Unleashing the pewer of 350 degree
Interpertonal Relituanihigy

18° to 10" March 2014
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27.

28.

EMPLOYEES PROMOTION AND OTHER WELFARE SCHEMES, ESTT. SECTION:

A comprehensive exercise was undertaken whereby a total no. of. 34 nos. employees were
considered for Promotion from E2 to E3, S-2 to S-3 & S-1 to S-2 Grades respectively w.e.f
01.04.2024.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

HR Rules And Palicies:

HR policies are the major pillar on which the whole gamut of HR system revolves. CVPP
being at its threshold, introduced policies during the year 2023-24, as per need and
requirement aligned with the objectives of the organization. So far, CVPPL has framed HR
policies vis-a-vis Dress code, Laptop for executives, brief case, Communication expenses,
child care leave modification in multipurpose advance, modification of rates for Conveyance

Reimbursement etc.

. Details of Contract | abour deployed in CVPPL:

As on 31.03.2024, a total of 7238 nos. of contract labour have been provided employment
by various contractors (like M/s Afcons, M/s L&T, M/s JAL, M/s Voith, M/s Patel etc.) who
have been awarded works/ services contracts of CVPPL Projects /Units.

Page 75



CVPPL- Annual Report 2023-24

VPP’ CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED
LChenan vatiey | Registered Office: Chenab Jal Shakti Bhavan, Opp. Saraswati Dham, Rail Head Complex, Jammu-180012 (J&K)

Tel. No: 0191-2479531; E-mail Id: cs@cvppindia.com
CIN: U40105JK2011G0I003321

Out of 7238, a total of 6087 nos. of contract labour are from J&K. Out of these 6087
labour from J&K, 5091 are from Kishtwar District itself, including 467 nos. of contract

labour from Project affected Families.

The percentage increase in the number of Contract Labourers hired by contractors as on
31.03.2024 in comparison to the previous year (31.03.2023) is 39.13%.

Total CL provided employment |
Contract Labour from J & K |
Contract Labour from Kishtwar I
Total PAFs
Contract labour from other states I

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000 7000 8000

c. Industrial Relations:

The matters pertaining to unions of Contractual workers engaged by contractors have been
addressed through conciliation proceedings held in the office of RLC (Central), Jammu and
decision taken by Management and Board of Directors. During the year, contractual Workers
union cautioned and threatened the CVPPL management to proceed on strike and served
notice in this regard without making Contractors (their employer) a party to the dispute.

During the year, Industrial unrest prevailed at the sites of CVPPL Projects.

d. Manpower Planning:

Location wise details of all employees in CVPPL (as on 01-04-2024)
Group Cadre CcoO* Pakal Dul HEP Kiru HEP** Kwar HEP Total
A Executives 80 68 69 43 260
B Supervisors 6 23 21 10 60
C&D Workmen 3 7 0 1 11
Total 89 98 90 54 331
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e. Independence Day 2023

CVPPL CELEBRATES 77th INDEPENDENCE DAY

Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (A Joint Venture of NHPC Limited and JKSPDC)
entrusted to establish four hydro projects in the Chenab basin namely Pakal Dul (1000 MW),
Kiru (624MW), Kwar (540MW) and Kirthai-ll (930MW) with an aggregate capacity of
3094 MW celebrated the 77" Independence Day on 15th August 2023. Sh. Hasan Nadeem
Managing Director hoisted the National Flag at its corporate office, Jammu & congratulated
the employees and their families on Independence Day. In his address, he stated that we got
the independence due to the struggle and sacrifices made by our freedom fighters. India is
achieving successes in all fronts viz space, infrastructure, railways, highways, waterways
and energy sector, etc. CVPPL is working in the energy sector and it is our duty to timely
complete our assigned tasks.

In his address he further stated that the works on all fronts at Pakal Dul HE Project, Kiru HE
Project and Kwar HE project are progressing well and detailed geological exploration
works are under progress at Kirthai-Il HE Projects. He also highlighted the recent major
achievements in the construction works of all the projects. He emphasized the need to
dedicate ourselves to timely complete the milestones for early completion of Pakal Dul, Kiru
and Kwar HE Project. The completion of these projects will improve the availability of energy
in the region which will further accelerate the industrial growth of the country in general and

J&K region in particular.

CVPPL in association with Ladies Welfare Club, Jammu celebrated the occasion with the
students of Louis Braille Memorial Residential School for Sightless Girls, Jammu. Cultural
programs were also presented by the students of the school. CVPPL and Ladies Welfare
Club donated Portable PA System, LED Bulb, sports items and other kitchen utensils, etc
to the school.

On this occasion, Sh. Nadeem administered the oath of “Panch Pran” announced by Hon’ble

Prime Minister to the employees of CVPPL.

Independence Day celebrations were also held at Pakal Dul, Kiru, Kwar and Kirthai-Il HE

Projects at Kishtwar.
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A Joimt venture of NHPC Ltd. (A Gou Le) & JKSPDC Ltd. (A Govt. of J&K Enterprise)
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CVPPL 75th REPUBLIC DAY 2024

CVPPL CELEBRATES 75th REPUBLIC DAY

Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (CVPPL) entrusted to establish four hydro projects in
the Chenab basin namely Pakal Dul (1000 MW), Kiru (624MW), Kwar(540 MW) and Kirthai-I
(930MW) with an aggregate capacity of 3094 MW celebrated the 75" Republic Day on
26™ January 2024 with great pride and patriotic fervour. Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya, Managing
Director unfurled the National Flag at its Corporate Office, Jammu & congratulated the
employees and their families on Republic Day. In his address, he stated that Republic Day
is a national festival and this day is very important for all of us because the Constitution of
India was adopted by the Constituent Assembly on 26 November 1949 and it was decided
to implement it from 26" January 1950. This day is a remembrance of our faith in the

constitution and the ideas embodied in.

In his address he further stated that the works on all fronts at Pakal Dul HE Project
and Kiru HE Projects are progressing well and Civil works at Kwar HE project have also
started. He emphasized the need to dedicate ourselves for completion of Pakal Dul, Kiru and
Kwar HE Project. He stated that with hard work and dedication of our employees we shall
definitely be able to commission our three projects by the year 2026. The completion of these
projects will improve the availability of energy in the region which will further accelerate the
industrial growth of the country in general and J&K region in particular. He lauded the efforts
being put in by all employees and other workers at Kishtwar in toughest conditions to

complete the projects on schedule.

Employees posted at Corporate office, Jammu participated in the function with full
enthusiasm. Republic day celebrations were also held at Pakal Dul, Kiru, Kwar and
Kirthai-1l HE Projects at Kishtwar.
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i) CVPPL 13" FORMATION DAY 2023

Chenab Valley Power Projects Ltd. (CVPPL) celebrated its 13"Formation Day on
13" June, 2023 at Corporate Office, Jammu. CVPPL was incorporated on this day in the
year 2011 to harness the vast hydro potential of Chenab Basin in J&K.

Sh. Suresh Kumar, IAS (Retd) Chairman, Sh. Hasan Nadeem, Managing Director and
Mrs. Raheela Wani, JMD congratulated the employees and their families on this occasion.

The formation day was celebrated with enthusiasm and gaiety by distribution of sweet
packets to the employees of Corporate Office. A cultural evening was also organized on this

day for motivation of the employees. Employees and their families attended the function.

Sh. Hasan Nadeem addressed the employees and highlighted the major achievements
in the construction works of three projects namely Pakal Dul HE Project (1000 MW),
Kiru HE Project (624 MW) and Kwar HE Project (540 MW) in Kishtwar. He said that Pakal
Dul HE Project (1000 MW) and Kiru HE Project (624 MW) are expected to be commissioned
by September 2026 and March 2026 respectively.

Sh. Nadeem stressed upon the employees to work hard to achieve the assigned milestones of

the company.

Besides above, Formation Day was also celebrated with the senior citizens of the society
by donating two nos. of Room Air Coolers and Ration items to the “Home for the Aged &
Infirm”, at Ambphalla, Jammu in association with CVPPL Ladies Welfare Club, Jammu.
On this occasion, Mrs. Ursila Nadeem, President and other members of CVPPL ladies’
club interacted with the aged persons living in this Old Age Home and assured them of

continuous help by CVPPL.

29. NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN ACT:
NIL.
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30.

PROJECT MONITORING:

CVPPL is following a robust system for monitoring of the projects. Effective Monitoring forms
an essential component for preventing time and cost overruns. The monitoring of the
progress of the major works of Pakal Dul HE Project, Kiru HE Project and Kwar HE Project
are being done through project management software viz Primavera which has been
installed at C.O Jammu and Project offices Kishtwar and necessary training for acquainting
the employees to use the software effectively has also been conducted. Interfacing
schedules of the packages in primavera are also being integrated for effective monitoring
and arresting any delays due time lags between interfaced activities. The delays, if any are
being regularly communicated to the contractors so as to plan for making up the delay.
Various review meetings are being held with all stakeholders for deliberating on the
progress as well as issues of the projects for timely resolution of the same. The contractors
of all major work packages are being regularly sensitized about the targets to be achieved

and daily monitoring of the works is being ensured as per the targets.

The status of the projects is being apprised to PMO, MoP, CEA, NHPC, JKPDD, JKSPDC
and various other Central/UT Govt. Departments through status reports which are being
regularly sent at the fixed timelines i.e., Quarterly/Monthly/Weekly. Further, the status and
important issues of the company are being highlighted in various review meetings at

Central/UT Govt departments for remedial action on the issues at the earliest.

The details of the scheduled status reports sent are given below:

1. Monthly Status report of Projects/programmes/schemes inaugurated or foundation
stone laid by Hon’ble PM to MoP, Gol.

2. Quarterly/As and when desired Progress report of ongoing Prime Minister's
Development Plan (PMDP-2015) projects in J&K to MoP, Gol.

3. Monthly Updation of Complete detailed data information of Central Sector
Infrastructure Projects costing Rs. 150 Crs and above — Online Computerized
Monitoring System (OCMS) to MoSPI, Gol.

4. Monthly Updation of progress & milestone and issues on Project Monitoring Group
(PMG) portal of DPIIT, Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India.

5. Monitoring of Hydro-Electric Projects by CEA under Section 73(f) of Electricity Act
2003, monthly status to HPM, CEA.
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31.

32.

6. Monthly Status and Compliance of the conditions of Appraisal of the Projects to HPA,
CEA.

7. PRAGATI issues status to JKPDD and MoP, Gol.

8. Weekly report to MoP, Gol regarding Implementation of Cabinet Decision on e-
Samiksha Portal of Cabinet Secretariat.

9. Quarterly CCEA approval Condition compliance report to MoP, Gol.

10. Monthly Progress Report of Projects of NHPC (in r/o CVPPL) to Planning and PMSG
Divisions NHPC

11. Monthly MIS Report of CVPPL to SB&D, Planning and PMSG Divisions NHPC.

12. Monthly Status Report to JKSPDC, GoJK.

13. Monthly Status Report to JKPDD, GoJK.

14. Weekly status of CVPPL projects to Divisional Commissioner, GoJK.

15. Hydroelectric schemes concurred by CEA and yet to be taken up for construction to
HPM & HPA CEA.

16. Various other status reports sent as and when desired in the requisite format from the
statutory departments.

LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT:

The R&R Plans of Pakal Dul, Kiru and Kwar HE Projects, as approved by GoJK contain
provisions for infrastructure development in the local area with allocation of Rs. 40.00 Crs for
Pakal Dul, Rs. 28.87 Crs for Kiru and Rs. 13.54 Crs for Kwar HEP. These funds totaling to
Rs 82.41Crs is a boon for development of the remote area of Kishtwar District. The fund
has been made available to District Administration. The fund is being utilized by District
Administration for development of infrastructure of the area, which results in employment

generation and elevating the socio-economic conditions of the locals.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVES:

Information Technology is critical for the sustainable and long-term success of any
organization. CVPPL considers Information Technology as a strategic tool for the attainment
of sustainable growth and to improve overall productivity and efficiency.

Under the umbrella of Digital India Campaign, the organisation has taken various digital

initiatives viz. CVPPL has implemented e-Office of NIC as per Government guidelines at all
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33.

project locations including Corporate Office, Jammu. CVPPL has also acquired VPNs for
accessing of e-Office in remote project locations. Using digital technologies, which includes
Virtual meetings, Administration and operation of official website of CVPPL, Intranet and

webmail id’s, CVPPL is easily reachable to public, stakeholders etc.

CVPPL has taken up various other digital initiatives towards paperless working providing
greater transparency and ease of doing work. Management & Support to CVPPL
e-procurement portal including e-reverse Auction portal developed and maintained by
NIC and GeM Portal as per Govt. guidelines for optimizing the resources, to enhance the

transparency and accountability in the system.

All locations of the Company including remotely located Projects are connected to
Corporate Office through multimode communication links using MPLS-VPN / ILL and
acquiring of VSAT is also under process. CVPPL has also acquired VPNs for accessing of
e-Office in remote project locations. Acquiring of VMS (Video Management System) is
already in process for better monitoring/ management and surveillance of projects / power

stations.

Critical IT Infrastructure including servers, data storage, communication equipment etc. have
been installed at safe locations and are being managed through internal resources.
A centralised Firewall has also been implemented to protect Servers / Desktops against

Cyber threats.

CVPPL is committed towards Digitization and paperless office through IT initiatives.
The objective of digitization is to minimize time for any services/information required by
users. Further, CVPPL is continuously working to improve IT services through improved

online infrastructure and by increasing internet connectivity throughout CVPPL offices.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY POLICY:

CVPPL is committed to the concerns of its stakeholders and strives to promote and
maintain good standards of CSR and Sustainability in all its business activities. To meet
this commitment CVPPL respects the rule of law, local communities and societies at
large and it makes conscious efforts to enhance the quality of life and environmental
sustainability through its CSR & Sustainability activities.
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34.

CVPPL has formulated a CSR & Sustainability Policy in line with Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VII of the Act and Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules read with General Circulars issued on CSR by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the guidelines on Corporate Social Responsibility and
Sustainability issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).

The Policy provides for the provisions pertaining to implementation of CSR activities under

various sectors in pursuance to the applicable Acts, Rules and Guidelines.

The CSR & Sustainability Policy of CVPPL has been placed in public domain on the website
of CVPPL at the link https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.

The Statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee and an Annual Report on CSR

activities forms part of this report as Annexure-IV.

STATUS OF COURT CASES:

Breakup of sub-judice cases for the period ending March 2024.

S.No | Type of | Total Forum/Court STATUS
Litigation Number of
cases
1. | Service 7 cases pending before | Reply/objections filed.
Matters the High Court of
Jammué& Kashmir and
Ladakh.

1 pending before the | Appealfiled and admitted.
learned Deputy Chief
Labour  Commissioner,

Chandigarh.
2. Civil Suit In  District Court of | Pleadings have been
Kishtwar, J&K. completed by the parties.
Reference made u/s section
31 of J&K state Land
Acquisition Act.
Vakalatnama filed.
3. Civil  Writ 03 in the JK&L High | Pleadings have been
Petitions Court-Jammui; completed by the parties.
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4. Arbitration 01 in the Punjab and | In matter sub-judice at
Matters Haryana High Court- | Punjab and Haryana High
Chandigarh; Court at Chandigarh,
01 in JK&L High Court- _
Jammu Appeal filed wu/s 37 of

Arbitration and Conciliation
act, 1996. Stay granted to
execution proceedings
subject to deposit to Rs.78
lakhs with the claimant that
has been complied with.
Further, Collateral security
against the deposited
amount has been created
by the orders of the court in
favour of CVPPL.

In other case, the
application for appointment
of  arbitrator before High
Court of JK&L at Jammu
has been filed by the
petitioner and objections /
reply has been filed by
CVPPL (Respondent).

5. Contempt 01 in the JK&L High | In final stage as parties have
Petitions Court-Jammu completed the pleadings.
Matter partly heard.

6. Motor 01-Presiding Officer | Objections / reply has been
Accidental before MACT, Udhampur, | filed by CVPPL
Claim/ JK. (Respondent), service not
Criminal completed from Insurance

Company and notice has
been issued to Insurance
company.

35. RIGHT TO INFORMATION:
CVPPL has complied with the provisions of the Right to information Act, 2005 and RTI
applications have been duly replied to and disposed of in a time bound manner, as per the

provisions of the Act.
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ACCLAMATION:

The Board of Directors of your company places on record its sincere appreciation for
the valuable support and guidance extended by the Govt. of J&K, Ministry of Power,
Ministry of Environment & Forest and Climate Change, PMO, Central Electricity Authority,
Central Water Commission and the Promoters of CVPPL, without which the Company would
not have been able to carry out its responsibilities. We acknowledge the participation and
involvement of each one of them, solicit their continued co-operation, and support in the

future as well.

Your Directors place on record its deep gratitude for the co-operation and continued
support extended by the Statutory Auditors and the office of the Comptroller and Auditor

General of India.

Your Board of Directors deeply appreciate all the agencies of the Govt. of India and Govt.
of J&K, their officers and staff members who bravely faced the Covid pandemic and kept

the essential services operational.

Your Directors also deeply appreciate all the Employees working in CVPPL, for their

immense dedication, commitment and cooperation.

By Order of the Board of Directors
CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-
Place: Jammu Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
Dated: 09.09.2024 CHAIRMAN

DIN-06440021




Annexure-1

RAMIT MAM & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES
H.No 24/4 ROOP NAGAR JAMMU J&K 180013
Email- csrk32703@gmail.com Mob: 7006124213

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RuleNo.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

(Erstwhile CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN: U40105JK2011G0OI003321

CHENAB JAL SHAKTI BHAVAN OPPOSITE SARASWATI DHAM,
RAIL HEAD COMPLEX JAMMU J&K 180012 IN

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by the Chenab Valley Power Projects
Limited (CIN: U40105JK2011G0I1003321) (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’).

The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s statutory registers, books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with
the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinatfter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024
according to the provisions mentioned below and the Company has complied with said
provisions except mentioned there under:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

° Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.
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(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

° Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

o Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

e Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

e Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

e Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits &
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014;

e Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008);

* Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client;

e Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; and

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018,;

e Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.
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(vi)  Other laws specifically applicable to company have substantially complied
with.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards - SS-1 (related to Board Meetings) and SS-2 (related to
General Meetings) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company
o Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by
the management and subject to clarifications given to us, the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc.

| further report that:
a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted.

b) The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

C) Adequate notice was given to all directors at least seven days in advance to the
scheduled Board/Committee Meetings except in those cases where the meetings were
conducted at shorter notice. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. Majority decisions were carried through while the dissenting members’
views were captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that the compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws
such as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of
accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to
review by Statutory Auditors/CAG and other designated professionals.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company had following events, which
had bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance to above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines etc.
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Detail of allotment of Shares during the year 2023-24:

(1) The Company allotted 12,21,40,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 1,22,14,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd. on 04/04/2023.

(i)  The Company allotted 10,25,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each as fully paid
up amounting to Rs. 1,02,55,00,000 /- to NHPC Ltd. on 13/04/2023.

(i)  The Company allotted 4,28,07,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each as fully paid up
amounting to Rs. 42,80,75,000 /- to JKSPDC Ltd. on 18/07/2023.

(iv) The Company allotted 3,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 32,50,00,000 /- to JKSPDC Ltd. on 20/10/2023.

(V) The Company allotted 30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 3,00,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd. on 20/10/2023.

(vi) The Company allotted 22,59,22, 500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 2,25,92,25,000/- to JKSPDC Ltd. on 19/12/2023.

(vii) The Company allotted 7,88,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 78,81,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd. on 19/12/2023.

(vii) The Company allotted 7,51,09,999 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 75,10,99,990/- to NHPC Ltd. on 05/02/2024.

(ix) The Company allotted 01 Equity Share of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up amounting to
Rs 10/- to Sh Uday Shankar Sahi (Representative of NHPC) on 05/02/2024.

(x) The Company allotted 7,51,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- as fully paid up
amounting to Rs 75,11,00,000/- to NHPC Ltd on 09.03.2024.

For Ramit Mam & Associates
Company Secretaries

Ramit Kumar Mam

(Proprietor)

ACS No -32703; C P No: 23257

FRN: S2021JK806900

Peer Review Certificate No: 4169/2023
UDIN: A032703F000698027

Place: Jammu
Date: 09.07.2024

This Report is to be read with Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this report.
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RAMIT MAM & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES
H.No 24/4 ROOP NAGAR JAMMU J&K 180013
Email- csrk32703@gmail.com Mob: 7006124213

Annexure A
To
The Members
CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN: U40105JK2011G0OI003321
CHENAB JAL SHAKTI BHAVAN OPPOSITE SARASWATI DHAM,
RAIL HEAD COMPLEX JAMMU J&K 180012 IN

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

T Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records
during the period of my audit. The audit process was carried on the basis of documents,
reports and records made available to me, which were relied upon as audit evidence for
conducting the audit.

3: The verification was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the process and practices, | followed
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about list of
applicable laws, compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations and standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test check basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ramit Mam & Associates
Company Secretaries

Ramit Kumar Mam

(Proprietor)

ACS No -32703; C P No: 23257

FRN: S2021JK806900

Date:09.07.2024 Peer Review Certificate No: 4169/2023
Place: Jammu UDIN: A032703F000698027

Page 105



Annexure - |

Form No. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions

including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or NIL

transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(9) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NHPC Limited (Promotor)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Consultancy Charges

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions As per Consultancy Agreement(s)

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions | Consultancy Charges

including the value, if any: (Rs. 24,56,45,149/- plus GST @18% for F.Y.
2023-24)

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: As per Agreement dated 11.06.2013 (Kiru &
Kwar HEP), 09.01.2017 (PakalDul HEP) and
19.03.2021 (Kirthai-Il HEP).

() Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-
SURESH KUMAR-IAS (RETD.)
Dated :Jammu CHAIRMAN
Place :09.09.2024 DIN — 06440021

Page 106



Annexure-lll

Ltr No: AMG-II Wing/2024-2025/DIS-1897462
Date: 01 Aug 2024
To,

The Managing Director,
Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Ltd.
Head Office, Jammu

Subject: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the accounts of Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Limited for the year ended on 31 March 2024
(PR-116113)

Sir/Madam,

I am to forward herewith the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Limited for the year ended on 31 March
2024 for being placed before the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The date of holding Annual General
Meeting and minutes of meeting may please be furnished to this office.

Yours faithfully,

Encls: As above

JAGBIR SINGH
Dy. Accountant General

Copy to:-
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143 (6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS P)
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Limited
for the year ended on 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
under Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 are responsible for expressing opinion on
these financial statements under Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 based on
independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 07
May 2024.

[, on the behalf of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under Section 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the financial
statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects Private Limited for the year ended on 31 March
2024. The supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’
report under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
Principal Accountant General
Jammu and Kashmir
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Annexure -IV
Form MGT -9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

) CIN (Company Incorporation Number) : U40105JK2011G0I003321

i) Registration Date : 13/06/2011

i) Name of the Company . CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company . Company Limited by Shares / India Non-

Government Company

v)  Address of the Registered office and contact : Chenab Jal Shakti Bhawan, Opposite Saraswati
details Dham, Rail Head Complex, 180012-J&K

vi)  Whether Listed Company : No

vii)  Name, Address and Contact details of the : NA

Registrar and Transfer agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

S.No. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
Product / service of the Company
1. Energy (Hydro Power) Electric Power Generation by 35101 100

Hydroelectric Power Plants

Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.No. | Name and Address of the | CIN/ GLN Holding / % of Applicable
Company Subsidiary /| shares held Section
Associate
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

D
«w
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V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares at the end of the year %
Shareholders the year 01.04.2023 31.03.2024 Change
during
the year

De Physical Total % of | Dem Physical Total % of
mat Total | at Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters

Indian

a) Individual / HUF | NIL 4 4 0.00 - 4 4 0.00 NIL
b) Central Govt - - - -

c) State Govt (5) - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. - | 3692391282 | 3692391282 | 100 | NIL | 4450341282 | 4450341282 | 100
e) Bank / FI - - - - - - -

f) Any Other

_— =

~— —

Sub Total NIL | 3692391286 | 3692391286 4450341286 | 4450341286 | 100 NIL
(A (D)~

(2) Foreign NIL NIL NIL NIL | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

a) NRI's —
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other ....

Sub - Total (A) (2) NIL

Total - | 3692391286 | 3692391286 | 100 | NIL | 4450341286 | 4450341286 | 100 NIL
Shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

ADL)+HAN2)

B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions NIL

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture Capital
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Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (Specify)

Sub - Total NIL
(B)(1) -

2. Non - NIL
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding  nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 Lac

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding  nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lac

c) Others (Specify)

Sub - Total - NIL
(B)(2) -

Total Public | - NIL
Shareholding

(B)=(B)1) + (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total - | 3692391286 | 3692391286 | 100 | NIL | 4450341286 | 4450341286 | 100 NIL
(A+B+C)
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(i)

Shareholding of Promoters

S. No. | Shareholder’s| Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholder’s | Share holding at the end of
Name of the year Name the year
No. of Shares | % of total |% of Shares No. of Shares |% of total % of %
Shares of | Pledged/ Shares of| Shares | change
the encumbered the Pledged/ | in share
Company to total Company | encumber | holding
shares edtototal | during
shares | the year
01. J&K Power 1744999999 | 47.26 NIL J&K Power | 2046229999 | 45.98 NIL (1.28)
Development Development
Corporation Corporation Ltd.
Limited
02. AK. Choudhary 1 0.00 NIL Rajat  Gupta 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative (Representative
of NHPC) of NHPC)
03. NHPC Limited | 1947391283 52.74 NIL NHPC Limited 2404111282 | 54.02 NIL 1.28
04. Suresh Kumar 1 0.00 NIL Suresh Kumar 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative (Representative of
of JKSPDCL) JKSPDCL)
05. Y.K. Chaubey 1 0.00 NIL Raj Kumar 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative Chaudhary
of NHPC) (Representative of
NHPC)
06. R.P.Goyal 1 0.00 NIL R.P. Goyal 1 0.00 NIL NIL
(Representative (Representative of
of NHPC) NHPC)
Uday Shankar 1 0.00 NIL NIL
Sahi
(Representative of
NHPC)
Total Shares | 3692391286 100 NIL 4450341286 | 100 NIL NIL
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(ili) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S.No. Shareholding in the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during
year the year
No. of Shares % of total | No.of Shares | % of total shares
shares of the of the Company
Company
At the beginning of | 3692391286 100 4450341286 100
the year
Date wise Increase | Allotment of Additional
| Decrease in Equity Shares to the

Promoters Share tune of Rs 3012300000
holding the year to JKSPDC Ltd. &

specifying the Rs 4567200000 to NHPC
reasons for Ltd., during the vyear
increase / decrease | 2023-24. Total Additional
(e.g. allotment / Allotment during the Year

transfer / bonus / 2023-24 Rs. 7579500000.
sweat equity etc.) (757950000 Equity Shares)

At the End of the 3692391286 100 4450341286 100
year

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

S Shareholding in the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. year year
For Each of the | No. of Shares % of total shares | No. of Shares % of total shares
Top 10 of the Company of the Company

Shareholders
At the beginning of | NIL
the year
Date wise Increase / | NIL
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.q.
allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity

etc.):
At the End of the year
(or on the date of
separation, if
separated during the
year)
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(V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
S.No.| Name of the Director’s & Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
KMP of the year (as on 01.04.2023) the year (01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024)
A Directors No. of % of total shares No. of Shares | % of total Shares
Shares of the Company of the Company
1. | Sh. Suresh Kumar, IAS (Retd.) 1 1
(On behalf of JKSPDC)
2. | Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS
(On behalf of JKSPDC)
3. | Sh. Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS
(On behalf of JKSPDC)
4. | Sh.R.P. Goyal 1 1
(On behalf of NHPC)
5. | Sh. Vijay Kumar Sinha
(On behalf of NHPC)
6. | Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya
(On behalf of NHPC)
7. | Smt. Madhusmita Pany
(On behalf of NHPC)
B KMP
Sh. Sudhir Anand
(Company Secretary)
V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured | Deposits | Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits Loans

Indebtedness at the beginning of NIL NIL NIL

the financial year

i) Principal Amount - - -

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not paid due

Total (i+ii+ii)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager:

S.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / Name of MD / Total Amount
WTD / Manager | WTD / Manager inRs.
Managing Managing
Director - Director -
Sh. Hasan Sh. Ramesh
Nadeem Mukhiya
(01.04.2023 to (05.12.2023 to
04.12.2023) 31.03.2024)
1. Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions 44,04,963 26,61,711 70,66,674
contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961*
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 7,950 2,17,808 2,25,758
Income Tax Act, 1961
¢) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act,
1961
2. Fee for attending Meeting NIL
3. Stock Option NIL
4, Sweat Equity NIL
5. Commission NIL
- as % of Profit NIL
(PF Contribution from Employer)
- others, specify....
6. Others, please specify** 6,79,510 2,98,497 9,78,007
Total (A) 50,92,423 31,78,016 82,70,439
Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA

* Salary under Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 includes Performance Related Pay (PRP), Gratuity and EL Encashment
paid as per respective position held by the directors during that period.
* QOthers include EPF, Social Security Scheme & Pension Fund Contribution by employer and medical reimbursement (non-taxable)
etc. which were not included in point no. (1).




13" Annual Report
C VPP’ g
Chenab Valley 2023_24
B. Remuneration to other Directors:
S. No. Particulars of Name of MD / WTD / Manager Total Amount
Remuneration
1. Independent Directors - - - - NIL
* Fee for attending board - - - - NIL
committee meetings
* Commission - - - - NIL
* Others, please specify - - - - NIL
NIL
Total (1) - - - - NIL
2. Other Non — Executive Sh. Suresh - - - NIL
Directors Kumar
(Chairman)
Fee for attending board 23,25,792 - - - NIL
committee meetings
Commission - - - - NIL
Others, please specify - - - - NIL
- as % of Profit - - - - NIL
*others, specify....
Total (2)
Total (B) = (1+2) 23,25,792 - - - -
Total Managerial 23,25,792 - - - NIL
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the - - - - NIL
Act
* Remuneration w.e.f 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 (including GST under RCM).
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / MANAGER / WTD
S.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary Total
(Sudhir Anand)
1. Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) 25,00,287
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income — tax Act, 1961 6,983
¢) Profits in lieu of Salary under Section 17(3) Income - - NIL
tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - NIL
3. Sweat Equity - - NIL
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4, Commission NIL
- as % of Profit NIL
- others, specify
5. Others, please specify* 2,58,254
Total 27,65,524

VII.

Place:

included in point no. (1).

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

* Others include leave encashment, medical reimbursement, EPF, Social Security Scheme Contribution etc. which were not

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty / | Authority [RD | Appeal made, if
Companies Act | Description Punishment / INCLT/ any (give
Compounding Count] Details)
Fees imposed
A COMPANY
Penalty NIL
Punishment | NIL
Compounding | NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL
Punishment | NIL
Compounding | NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL
Punishment | NIL
Compounding | NIL
By Order of the Board of Directors
CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED
Sd/-
Jammu Suresh Kumar-IAS, (Retd.)
CHAIRMAN

Date : 09.09.2024

DIN-06440021
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROIJECTS LIMITED

-CVPP’
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Power Projects (P) Ltc_:lj

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

(FY 2023-24)

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
(FY 2023-24)




1.Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
CVPPL is committed to the concerns of its stakeholders and strives to promote and maintain
good standards of CSR and Sustainability in all its business activities. To meet this
commitment CVPPL respects the rule of law, local communities and societies at large and it
makes conscious efforts to enhance the quality of life and environmental sustainability
through its CSR & Sustainability activities.

CSR & Sustainability Policy of CVPPL forms the basis of conducting CVPPL’s business in a
socially responsible manner with the aim to integrate the objectives of hydro power
development and long term growth of the Company with social responsibility and
sustainability by maintaining high level of organizational integrity and ethical behaviour, in
conformity with expected standards of transparency in reporting and disclosing the
performance in all spheres of activities and by understanding and addressing the social,
economic and environmental concerns of key stakeholders directly impacted by Company’s
operations and activities.

Board of CVPPL, approved the CSR and Sustainability Policy of CVPPL, in pursuance to the
provisions contained under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Policy provides for the provisions pertaining to implementation of CSR activities under
various sectors in pursuance to the Companies Act 2013, Schedule VII of the Act, CSR Rules
and amendments thereof.

The CSR & Sustainability Policy of CVPPL has been placed in public domain on the website of
CVPPL at the link https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.

Highlights of the Policy
The budget provision for CSR & Sustainability works for a financial year will be 2% of the
average net profits made by CVPPL during the three immediately preceding financial years.

Average net profit of the Company shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013, as amended.

Being a hydro power developer, CVPPL will undertake CSR & Sustainability activities
primarily near to its projects/power stations or Corporate Office. It will be ensured that at
least 80% of the CSR & Sustainability activities are executed in and around CVPPL’s Projects,
Power Stations and Offices preferably within 25 Km and in the District where the Project is
located. However, other locations beyond 25 Km may also be chosen, based on the needs
and as per the direction of Government of India on National Schemes / Campaigns, wherein
upto 20% amount of CSR Budget may be spent, for the Ilarger benefit of
society/environment.

The CSR activities shall be undertaken by CVPPL in accordance with Schedule-VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Expenditure on any other activity/item not in conformity with Schedule-VIl of the
Companies Act 2013, as amended from time to time, will not be accounted towards CSR
expenditure.

EPa%e 1 0%1% %
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CSR Fund Allocation and Expenditure by CVPPL (year-wise) :

Year Basis of Allocation as Percentage of Profit Mandat.ory Fund Actual Expenditure
Allocation (Rs.) (Rs.)
2017-18 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 6,94,928.00 6,98,460.00
2018-19 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 12,39,193.00 12,39,820.00
2019-20 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 22,54,878.00 13,11,553.00
2020-21 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 29,43,495.00 42,47,040.00
2021-22 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 26,49,830.00 * 3,11,627.00
2022-23 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 22,13,210.00%* 29,66,074.00***
2023-24 2% of average Net Profit of previous three years 34,57,000.00# 24,97,711.00##
Total 1,54,52,534.00 1,32,72,285.00

*An amount of Rs. 1,20,073.00 was approved by the Board for setting off against the requirement to
spend in FY 2021-22. After setting off Rs. 1,20,073.00 from the 2% of average net profit of preceding
three financial years (i.e. Rs. 26,49,830.00) the net CSR obligation for FY 2021-22 was Rs.
25,29,757.00.

** An amount of Rs. 1,20,073.00 was approved by the Board for setting off against the requirement to
spend in FY 2022-23. After setting off Rs. 1,20,073.00 from the 2% of average net profit of preceding
three financial years (i.e. Rs. 22,13,210.00) the net CSR obligation for FY 2022-23 was Rs.
20,93,137.00.

***This includes the expenditure of Rs. 20,65,195.00 towards CSR activities of FY 2022-23, Rs. 27,942.00
transferred to Prime Minister’s Relief Fund and Rs. 8,72,937.00 incurred towards CSR activities
(ongoing projects) of FY 2021-22 from unspent amount of FY 2021-22.

#An amount of Rs. 1,20,073.00 was approved by the Board for setting off against the requirement to
spend in FY 2023-24. After setting off Rs. 1,20,073.00 from the 2% of average net profit of preceding
three financial years (i.e. Rs. 34,57,466.00) the net CSR obligation for FY 2023-24 was Rs.
33,37,392.00.

## This includes the expenditure of Rs. 14,70,000.00 towards CSR activities of FY 2023-24, Rs. 5,000.00
transferred to Prime Minister’s Relief Fund and Rs. 10,22,711.00 incurred towards CSR activities
(ongoing projects) of FY 2021-22 from unspent amount of FY 2021-22.

Sector wise CSR Expenditure by CVPPL (year-wise):

Expenditure (in Rs.)
Reducin in-
Year Education Healthcare Women equalitiegs faced Disaster C::t(:‘ll:::iat:n Total
Sector Sector Empowerment by socially[Management Govt. Funds
backward groups
2017-18 6,68,560.00 29,900.00 0.00; 0.00 6,98,460.00
2018-19 7,85,234.000 4,54,586.00 0.00 0.00 12,39,820.00
2019-20 7,72,517.00 39,000.00| 1,24,125.00 1,76,229.00  1,99,682.00 13,11,553.00
2020-21 14,66,668.00 25,81,132.00 0.00 1,99,240.00 42,47,040.00
2021-22 0.00] 3,11,627.00, 0.00; 0.00 3,11,627.00
2022-23 0.00] 29,38,132.00 0.00 0.00] 0.000 27,942.00 29,66,074.00
2023-24 0.00] 24,92,711.00 0.00 0.00] 0.00 5,000.00 24,97,711.00
Total 36,92,979.00, 88,47,088.00 1,24,125.00 1,76,229.00 3,98,922.000 32,942.00 1,32,72,285.00
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CSR Activities implemented in FY 2023-24:

Annual Action Plan on CSR for FY 2023-24 was approved by the Board of CVPPL wherein
following CSR activities were proposed to be undertaken in FY 2023-24 with an estimated
outlay of Rs. 34,57,000 (Rupees Thirty-Four Lakh Fifty-Seven Thousand only), to be directly
implemented by CVPPL Projects in their respective areas in compliance to the theme
notified by Government of India 'Health and Nutrition', after following all codal formalities
and guidelines.

. L. Estimated Cost
Project CSR Activity X
in (Rs.)
1. Organising medical camps and providing health facilities in
_ . 12,00,000.00
the areas far from District HQ, Kishtwar.
PakalDul HE
. 2. Developmental works at PHC Dachchan (Purchase of lab
Project . . . 2,57,000.00
items/kits/Rapid test cards)
Total 14,57,000.00
1. Specialized camp-01 no. and distribution of medicines &
2,57,100.00
health supplements
2. Providing basic medical equipment to PHC Kiru- 01 no. Bio
. . . 6,23,720.00
Kiru HE Project| Chemistry Analyzer
3. Awareness campaign- Installation of Banners on preventive
1,19,180.00
health care
Total 10,00,000.00
Providing Medical Health Equipment to District Hospital
Kishtwar-01 no. Computed Radiography (CR) system for X | 10,00,000.00
Kwar HEP
Ray
Total 10,00,000.00
Grand Total 34,57,000.00

The above CSR activities were initially approved to be directly implemented by the Projects
themselves, however, the amount of Rs. 12,00,000/- allocated for the activity no. 01 of
“Organising medical camps and providing health facilities in the areas far from District HQ,
Kishtwar” byPakalDul HEP was transferred to the official bank account of District
Development Commissioner, Kishtwar on 22™ February, 2024. Certification with regard to
utilisation of the funds for the stated cause has been received from District Commissioner,
Kishtwar.

Further, it is worth mentioning that the above CSR activities were approved as a single-year
activity for implementation in FY 2023-24 and involved the purchase of Medical Equipment
/ Medicines & health supplements, wherein the specifications of the Medical Equipment
were to be decided by an Official of the rank of CMO from the Administration of the
concerned area. Further, the tendering procedure for making purchase of the Medical
Equipment / Medicines & health supplements also takes due time for successful
completion. Due to the involvement of time-lagging procedures, the above cited CSR
activities of Kiru & Kwar HEPs could not be completed within the prescribed time-frame of
the financial year 2023-24.Kiru HEP had placed the supply order for the equipment /
medicines / health supplements on 28™ March,2024 but the delivery of the same could not
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be made till 31* March,2024. Moreover, Kwar HEP had also initiated the tendering process
for procurement of the medical equipment which was ought to take considerate time for
successful completion.

Subsequently, the Board reviewed the status of implementation of the CSR activities and
approved extension in time duration for implementation of the activities and thus approved
the activities as Ongoing Activity with year-wise allocation of the funds. Out of the allocated
budget, an amount of Rs. 14,70,000.00 was spent in FY 2023-24. The unspent amount of Rs.
19,82,000.00 in respect of Kiru and Kwar HEPs was transferred into “CVPPL Unspent CSR
Account for FY 2023-24” within the specified time period of thirty days from the end of
financial year. The unspent amount shall be spent, within the stipulated time period, in
pursuance to the applicable CSR norms and the CSR Policy of CVPPL. Further, the unspent
amount of Rs. 5,000.00 in respect of PakalDul HEP have been transferred to Prime
Minister’s National Relief Fund, a Fund specified in Schedule VII, on o6™ May, 2024.

The photographs of implementation of the CSR activity in FY 2023-24by PakalDul and Kiru
HEP’s are provided in Appendix-1 and the list of items handed over to BMO, Dachchan in
pursuance to activity no. 02 of PakalDul is detailed in Appendix-2.The implementation of
approved activities was duly monitored by the Departmental Monitoring Committees
constituted at Project Level and also by the Nodal Officer (CSR) in pursuance to the CSR
Policy of CVPPL. Further, the funds allocated for FY 2023-24 have been utilised for the purpose
and in the manner as approved by the Board.

Composition of CSR Committee:

In pursuance to Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, the requirement for constitution of
CSR Committee is not applicable to CVPPL and as such the functions of CSR Committee are
being discharged by the Board of CVPPL.

A CSR committee of the Board comprising of below members is looking after the works of
CSR of CVPPL:

S.No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship
Chai
1. Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS . alrm'an
(Nominee Director)
Memb
2. Sh. R. P. Goyal . em 'er
(Nominee Director)
. Member
3. Sh. Ramesh Mukhiya

(Managing Director)

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

The CSR Policy and other details are placed in public domain on the website of CVPPL at the
link https://www.cvppindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.
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4. Provide the details of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub
rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report):

Not applicable.
5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
Rs. 17,28,73,282.00
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
Rs. 34,57,466.00
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years:
Rs. Nil.
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:
Rs. 1,20,074.00 (However, for the benefit of the local populace and generate Goodwill
for CVPPL in Kishtwar area, the total allocation of Rs. 34,57,000.00, as per the estimated
cost of the activities, was approved by the Board for the Annual Action Plan on CSR for
FY 2023-24.
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:
Rs.33,37,392.00
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Project (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):

Rs. 14,70,000.00

(b) Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 14,70,000.00

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount| Total Amount transferred to| Total Amount transferred to any fund
spent for the| Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VIl as per second
Financial Year| sub-section (6) of section 135. | Proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135.
in Rs.
fin Rs.) Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
u u
transfer Fund transfer

PM’s National
14,70,000.00 | 19,82,000.00 | 30/04/2024 _ 5,000.00 | 06/05/2024

Relief Fund
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(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Amount
S. No. Particular .
(inRs.)
(1) (2) (3)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub section (5) of section 135. NA
(i) | Total Amount spent for the Financial Year NA
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] NA
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial NA
years, if any.
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NA

NA: Not Applicable

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years

Amount Amount transferred to a fund as
transferred Balance fied und hedul Amount
ransferre . .
to Unspent Amountin | Amount | SPe€d (I:Ie under Sc eb ule Y" as Perf remalning
orecedin CSR Unspent spentin | Secon provn.so tf3ssu . s:ctlon (5) o to be
S. Financialg Account |CSR Account the section 135 (in Rs.) spentin | peficiency
No. under sub | undersub | Financial succeeding | jf any
Year ion (6) | section (6) | Year (in Financial
SeCtIOn.( ) f secti Rs.) Name of | Amount Date of Years (in
of se.ctlon © se.c on the Fund (inRs.) transfer Rs.)
135 (in Rs.) | 135 (in Rs.)
1 2020-21 - - - - - - -
Shall be
PM’s
3,46,846, t f d
2 | 202122 | 2242498 | 1369557 | 1022711 | National | 4¢84/ ransbj"e } )
Relief Fund 30/09/2024.
PM's trasntsafr::ed
3 2022-23 - - National 27,942/- - -
Relief Fund on
22/09/2023.

8. Whether any capital asset have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the financial year: NO

If yes, enter the number of capital assets created / acquired.

Furnish the details relating to such assets(s) so created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year.

SI. Short particulars of the Pin code of the Date of | Amount of CSR | Details of entity / Authority /
No. property or assets(s) property or creation | amount spent | beneficiary of the registered
[including complete asset(s) owner

address and location of the
property]
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
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(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,
Municipal office / Municipal Corporation / Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the
area of the immovable as well as boundaries)

NA: Not Applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5):

The activities approved under Annual Action Plan on CSR involved the purchase of Medical
Equipment / Medicines & health supplements, wherein the specifications of the Medical
Equipment were to be decided by an Official of the rank of CMO from the Administration of
the concerned area. Further, the tendering procedure for making purchase of the Medical
Equipment / Medicines & health supplements through GeM Portal also takes due time for
successful completion. Kiru HEP has already placed the supply order for the equipment /
medicines / health supplements on 28 March,2024 and the delivery of the same was not
made till 31t March,2024. However, Kwar HEP has initiated the tendering process for
procurement of the medical equipment which shall take considerate time for completion.
As such, the above cited CSR activities of Kiru & Kwar HEPs could not be completed works
within the prescribed time-frame of the financial year 2023-24. The Annual Action Plan on
CSR has been amended by the Board and the activity has been approved as Ongoing
Activity with extension of its implementation schedule.

H. Rajesh Kumar, IAS Rames hiya

Chairman, CSR Committee Managing Dire y

g
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Appendix-01
Photographs of CSR Activity in FY 2023-24

Handing over of Healthcare items to BMO Kishtwar, for PHC Dachhan by PakalDul HEP,
CVPPL, Kishtwar in the presence of CMO-Kishtwar, HOP- PakalDul HEP, Senior Officers of
CVPPL and Health Department on 29" March,2024.
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Appendix-01

K& GPS Map Camera GPS Map Camera

(ﬂ\ null, null, null
\/ IkhalaRd, 182204
Vo Lat3344339°
Long 75.804025°
23/05/23 01:46 PM GMT +06:30

T ST ey . e

< null, null, null
- Ikhala Rd, 182204
Lat 33.445139°
Long 75.798714°
23/05/23 02:28 PM GMT +05:30

Govt. Girls Middle School Ekhala, Village Sounder

Latitude: 33.458851
Longitude: 75.724376.
Altitude: 1246,5:25m
Accuracy: 14.6m
FAzimuth: 29" (NE)
Piteh: 7.1°¢1.6") 4
Time: 05-27-2023 1 .
Note: Govt School Kerod 0 L sl e e Note: Goit Sehool Karoor

Govt. Primary School Karoor, Village Sounder

Govt. Middle School Khripokhnoo, Village Lopara, (Dachhan) Govt. Middle School Pinjari, Village Sounder (Dachhan)
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Appendix-01

Govt. Middle School Ekhala, Village Sounder

Govt. Primary School Karoor, Village Sounder

Repair / Renovation of toilets in Schools under Ongoing CSR Activities for the FY 2021-22
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_—— KIRU HYDR
bhot on OnePlu: X \ — e e ———
owered by Trij 2 \ =

Banners/Hoardings installed by Kiru HEP, CVPPL, Kishtwar at various locations within the
vicinity of the Project for information and awareness amongst the masses
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Appendix-02

List of items handed over to BMO, Kishtwaron request under compliance to CSR Activity no.

02 of PakalDul HEP, CVPPL Kishtwar for FY 2023-24

NO. ITEMS QUANTITY
1 Widal Test Kit 4*5ML 15
2 CRP Kit (50T) 10
3 R.A. Factor Kit (SOT) 6
4 Glucometer Digital/Accusure Plus Meter 10
5 Glucometer Strips/Accusure Plus Strips (100T) 5
6 Blood Grouping Set(ABO) 10
7 HB Meter strips (50T) 10
8 3P Appratus Digital/Monitor 5
9 ESR Pippete (100 Nos.)

10 HB Meter Digital 10
11 Micropipette 50-1000 UL 4
12 Micropipette 5-500 UL 4
13 Pregnancy Kit 1000
14 HCV Kit (50T) 100
15 HIV Kit (SOT) 200
16 HBSAG Kit 200
17 VDRL Kit/ Syphlis card oscar 200
18 Leshman Stain Regent (500 ml)/Cytochrome kit 4
19 3.8% Sodium Citrate Tube 1000
20 EDTA Tube 1000
21 Red Top 1000
22 ASO Titer 1
23 Urine Strip 500
24 Timer Clinical/Electronic Timer Digital

25 Pippts Stand 4
26 Serum Uric Acid 200ml 2
27 Micro Tips Big/MTL Large 10
28 Micro Tips Small/Mtl Small 10
29 Riya Viles/Tube 5000
30 Stethoscope 6
31 HB Meter(Shiles Methods) 5
32 Distilled Water 1 Lit. 50
33 N/10 HCL (Bottle) 6
34 Trop T Kit 15
35 Paper Roll/Thermal Paper Roll 100
36 Sprit | Lit. Bottle 10
37 Cotton 20
38 Glucometer Lancet IOONos. 5
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Subject: Certificate as per the provisions of sub-section (5) of Section 4 of the Companies (CSR Policy)

Amendment Rules, 2021.

As per the provisions of sub-section (5) of Section 4 of the Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules,
2021, it is hereby certified that amount of Rs.24, 97,711 (Rupees Twenty-four Lakhs Ninety-seven
Thousand Seven Hundred and Eleven only) has been utilised on CSR activities in the FY 2023-24 by
CVPPL for the propose and in the manner as approved by the Board of CVPPL. The details are as under:

Ongoing Project Other than Ongoing
Project
Name of Unspent Amount Balance Total Amount Total Amount
Project Amount of | utilised in Unspent Amount utilised in utilised in FY 2023-
FY 2021-22 | FY 2023-24 | Amount allocated for | FY 2023-24 | 24(Rs.)
(Rs.) (Rs.) of FY FY 2023-24 | (Rs.)
2021-22 | (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Pakal Dul 12,68,729 10,22,711 2,46,018 14,57,000 14,57,000 24,79,711
HEP
Kiru HEP 1,00,828 - 1,00,828 10,00,000 18,000 18,000
Kwar HEP - - - 10,00,000 - -
Total 13,69,557 10,22,711 3,46,846 34,57,000 14,75,000 24,97,711
Corporate Officer, CVPPL
Dated:- s
DL )
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Annexure-VI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRYSTRUCTUREAND DEVELOPMENT

Submitted during 2022-23

Proposed for 2023-24

India, being one of the fastest growing economy on the

Globe needs to develop adequate, sustainable,
economic, reliable and power system friendly energy
sources for meeting rising demand as well as future
energy security. Harshening potential hydro power is
important not only as a vital source of renewable
electricity but as also most flexible resource, to play
crucial role in optimum utilization of other renewable
energy as well as conventional energy sources. India
is endowed with enormous economically exploitable
and viable hydroelectric potential and has witnessed a
robust growth in power sector since independence.
The total all India installed capacity as on 31.03.2023

is as under:

All India installed capacity (IN MW) of power stations as
on 31/03/2023

Renewable Grand
ran
Installed |Thermal Nucl Total
capacity Hydro RES uclear
(IN MW) [237268.91[46850.17 [125159.81| 6780.00 |416058.89
(In%) |[57.0% |11.3% [30.1% |1.6%

Source: National Power Portal

The Indian power sector has come a long way in the

past decade, transforming from a power-deficit to a

India is fortunate to be endowed with all the
primary energy sources such as coal,
hydropower, uranium/ thorium, etc. However,
among these, hydropower is the only
renewable source of energy and has been
recognized as economical and a preferred
source of electricity due to its various

benefits.  Development of hydropower
resources is important for energy security of
the country. Hydropower is a renewable,
economic and non-polluting source of energy.
Hydropower stations have inherent ability of
quick starting, stopping and load variations
offering operational flexibility and help in
improving reliability of power system. Hydro
stations are the best choice for meeting the
peak demand. The generation cost is not only
inflation-free  but reduces with time.
Hydroelectric projects have long useful life
extending over 50 years and help in
conserving scarce fossil fuels. They also help
in opening of avenues for development in
remote and backward areas.

All India installed power generation capacity

as on 31.03.2024 was 4,41,970 MW with
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power-surplus nation. A series of concerted measures
led to a 49.8% increase in generation capacity — from
275 GW in March, 2015 to ~416 GW in March, 2023.
The major capacity addition is of wind and solar energy
based plants that stood around 30.1% of total All India

installed capacity.

Hydropower assumes greater importance to provide
stability to the electric grid due to the intermittent
availability of solar and wind to produce power. In
addition to reducing carbon emissions, Local area
development, providing employment opportunities,
hydropower energy provides additional benefits from
storage projects like flood moderation, Irrigation,
tourism etc. besides water and energy security in long

term.

Jammu & Kashmir is bestowed with an estimated
hydro-power potential, out of which 13,802 MW has
already been identified by Central Electricity Authority.
The Hydropower Generation Capacity on the UT of
J&K is expected to double in next 3 years from the
existing capacity of 3500 MW, which will make J&K

power surplus.

To contribute to the capacity augmentation in UT of
J&K, your Company is executing PakalDul, Kiru, Kwar
& Kirthai-1l Hydroelectric Project (3094 MW) in UT of
J&K. CVPPL projects are of run-of-river scheme over
River Chenab and falls under the Indus Water Treaty
1960 between The CVPPL

projects, all together have an installed capacity of 3094

India and Pakistan.

MW and shall generate more that 10,000 million units

contribution of 2,43,217 MW, 8,180 MW, and
1,90,573 MW from Thermal,

Renewable

Nuclear and
power wherein
contribution of Hydro was 46,928 MW. A

capacity addition of 18980 MW was targeted

respectively,

during the year 2023-24 comprising 14700
MW of thermal, 2880 MW of hydro power and
1400 MW nuclear power. Capacity addition of
7646 MW comprising 6168 MW of thermal, 78
MW of hydro power and 1400 MW nuclear
power to 31.03.2024
besides addition of 18485 MW of RE
including SHP. (Source# CEA website).

As regards hydro potential, India has an

was achieved up

estimated hydro power potential of about
1,50,000 MW out of which only about
46928 MW (as on 31.03.2024) has been
commissioned. The bulk of the unharnessed
potential is located in the hill states/UTs of
Arunachal Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Himachal
Pradesh, Sikkim and Jammu & Kashmir. With
fast increase in installed capacity of solar
power, which is diurnal in nature, hydropower
with its peaking power has huge potential to
contribute towards grid stability.

Hydropower assumes greater importance to
provide stability to the electric grid due to the
intermittent availability of solar and wind to
produce power. In addition to reducing carbon
emissions, Local area development, providing
employment

opportunities, hydropower
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in a 90 per cent dependable year.

energy provides additional benefits from

storage projects like flood moderation,
Irrigation, tourism etc. besides water and
energy security in long term. The above
industry scenario signifies that there is ample
opportunity for consistent growth of business

in hydro sector.

Il. STRENGTH

Submitted during 2022-23

Proposed for 2023-24

We believe that the following are the primary

competitive strengths of the Company:

As per clause 8.2 (sharing of Benefits) of
Supplementary Promoters Agreement dated
21.11.2022 signed between NHPC Limited,
JKSPDCL & PPD, Govt. of Jammu & Kashmir
reproduced as under:

“The GoJK shall get 12% free power generated
from the projects. An additional 1% free power for
local area development fund shall also be provided
by the company. The fund shall be operated as per
the guidelines issued in the Hydro Power Policy
2008.

GoJK would have the right to purchase power from

Further, out of balance 87% power, the

the company in proportion to the share of JKSPDC
in equity of the company at the price determined as
per regulatory norms. After this, the balance power
will be sold by NHPC and PTC at the market price
to the purchaser with the first right of refusal being

given to Jammu and Kashmir Power Development

CVPPL is developing four mega projects on
river Chenab and its tributaries and have
gained wide experience and expertise in
development of large hydro power projects.
Being the subsidiary company of NHPC, the
valuable guidance of premier hydro company
of India is being lent to CVPPL for complete
design of hydro power projects, large value
contract award etc.

CVPPL has competent and committed
workforce. In terms of Articles of Association
of the Company, the manpower required for
the implementation of CVPPL Projects shall
be provided or lend to the Company on
secondment/ transfer/ deputation basis by
NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State
Power Development Corporation Limited
(JKSPDCL). The workforce deputed by
NHPC and JKSPDC has

experience in the

extensive
industry and are

strengthening the cadre of CVPPL with
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Department”.

Status of Power purchase agreements

PakalDul HE Project (1000 MW) and Kwar HE
Project (540 MW):

JKPCL vide its letters dated 06.03.2023 &
08.03.2023 has intimated that the quantum of
power @350 MW from PakalDul and @100 MW
from Kwar HEP (exclusive of 12% Free Power and
1% for LADF) has been approved by Finance
Department and State Administrative Council
(SAC) of UT of J&K

Accordingly, CVPPL has approached to other
States / DISCOMs viz. CSPDCL-Chhattisgarh,
HPPC-Haryana, MSEDCL-Maharashtra, GUVNL-
Gujarat through NHPC to purchase balance Power
from PakalDul and Kwar HE Projects and they
have given in-principle consent for procurement of
power from Pakal Du |& Kwar HE Projects.
Competent and committed work force

In terms of Articles of Association of the Company,
the manpower required for the implementation of
CVPPL Projects shall be provided or lend to the
Company on secondment/ transfer/ deputation
basis by NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir
State Power Development Corporation Limited
(JKSPDCL). The workforce deputed by NHPC and
JKSPDC has extensive experience in the industry.
The skill,

experience of these executives provide the

industry knowledge and operating

Company with a significant competitive advantage.

knowledge and hands-on information for
constructing large hydro powers. CVPPL fully
recognize that the contribution of its
employees is integral to the achievement of
its ambitious plans and the skill, industry
knowledge and operating experience of these
executives provide the Company with a
significant competitive advantage.

CVPPL has

Agreements for PakalDul HE project, Kiru HE

signed Power Purchase
Project and Kwar HE

Chhattisgarh  State

Project  with
Power  Distribution
Company Ltd, Gujrat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd.
And JKPCL. Further, consent also received
for purchase of power from Haryana Power
Purchase Centre, Maharashtra State Power
Distribution Company Ltd., Power Company
PSPCL Punjab,

Pradesh Power

of Karnataka Limited,
GRIDCO Odisha, Uttar
Corporation Limited etc.
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. OPPORTUNITIES

Submitted during 2022-23

Proposed for 2023-24

The mix

increasing

Hydro-thermal imbalances, ever

renewable power, peaking power
shortages and frequency variations have turned
the attention of the Indian Government towards the
development of Hydro Power. India has a huge
Hydro Power potential which is still untapped. This
gives opportunities to CVPPL for adding to its

capacity in the years to come.

The hydro potential identified in J&K is to the
tune of 14867 MW and Chenab Basin contributes
to 11283 MW in the same. As on 31.03.2024,
2014 MW potential
Chenab basin and around 6648 MW is under

development.

has been harnessed in

The mix imbalances,

increasing

Hydro-thermal ever

renewable power, peaking power
shortages and frequency variations have turned
the attention of the Indian Government towards
the development of Hydro Power. India has a
huge Hydro Power potential which is still
untapped. This gives opportunities to CVPPL for

adding to its capacity in the years to come.

According to the Central
(CEA), need to build 817 GW of
generation capacity by 2030 and to keep up with
Cop26 commitment, 500 GW of this will have to

Electricity Authority

India  will

come from non-fossil fuel sources thus creating

ample opportunities in renewable energy sector.

IV.  THREATS, WEAKNESSES, RISKS AND CONCERNS

Submitted during 2022-23

Proposed for 2023-24

Management perceives following as threats,
weaknesses, risks and concerns in construction of

Hydro Power Projects:

Asitis
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Land Acquisition
Hydropower projects are generally located in
hilly, difficult and remote terrains, which requires
substantial area of land for submergence and
development of infrastructure including project's
components. The process of land acquisition is

quite cumbersome.

Geological Surprises
Hydropower projects generally involve substantial
underground works of headrace tunnel and surge
shaft. Geological surprises associated with
underground work may result in time and cost

over-run.

Natural Calamities
As hydropower project are generally proposed in
hilly terrains and are generally subject to
associated geological adversities such as hill
slope failures, road blocks, flash floods and cloud
bursts etc., which may cause severe set-back in

construction of projects.

Unexpected complexities
Development of a Project may be subject to
unexpected complexities and delays in execution,
which may result in time and cost overrun for
developing projects, compared to estimates. The
generation capacity may vary substantially
because of variations in hydrology due to climatic

conditions, which may cause significant variation

in revenue earnings of the Company.
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Long Gestation Period
Hydroelectric Power Projects are capital intensive

and have a long gestation period.

Increase in cost
Hydroelectric power projects have long gestation
period and are also subject to various
geological surprises & adversities resulting in
time and cost overruns, compared to estimates.

The cost overruns may lead to increase in tariff.

V. SEGMENT WISE ORPRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

Submitted during 2022-23 Proposed for 2023-24

Development of PakalDul, Kiru, Kwar & Kirthai-II As itis
Hydroelectric power project (3094 MW) in Chenab
river Basin and any other project entrusted to the
Company to generation and sale power is the only
business of the Company. Further, the Company is
having a single geographical segment as it is

operating in the UT of Jammu & Kashmir only.

V. OUTLOOK

Submitted during 2022-23 Proposed for 2023-24

Electricity is critical to livelihoods and essential As itis
to well-being. The potential for growth in energy
demand and energy infrastructure in India
remains enormous. The country’s continued
industrialization and urbanization will make huge
demands of its energy sector. Your Company is
committed to make its contribution in ensuring
availability of reliable electricity to all sections of
consumers in the UT of J&K. Despite the logistic
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challenges due to remote location and the fact the
state has tough terrain, your company is committed
to overcome them.

Considering the high unexploited hydropower
potential of the Country, ample opportunities are
available in the field of hydro power development.
As the entire world is now focusing on the ‘net
zero’ emissions, there exists a huge potential for
the hydro industry to make use of the emission
reduction potential. Further, Hydro plants can
also take care of the variability and resultant
requirements of grid stability due to large scale
injection of power from intermittent RE sources
(solar & wind) into the grid. In addition to above,
initiatives of Government of India shall strengthen

the road ahead for development of hydro power

sector in the Country.

e INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY

CVPPL has clearly defined organisational structure, manual and Policies to ensure orderly,
ethical and efficient conduct of its business. The company has engaged M/s BAWEJA &
KAUL, Charted Accountants as consultant for “Providing Independent Review and Assurance
on existence of Internal Financial Controls and their operating effectiveness in CVPPL.
The consultant has reported that internal financial controls are operating efficiently and
effectively in the Corporate Office and Projects of CVPPL. Further, the efficacy of internal
control systems has also been reported by the Statutory Auditors in Annexure “B” to the
Independent Auditors’ Report for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Internal Audit of the
Company including its Projects was conducted by external agency i.e., M/s GASM DANSR

and Co., Faridabad for the F.Y. 2023-24.
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FINANCIAL DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

PROFIT & LOSS ITEMS

A. INCOME

The three projects of the Company namely PakalDul (1000MW), Kiru (624MW) and Kwar
(540MW) HEPs are in active construction stage and one project i.e., Kirthai-Il (930 MW) is
under clearance stage etc. As such, there is no revenue from operation (sale of energy) at
present. The income of the Company during financial year 2023-24 comprises of other
income of Rs.3,575.40 Lacs(Previous Year Rs.5,346.69 Lacs) majorly consist of Interest
on Investment of surplus fund in FDRs with Banks as per Investment Policy of the Company.
Decrease in the Interest Income during the year is on account of less Investment of Surplus

Funds in FDR due to utilization of funds in Capex of Projects.

B. Expenditure

During the financial year 2023-24, total expenditure charged to profit & Loss Account
comprising of non-allocable expenditure attributable to construction was Rs. 1,604.30 Lacs
in FY 2023-24 was Rs. 1,532.57 Lacs in FY 2022-23. There is Increase of 4.68% due to
Increase in Depreciation and Amortization expenses by Rs.18.71 Lacs and other Expenses
by Rs.105.09 Lacs.

C. Profit before Tax
The profit before Tax & Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances during financial
year 2023-24 was Rs. 1,971.10 Lacs (Previous year Rs.3,814.12 Lacs).

D. Tax Expenses

The tax outgo on the profits was to the tune of Rs. 898.85 Lacs in financial year 2023-24
(Previous year 1,345.35 Lacs). The decrease in tax expenses in FY 2023-24 is on account of
decrease in other Income (Interest on investment of surplus fund in FDRs) from Rs.5,346.69
Lacs in FY 2022-23 to Rs. 3,575.40 Lacs in FY 2023-24.

E. Regulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of exchange differences on

Foreign Currency monetary items.

Exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items to

the extent charged to the Statement of profit & Loss and further recoverable from or payable
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to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are being
recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account Balances and to be adjusted from the year in
which the same become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries after Date of
Commercial Operation (COD) of the project. Accordingly, the Company has created
Regulatory Assets and recognized corresponding Regulatory Income of Rs.(-) 4.06 Lacs
during FY 2023-24 (Previous year Rs.45.77 Lacs) which is recoverable from beneficiaries in

future periods.
CASH FLOWS

A. Net Cash from Operating Activities

The net Cash from Operating Activities is Rs. (-) 2,391.16 Lacs and Profit before Tax and
Regulated Income but after exceptional items is Rs.1,971.10 Lacs during the FY 2023-24.
The net Cash from Operating Activities was Rs. (-) 2,634.48 Lacs and Profit before Tax
and Regulated Income but after exceptional items was Rs. 3,814.12 Lacs during the F.Y.
2022-23.

B.Net Cash from Investing Activities

The net cash flow from/used in Investing Activities is Rs.(-) 1,53,609.79 Lacs during the FY
2023-24. This mainly reflects expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment, Other Intangible
Assets and expenditure on Construction Projects of Rs.(-) 1,82,766.69 Lacs partly offset by
net Investment in Term Deposits of Rs.20,754.00 Lacs and Interest Income on
Deposits/Capital Advances of Rs.8,402.90 Lacs.

The net cash flow from/used in Investing Activities was Rs.(-) 79,189.48 Lacs during the FY
2022-23. This mainly reflected expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment, Other Intangible
Assets and expenditure on Construction Projects of Rs.(-) 1,35,364.14 Lacs partly offset by
Net Investment in Term Deposits of Rs.42,046.55 Lacs and Interest Income on Deposits /
Capital Advances of Rs.14,128.11 Lacs.

C. Net Cash from Financing Activities

The net Cash from Financing Activities is Rs. 1,36,518.45 Lacs during the F.Y. 2023-24
which comprises of Equity Share contribution amounting to Rs. 76,242.00 Lacs received from

Promoters, subordinate Debt of amounting Rs60,422.00 Lacs received from Govt. of India
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and payment of Interest and Finance Charges and repayment of Lease Liability along with
interest thereon for Rs. 145.55 Lacs.

The net Cash from Financing Activities was Rs. 90,456.52 Lacs during the F.Y. 2022-23
which comprises of Equity Share contribution amounting to Rs. 48,063.00 Lacs received form
Promoters, subordinate Debt amounting Rs. 42,492.00 Lacs received from Govt. of India and
Payment of Interest and Finance Charges and repayment of Lease Liability along with
interest thereon for Rs. 98.48 Lacs.

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

ASSETS
A. Property, plant and Equipment (PPE), Capital Work in Progress (CWIP), Right of
Use Assets (ROU), Investment Property, Intangible Assets, Intangible Assets under

development.

PPE consisting of Land, Buildings, Construction Equipment, Plant and Machinery, Office
Equipment, Computers etc. after Depreciation were Rs. 14,678.92 Lacs and Rs. 10,732.61
Lacs as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively. Capital Work in Progress which
includes Hydraulic Works, building including Power House Buildings, Plant & Machinery and
S&l work at our power projects were Rs. 4,91,351.11 Lacs and Rs. 2,97,673.82 Lacs as of
March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

Right of Use Assets (ROU) including forest land under right of use and other leased assets
were Rs. 78,815.39 Lacs and Rs. 79,809.90 Lacs as of March 31 2024 and March 31 2023
respectively. Intangible Assets comprising of computer software were Rs.79.40 Lacs and Rs.
14.97 Lacs as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

Intangible Assets under development comprising of computer software under development
were Rs. 106.42 Lacs and Rs. 106.42 Lacs as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
respectively

B. Loans (Current & Non- Current)

Loan including loan to employees Loans as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 were Rs.

178.20 Lacs and Rs. 46.83 Lacs respectively.
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C. Other Financial Assets (Current & Non- Current)

The other financial assets as at March 31, 2024 stood at Rs. 26,222.25 Lacs against Rs.
12,926.37 Lacs as at March 31, 2023. The increase of 102.86% in FY 2023-24as compared
to the FY 2022-23 is mainly due to increase in claim recoverable from State Govt.

Department on account of SGST reimbursement.

D. Tax Assets (Current & Non- Current)

Tax Assets as of March 31 2024 and 2023 were Rs. 11.03 Lacs and Rs. 6.34 Lacs
respectively i.e there is increase of 73.97 % over figures of previous FY. Tax Assets include
Advance Income Tax & Tax Deducted at source over and above provision for current up to
F.Y. 2023-24.

E. Other non- current assets

Other non- current assets mainly comprise advances (Capital as well as Other than Capital)
Interest accrued on Capital advance. Other non- current assets as on 31% March, 2024
and 31% March, 2023 were Rs. 51,291.49 Lacs and Rs. 63,004.12 Lacs respectively.
The decrease of 18.59% in FY 2023-24 as compared to the figure in FY 2022-23 is mainly
due to recovery/refund of capital advance by contractor.

F. Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Bank balances as of the Balances sheet date consists of cash surplus in our
current account and short term deposits. Cash and Cash equivalent as of March 31, 2024
and 2023 were Rs. 28,582.97 Lacs and Rs. 48,065.47 Lacs respectively. Bank balance other
than Cash and Cash Equivalent as of March 2024 and March 2023 were Rs. 2,811.00 Lacs
and Rs. 23,565.00 Lacs respectively.

G. Other Current Assets

Other Current Assets mainly comprise Advances to contractor and supplier, Interest accrued
on advance to contractor and prepaid expenses. Other Current Assets as on 31%March 2024
and 31st March 2023respectively were Rs. 407.30 Lacs and Rs.2,440.30 Lacs, i.e decrease
of Rs. 2,033.00 Lacs is mainly due to decrease in interest accrued on FDRs &advance to
contractor/supplier.
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H. Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balances

In line with the Guidance note on “Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities "issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as well keeping in view the provisions of Ind- As
114-Regulatory Deferral Account balance in respect of Exchange differences on Foreign
Currency Monetary items as on 31% March 2024 and 31°%' March 2023 was Rs. 52.31 Lacs

and Rs. 56.37 Lacs respectively.

l. Return on Net worth

The net worth of the Company at the end of FY 2023-24 increased to Rs. 4,76,933.60 Lacs
from Rs.3,99,623.41 Lacs in the previous FY 2022-23 registering an increase of 19.35%
mainly due to increase in equity share capital, share application money pending allotment

and increase in retained earnings.

J. Long Term Borrowings

Long Term Borrowings mainly comprise of subordinate Debt amounting to of Rs. 60,987.31
Lacs received from Govt. of India for Pakal Dul HE Project as on 31%' March 2024 and Rs.
38,454.67 Lacs as on 31 March 2023.

K. Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non- Current)

Other Financial Liabilities include amount payable toward Lease liability, Liability against
capital works / Supplies, EMD/ Retention Money etc. The other financial liabilities as on 31
March 2024 stood at Rs. 31,507.32 Lacs as against Rs. 19,458.18 Lacs as on 31°%' March
2023.

L. Provisions (Current & Non- Current)

Provision include provision for performance Related pay, Superannuation/pension fund,
provision towards employee benefits (actuarial valuation) and provision for Committed
Capital Expenditure etc. Total provision stood at Rs. 14918.16 Lacs as on 31% March 2024
as against Rs. 12,248.75 Lacs as on 31° March 2023.

M. Other Non- Current Liabilities

The other Non- Current Liabilities as on 31%' March, 2024 is Rs1,07,769.64 Lacs as against
Rs. 66,726.48 Lacs as on 31 March 2023 which consists of portion of Subordinate-Debt
from Government of India accounted as Grants as per Accounting Guidelines.
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N. Trade Payables
The Trade payable as on 31% March 2024 was Rs. 416.46 Lacs against Rs. 323.53 Lacs as

on 31 March 2023.

O. Other Current Liabilities

The other current liabilities as on 31%' March 2024 was Rs. 2,057.06 Lacs as against
Rs. 1,616.83 Lacs as on 31° March 2023.

OFF- Balance Sheet Items

A. Contingent Liabilities

The following table sets forth the components of our contingent liabilities as on 31 March,
2024 and as on 31% March, 2023

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars F.Y.2023-24 | F.Y.2022-23
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of :
Capital Works 98,697.35 23,179.94
Land Compensation case 0 0
Disputed Tax matters and Other items 322.22 0
Others 0 3.07
Total 99,019.57 23,183.01

Contingent liabilities increased by 312.12% from Rs.23,183.01 Lacs as of March 31,2023 to
Rs. 99,019.57 Lacs as of March 31,2024

B. Return on Net worth (PAT / Average Shareholder’s Equity)

Return on Net Worth of the company at the end of FY 2023-24 decreased to 0.24% from
0.67% in the previous FY 2022-23 i.e., a decline of 64.18% mainly due to decrease in profit
after tax due to decrease in other income (Interest Income from Short Term Surplus fund
invested in FDRs with the bank).
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COMPETENT AND COMMITTED WORKFORCE:

As per Supplementary Promoter Agreement dated 21.11.2022 of CVPPL, the staff for
rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) activities shall be deputed by GoJK to Company and
the remaining staff to the Company shall be provided in the following manner:

Group A & B staff in the JVC shall be deployed by way of secondment/ transfer/ deputation
from NHPC, JKSPDC/Department of Government of Union Territory of Jammu and Kashmir

equally or through recruitment by the JVC as per DPE norms, as applicable.

Eighty percent (80%) of Group C &D staff in JVC shall be domiciles of Union Territory of
Jammu and Kashmir subject to their suitability, availability and eligibility.

The work force deputed by NHPC and JKSPDC has extensive experience in the industry.
The CVPPL Card employees recruited are gaining experience while moving up the ladder of
career progression. The skill, industry knowledge, competence and operating experience of
the manpower provide the Company with a significant competitive advantage.

Human Resource Development:

Training and Development has become increasingly essential to the success of modern
organisations, emphasising on improving skills, gaining knowledge, clarifying concepts and
changing attitude through structured and planned education by which the productivity and
performance of employees can be enhanced along with increasing job satisfaction, overall
development of employee and reducing employee turnover. It is a process that “strives to
build the capacity to achieve and sustain a new desired state that benefits the organization or

community and the world around them.”

Marking a step in the achievement of the above, CVPPL nominated its employees to 34
different Training Programmes / Conferences / Webinars / sessions, etc. during the Financial
Year 2023-2024 including Technical/Non-Technical and Behavioural Programs. Training
Programs on PRIMAVERA and AUTOCAD were organised through recognised CADD
Centre to upgrade and acquaint our employees with the requisite latest technologies/
innovations in the respective software’s. Employees were also imparted hands-on training to
accommodate their day-to-day working on portals like: e-office, GeM, etc. along with other

technological topics covering the concepts of Pumped Hydro Storage, Engineering
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Geological Mapping, Rock Mechanics &Tunneling Techniques, EPC Contracts, NITI Aayog

Model and Construction Claims Management, to name a few.

Statutory-oriented Programs on POSH Act,2013, RTI Act and National Apprenticeship
Scheme as well as a Program on Discipline Management and Disciplinary Proceedings were
also undertaken. A three-day behavioural Training Programme on Unleashing the power of
360 degree Interpersonal Relationships was too organised through M/s FCTD (LLP), New
Delhi along with a Workshop on Health & Stress Management through M/s Sampoorna
Health Education and Research Society. 9thinternational Yoga Day was also celebrated with

great enthusiasm.

Further, the NHPC Cadre employees, presently posted in CVPPL, were also nominated to
more than 30 different programmes, as organised by the T&HRD Cell of NHPC during the
Financial Year 2023-2024.

High appreciation and satisfactory feedback has been received in respect of above listed
programs.

Industrial Relation:

During the year, Industrial Relations remained cordial and harmonious all across the CVPPL
Projects and Corporate Office, Jammu. However, R&M contractual staff engaged through
Contractors for various service related works and contractual staff engaged by the Major
Contractors in construction works have raised their demand from time to time for

enhancement of wages and benefits.

Employee’s Promotion and other Welfare Scheme:

A comprehensive exercise was undertaken whereby a total no. of 34 nos. eligible employees
were considered for Promotion from E2 to E3, S-2 to S-3 & S-1 to S-2 Grade respectively
w. e. f01.04.2024.

Reservation for SC/ST/OBC:

The organisation is making a contribution for the socio-economic development of
SC/ST/OBC. Reservation of post for SC/ST/OBC as per GOI directives’ are being followed in
the Organisation.
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Welfare of Persons with Disabilities:

There was no physical challenged employee in the Company as on 31.03.2024.

By Order of the Board of Directors

CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Sd/-

Suresh Kumar, IAS-(Retd.)
CHAIRMAN

Place: Jammu
Dated: 09.09.2024
DIN-06440021
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS [P] LIMITED

CVFP Jammu
CIN: U40105JK2011GO1003321

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Audited Aundited
A, Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit hefore tax for the year including movements in
Regulatory Deferrzl Account Balance 1967.04 3859.89
Less: Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (4.06) 45.77
Profit before Tax 1971.10 3814.12
ADD ;
Depreciation and Amortization 78.83 60,13
Finance Cost (Net of EAC) 5.67 L57
Exchange rate variation (Loss) 470 37.01
Loss/(Profit) on sate of assets/Claims written off 13.65 11.02
Fair value Audjustments 0.02 -
102.87 109.73
2073.97 3923.85
LESS:
Advance against Depreciation written back - -
Provisions (Net gain} - 0.07
Dividend Income - -
Interest Income & Guarantee Faes 3575.45 5346.70
Exchange rate variation (Gain) . -
Fair value Audjustments - (0.02)
Amortisation of Government Grants B
157545 5346.75
Cash flow from Operating Activities before Operatin,
Assets and Liabilities adjustmenis and Taxes 5 (1501.48) (1422.90)
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Inventories - -
Trade Receivables - -
Other Financial Assets, Loans and Advances (27.50) (35.44)
Other Financial Liabilities and Provisions 4141 92,06
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 4.06
17.97 56.62
Cash flow from operating sctivities before taxes (1483.51) (1366.28)
Less : Taxes Paid 907.65 1268.20
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (4) (2391.16) (2634.48)
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, investment
Property, Other Intangible Assets, CWIP and Movement in|
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances forming part off (182766.60) (135364.14)
Project Cost-Net of Grant
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Investment in Subsidiaries & Joint Venture (including Share _ _
Application Money pending atfotment)
Loan to Subsidiaries (Net) - -
Interest on Loan fo SubsidiariesToint Ventures (Nef) - -
Investment in Term Deposits 20754.00 42046.55
Dividend Income - .
Interest Income & Guarantee Fees 8402.90 14128.11
Net Cash Flow From/Used In Investing Activities (B) (153609.79) (79189.48)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Issue & Buyback of Equity Shares including Security Premium 76242.00 48063.00
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 60422.00 42492 00
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings - -
Repayment of Borrowings -
Interest & Finance Charges (37.00) {001
Principal Repayment of Lease Liability (101.19) (90.05)
Interest paid on Lease Liability (1.36) (8.42)
Net Cash Flow From/Used In Financing Activities (C) 136518.45 90456.52
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents
Do ArBiC) 1 (19482.50) 8632.56
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 48065.47 3943291
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period # 28582 97 4806547

-The above Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" prescribed in Ind AS 7 - Statement

of Cash Flows.

-Figures for the previous periods have been re-grouped/re-arranged/re-classified/re-stated wherever necessary.
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NOTE NO. 1: COMPANY INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(D) Reporting entity
Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Limited (the “Company”) is a Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (A
Gol Enterprise), JKSPDC (A GoJK Enterprise) and a Company domiciled in India (CIN:
U40105JK2011G0I003321). The address of the Company’s registered office is Chenab Valley Power
Projects (P) Limited, Chenab Jal Shakti Bhawan, Opposite Saraswati Dham, RailHead Complex,
Jammu, UT of Jammu & Kashmir-180012. The Company is primarily involved in the generation and
sale of bulk power to various Power Utilities. '

(I1) Basis of preparation
(A)Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act,
2003 to the extent applicable. :

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 07.05.2024
(B)Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for:

+ Certain finaneial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

» Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 33.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds
received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Iiability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(C) Application of new and revised standards

Vide notification dated March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the
Companies (Iudian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends certain
Indian Accounting Standards, and are effective from April 1, 2023. The summary of the
major amendments and its impact on the Company are given hereunder:

i} Disclosure of accounting policies — amendments to Ind AS 1 — Presentation
of financial statements: This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. These
amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ (being information
that, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements)
and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is material. They
further dlarify that immaterial accounting policy information do not need to be
disclosed. If disclosed, they should not obscure material accounting information.
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iii)

The Company has evaluated the amendment and suitably modified its Material
Accounting Policies. However, impact of the said amendment on the Company’s
financial statements is not significant.

Definition of accountmg estimates — amendments to Ind AS 8 - - Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: The amendment
clarifies how entities should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in accounting
estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events,
whereas changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events (as well as the current period).

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s
financial statements. ~

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction ~ amendments to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: This amendment has
narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.

The Compaﬁy has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s

financial statements.

iv) Amendments/ revisions in other standards are either not apphcable or do not have any

material impact on the financial statements.

(D) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the
Nearest Lacs (up to two decimals) for the Company. However, at Unit level, figures are
presented in rupees (absolute number).

(E) Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting
policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures
including contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates
and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered
reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any

future periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information abotit significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in- applying accounting policies that
may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

Critical judgments and estimates
a) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116-Leases. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Identification of alease requires significant judgment.

The Company also uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
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b) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

c)

d

e)

g)

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assetsare based
on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in
Progress and Intangible Assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and
intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions, in particular the expected
market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in
these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable

amount resulting in impairment.
Post-retirement benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions in respect of future
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increase, inflation rate and expected rate
of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions
may have an impact on the resulting calculations.

Revenue

The Company records revenue from sale of power based on tariff approved by the CERC,
as per the principles of Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers. However, in
cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted considering
the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Further, where revision in tariff due to revision in
cost estimates are pending, tariff is computed based on the parameters and methods
prescribed under the CERC Tariff Regulations and an estimated amount of revenue is
recognised when an application is made to the CERC after obtaining necessary approvals
to the extent it is highly probable that there will be no downward adjustment to the

revenue recognised.
Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made on the basis of
best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. These
estimates can change due to unforeseeable developments.

Recoverable Amount of Rate Regulated Assets

The operating activities of the Company are subject to cost-of-service regulations whereby
tariff charged for electricity generated is based on allowable costs like interest costs,
depreciation, operation and maintenance including a stipulated return. Guidance Note on
Rate Regulated Activities issued by the ICAI (previous GAAP) and Ind AS 114~ ‘Regulatory
Deferral Accounts’ permits an entity to include in the rate base, as part of the cost of self-
constructed (tangible} PPE or internally generated intangible assets, amounts that would
otherwise be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance
with Ind AS. The Company estimates that items of regulatory deferral accounts recognised
in the financial statements are recoverable as per the current CERC Tariff Regulations
2019-24. However, changes in CERC tariff regulations beyond the current tariff period
may affect the recoverability of such balances.
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h) Impairment of Trade Receivables

Considering the historical credit loss experience for irade receivables, the Company does
not envisage either impairment in the value of receivables from beneficiaries or loss due to
time value of money owing to delay in realization of trade receivables, except to the extent
already provided for. CERC Tariff Regulations provide for recovery of Late Payment
Surcharge for delayed payments which compensates for loss due to time value of money,
except to the extent already provided for.

i) Insurance Claim Recoverable

The recoverable amount of insurance claims in respect of damages to Property, Plant and
Equipment and Capital Work in Progress is based on estimates and assumptions as per
terms and conditions of insurance policies and management estimate of amount
recoverable from the Insurance Company based on past experience,

j) Cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified
Carbon Units (VCUs)

The cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reducﬁons (CERs)/ Verified Carbon
Units (VCUs) are measured as per Management estimate.

k) Assets classified as held for sale

Management judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for
sale under Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’. In
assessing the applicability, management exercises judgment to evaluate availability of the
asset for immediate sale, management’s commitment for the sale and probability of sale
within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered pnnmpaﬂy through

a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

(I1I) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Sumamary of the material accounting policies for the preparation of financial statements as given
below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.These
accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they
apply. These policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

Up to March 31, 2015,Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress, Intangible Assets
and Investment Property were carried in the Balance Sheet in accordance with Indian GAAP. The
Compauny had elected to avail the exemption granted by IND AS 101, “First time adoption of IND AS”
to regard those amounts as the deemed cost at the date of transition to IND AS (i.e., as on April 1,
2015). Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, Capital Work in Progress,
intangible assets and Investment Property as per the previous GAAP as at April 1, 2015, were
maintained on transitionto Ind AS.

1.0 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

b) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. In cases where final settlement of bills with
contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and available for operating in the manner
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2.0

c)

d)

e)

g)
h)

i)

)

k)

1Y)

a)

b)

intended by the management, capitalisation is done on estimated basis subject to necessary
adjustments, including those arising out of settlement of arbitration/court cases.

Subsequent costs is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Expenditure incurred on renovation and modernization of power station on completion of
the originally estimated useful life of the power station is added to the cost of the related
asset when it meets the recognition criteria. PPE acquired as replacement of the existing
assets are capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use

are derecognized,

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Deposits, payments made/ labilities created provisionally towards compensation (including
interest on enhanced compensation till the date of award by the Court), rehabilitation &
resettlement and other expenses including expenditure on environment management plans
relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

Assets over which the Company has control, though created on land not belonging to the
Company, are included under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Standby equipment and servicing equipment which meet the recognition criteria of Property,
Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Spares parts (procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequenily) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are
replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon disposal. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming part of inventory.

" Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it

meets the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection and overhaul is derecognized.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been
depreciated separately. If it is not practicable to determine the carrying amount of the
replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement asan indication of what the cost
of replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss

as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/
disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset

is derecognised. _
Capital work in Progress (CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost
under CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-
refundable taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), expenditure in relation to
survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and
handling charges, installation and assembly costs, ete.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up- -
gradation of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project
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4.0

including Right-of-Use assets, interest during construction and other costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management are accumulated under “Expenditure
Attributable to Construction (EAC)” and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over
major immovable assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of
projects. Net pre-commissioning income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of
related assets.

c) Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not
have control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project .
is accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction” and carried under “Capital
Work in Progress” and subsequently allocated on a systematic basis over major immovable
assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of projects, keeping in
view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure” concepts in Ind AS 16- “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred after completion of the project, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development

a) Expenditure on research is charged to expenditure as and when incurred. Expenditure on

b)

c)

d)

e)

development is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to
use or sell the asset.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are
measured on initfal recognition at cost, Cost includes any directly atiributable expenses
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses,

Intangible assets under development represent expenditure incurred on intangible assets
which are in the development phase and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment

loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Foreign Currency Transactions

a)

b)

c)

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate
at the date the transaction first qualifles for recognition. At each reporting date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency exchange
rates prevailing on that date.

Exchange differences arising from settlement/ translation of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency entered into on or after April 1, 2016 to the extent
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff
Regulations are recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account Balances’ during construction
period and adjusted from the year in which the same become recoverable from or payable
to the beneficiaries.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Where the Company
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5.0

6.0

7.0

has paid or received advance consideration in a foreign currency, the date of transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is the date when the Company initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Regulatory Deferral Aceounts

a) Where an item of expenditure incurred during the period of construction of a project is
recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss ie., not allowed to be
capitalized as part of cost of relevant PPE in accordance with Ind AS, but is nevertheless
permitted by CERC to be recovered from the beneficiaries in future through tariff, the
right to recover the same is recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

b Expense/ income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent recoverable

from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations
are recognised as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

¢} These Regulatory Deferral Account balances are adjusted from the year in which the same
become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

d)} Regulatory Deferral Account balances are evaluated at each Balance Sheet date to ensure
that the underlying activities meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are
not met, the Regulatory Deferral Account balances are derecognised.

e) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet
date,

Fair value measurement

At initial recognition, transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. However, when the
Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
Liabilities. )

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigm'ﬁcant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

» Level 3 — Valuation technlques for which the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable. :

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity
or contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A
financial asset is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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a)

b)

c)

Financial assets of the Company comprise Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances,
Investments in equity shares of companies, Trade Receivables, Loan to employees, security

deposit, claims recoverable etc.

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

. At amortised cost,

. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
. At fair value through profit and loss

The classification depends on the following:

€)] The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) The contractizal cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or under Other Comprehensive Income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit orloss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at their transaction price, if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component.

Subscquent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are

met:

i} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii)} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any diseount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recoguised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fiows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii) The asset’s contractial cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI).
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d)

e)

Debt instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses,
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in

other income using the EIR method.

Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables containing a significant financing component are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:
i) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

ii) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has.
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is

not derecognised.
Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the

Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing

involvement in the financial asset.

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and the amount of
consideration received / receivable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

i} Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.

il} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

iii} Contract Assets and Trade Receivables under Ind AS 115-Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

iv) Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116-Leases.

The Company follows the ‘simplified approach’ permitted under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit
loss from initial recognition on contract assets, lease receivables and trade receivables
resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 115.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount egual to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. Any increase
or reversal of loss allowance computed using ECL model, is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to be used for maintenance of Property,
Plant and Equipment and are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.
The cost is determined using weighted average cost formula and NRYV is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which write-down or loss oceurs,

Financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. A

financial liability is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. '

a) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost.Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an assetif another standard permits such

inclusion, over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

b) Subsequenimeasurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lossor
in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. '

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the LIR. The RIR amortisation is included as
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recogrition of a new liability, The difference in the respective
carrying amountsis recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforeeable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and setile the liabilities

simultaneously.
e) Derivative financial insbruments

Derivative financial instruments that are held by the Company to hedge the foreign currency
and interest rate risk exposures and are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.
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10,0 Government Granis

a) The benefits of a government loan at a below market rate of interest is treated as a
Government Grant. The loan is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
grant is measured as the difference between the initially recognized amount of the loan
and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities and the grant is recognized initially as deferred
income and subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

b) Monetary grants from the government for creation of assets are initially recognised as

- deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The deferred
income so recognised is subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the useful life of the related assets.

c) Government grant related to income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Losson a
systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

11.0 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

~a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or conmstructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision net of any
reimbursement is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount
of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. :

b) Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the conirol of the Company. Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet

- date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

¢) Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will

" be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in

the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of

judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

12.0 Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Company’s revenues arise from sale of energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises interest from banks, employees, contractors etc., surcharge received from
~ beneficiaries for delayed payments, sale of scrap, other miscellaneous income, etc.
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a) Revenue from sale of power

i)

v)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises
revenue from contracts for sale of power over time as the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company.

Revenue from sale of power (except minimum lease receipts in respect of power
stations considered as Finance Lease/Operating Lease) is accounted for as per tariff
notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under the CERC
(Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations as modified by the orders of Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable.In the case of Power Stations where
provisional/ final tariff is yet to be notified or where incentives/disincentives are
chargeable/payable as per CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, revenue
is recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Rebates given to
beneficiaries as early payments incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue.

Customers are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date,
revenue from sale of power includes an accrual for sales delivered to customers but

not yet billed (unbilled revenue).

Recovery/ refund towards foreign currency variation in respect of foreign currency
loans and recovery towards Income Tax are recognised on year to year basis based on

regulatory norms.

Adjustments arising out of finalisation of Regional Energy Account (REA), though
not material, are effected in the year of respective finalisation.

b) Other income

i)

if)

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). When calculating the effeclive interesl rate, thte Comipany estimales the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

Interest/Surcharge recoverable from customers including those arising out of
contracts for trading of power and liquidated damages /interest on advances to
contractors is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of revenue recognised will not occur in the future.

¢©) Revenue from sale of carbon credits/ CERs/VERs

Revenue is recognized on transfer/ sale of Carbon Credits/ Certified Emission
Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) to the extent it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognized will not occur in the
future. ‘

13.0 Employee Benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance
related cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably,
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1i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into separate trusts and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Lossor included
in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the
periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a rednction from future
payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is due more than
12 months afier the end of the period in which the employees render the service are
diseounted to their present value. ’

r Employee Provident Fund Scheme and Social Security Scheme are accounted for as
- defined contribution plans.

iii) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s Gratuity Scheme, Retired Employees Health Scheme
(REHS), Allowance on Retirement/Death and Memento on Superannuation to employees
are in the nature of defined benefit plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity and Retired
Employees Health Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. '

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by the actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying
amonnt of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income in the
period in which they occur and are included in retained earnings in the Statement of
Changes in Equity. :

iv) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment scheme constitnte other long term
employee benefits.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefits that emplayees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market
yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Contributions to the scheme and actuarial gains or
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lossor included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the period in which they

arise.
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v) Termination benefits
The expenses incurred on terminal benefits in the form of ex-gratia payments and notice
pay on voluntary retirement schemes are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of incurrence of snch expenses,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
as deseribed in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116— ‘Leases’ and(c) exchange differences
arising from foreign cnrrency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs. :

Borrowing costs that are directly attribntable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily
take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended nse or sale. All other borrowmg
costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of
the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of afl borrowings that
are cutstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or
erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded from this calculation,
until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale
are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assetsis deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization

a) Depreciation on additions to /deductions from Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the date on which the asset is
available for use / disposal.

b) (i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of Operating Units of the Company
capitalized till five years before the end of the useful life of the Power Station is charged
to the Statement of Profit & Loss on straight-line method following the rates and
methodology notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 15.0{d).

(ii) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment capitalized during the last five years
of the useful life of a Power Station is charged on straight-line method for the period
of extended life as per CERC Tariff Regulations/Orders, from the date on which such
asset becomes available for use.

(iii}) Where the life and / or efficiency of a Power Station is increased due to renovation
and modernization, the expenditure thereon along with its unamortized depreciable
amount is charged prospectively on straight-line method over the revised / remaining
useful life,

¢) i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (except old and used) of other than
Operating Units of the Company is charged to the extent of g0% of the cost of the asset
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d)

e)

g

h)

i}

)

k)

)

m)

following the rates notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 15.0(d). _

ii) Depreciation on old and used items of PPE of other than Operating Units is charged
on straighi-line method to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset over estimated useful
life determined on the basis of technical assessment.

i) Depreciation in respect of following items of PPE is provided on straight line method
based on the useful life and residual value (5%) given in the Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013:;

- Construction Plant and Machinery
- Computer and Peripherals

ii) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Mobile Phones is provided on straight
line basis over a period of three years with residual value of Re 1,

iiiyBased on technical assessment, depreciation on Roof Top Solar Power System /
Equipment is provided on straight line basis over a period of twenty five years with
residual value of 10%.

iv) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on furniture& other equipment provided
at residential office of employees is charged on straight line basis over a period of five
years with residual value of 10%

Temporary erections are depreciated fully (200%) in the year of acquisition
/capitalization by retaining Re. 1/- as WDV.

All assets valuing Rs. 5000/- or less but more than Rs. 750/- are fully
depreciated/amortised during the year in which the asset becomes available for use with
WDV of Re. 1/- for tangible assets and NIL for Intangible Assets.

Low value items, which are in the nature of assets (excluding immovable assets) and
valuing up to Rs. 750/- are not capitalized and charged off to expenditure in the year of
use.

Leasehold Land of operating units is amortized over the period of lease or over the life of
the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and 25 years in case of Solar & Wind
Projects) whichever is lower, following the rates and methodology notified vide CERC
tariff regulations.

Leasehold Land and buildings of units other than operating units, is amortized over the
period of lease or over the life of the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and
25 years in case of Solar & Wind Projects), whichever is lower.

PPE created on leasehold land are depreciated to the extent of 90% of original cost over
the balance available lease period of respective land from the date such asset is available
for use or at the applicable depreciation rates & methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations for such assets, whichever is higher.

Land—Right of Useis amortized over a period of 30 years from the date of commercial
operation of the project in line with CERC tariff regulations notified for tariff fixation.

Cost of software recognized as ‘Intangible Assets’ is amortized on straight line method
over a period of legal right to use or three financial years, whichever is earlier, starting
from the year in which it is acquired. Other intangible assets are amortized on
straightline method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant,
whichever is less. The period and method of amortization of intangible assets with finite
useful life is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever

required.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to
increase/decrease in long term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price
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o)

adjustment, settlement of arbitration/court cases, change in duties or similar factors, the
unamortized balance of such assets is depreciated prospectively over the residual life of
such assets at the rate of depreciation and methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations. ‘

Spare parts procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently which are
capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the
residual useful life of the related plant and machinery at the rates and methodology
notified by CERC.

Usefu! life, method of depreciation and residual value of assets where depreciation is
charged as per management assessment are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted prospectively over the balance useful life of the asset, wherever required.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

a)

b)

¢)

d)

e)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be fmpaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating nnit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax disconnt rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determmining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined only
in case carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds the value in
use.

In case of expenditure on survey & investigation of projects, if it is decided to abandon
such a project, expenditure incurred thereon is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which such decision is taken.

In case a project under survey and Investigation remains in abeyance by the order of
appropriate authority/ by injunction of court order, any expenditure incurred on such
projects from the date of order/ injunction of court is provided in the books from the date
of such order till the period project is kept in abeyance by such order/ injunction,
Provision so made is however reversed on the revocation of aforesaid order/ injunetion.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assét’s carrying

-amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation or amortisation, if no impaijrment loss had been recognised. -
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Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Staternent
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax

b)
)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v}

vi)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year on the basis of
the tax laws applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in
previous years. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Profit
“and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years (temporary differences) and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible (permanent differences).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and labilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accountied for using the Balance
Sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, mused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recogmised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction
that at the time of the transaction affects neither the taxable profit orloss nor the

accounting profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suflicient taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. ‘

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date, The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would flow in the mauner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case it is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis. :

Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent the deferred
tax for the current period forms part of current tax in the subsequent periods and affects
the computation of return on equity (ROE), a component of tariff.

vii) When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses

whether a tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax treatment. If it concludes that
the tax authority is unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the
uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is
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19.0

20.0

recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised using the method that, in each
case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the
expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other
uncertain tax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of

uncertainty.
Compensation from third parties

Impairments or losses of items, related claims for payments of compensation from third
parties including insurance companies and any subsequent purchase or construction of
assets/inventory are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Compensation from third parties including from insurance companies for items of property,
plant and equipment or for other items that were impaired, lost or given up is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the compensation becomes receivable. Insurance claims
for loss of profit are accounted for based on certainty of realisation.

Segment Reporting

a) In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified on the basis of internal repoits used by the
Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating
Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

b) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset, whether the Company has the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of lease and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. Where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset if it has the right to operate the asset, or the
Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

At inceptibn or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

i. Company as alessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

Land taken for use from State Government (without transfer of title) and expenses cn relief
and rehabilitation as also on creation of alternate facilities for land evacuees or in lieu of
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existing facilities coming under submergence and where consiruction of such alternate
facilities is a specific pre-condition for the acquisition of the land for the purpose of the
project, are accounted for as Right of Use Assets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset
by the end of lease term or if the cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option
 will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated/ amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the agset belongs. :

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the incremental borrowing rate. Future lease payments comprise of the fixed
payments, including in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exexcise or
the penalty for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or when a lease contract is modified,
and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liahility is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in respect
of short-term leases that have a lease termy of 12 months or less and leases where the
underlying asset is of low-value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease
is clagsified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Where the Company determines a long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be or to
contain a lease and where the off taker has the prineipal risk and rewards of ownership of the
power plant through its contractual arrangements with the Company, the arrangement is
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considered a finance lease. For embedded leases in the mature of a Finance Lease, the
investment in the power station is recognised as a Lease Receivable. The minimum lease
receipts are identified by segregating the embedded lease receipts from the contract amounts
(including Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) recognised in accordance with CERC Tariff
regulations 2004-09 up to 31st March 2009 and considered as deferred income). Each lease
receipt is allocated between the receivable and finance lease income (forming part of revenue '
from operations) so as to achieve a constant rate of return on the Lease Receivable

outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated
unguaranteed residual value and applies the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109-
Financial Instruments for recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the lease

receivables.

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease
receivables, except for credit-impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated
with reference to their amortised cost (i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance).

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS
115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate the consideration in the contraci.

Tn the case of Operating Leases or embedded operating leases, the lease income from the
operating lease is recognised in revenue over the lease term to reflect the pattern of use
benefit derived from the leased asset. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance
Sheet based on their nature and depreciated over its economic life.

Business combinations

(i) Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at
the date of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and
Liabilities assumed are recognized at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Where the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceed the consideration transferred, after reassessing the
fair values of the net assets and contingent Habilities, the excess is recognized as capital
reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method wherein the assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts and no adjustments are made to
reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are

made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irvespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated

only from that date.

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
ageregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become
the reserves of the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share
capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented

separately from other capital reserves.
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22.0 Material prior period errors

23.0

24.0

25.0

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error oceurred. If the error occurred
before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for
the earliest period presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the
comparative information is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from
the earliest date practicable.

Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.

b) Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the met profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

¢) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also presented using the earnings
amounts excluding the movements in regulatory deferral account balances.

Statement of Cash Flows
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. However, for Balance Sheet presentation, Bank
overdrafts are shown within “Borrowings” under Current Liabilities.

b) Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Ind AS 7- ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.
Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification. :
a) An asset is current when it is;

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period. ‘

All other assets are classified as non-current.
b) Aliability is current when:

» It is expected to be setiled in the normal operating cycle
» Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading
+ Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
"« There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

¢) Deferred tax assets /liabilities ate classified as non-current assets / liabilities.
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Note no. 2.2 Capital Work In Progress

{X Lakhs)
S.No |Particulars As at Addition Adjustment Capitalised  [As at 31st March, 2024]
01-Apr-2023
i) Roads and Bridges 459147 30B4.72 40,34 7635,84
i) Buildings 53608.28 2570436 25,31 177.69 83160.26
iif) Building-Under Lease . i ) ]
v Railway sidings N —
Hydraulic Works{Dams, Water Conductor system,
v} H‘; dro mechanical gates, tunnele) ' 101965.52 9746199 3.98 199431.49
vi) Generating Plant and Machinery 29562.93 41667.44 (15.94) 71234 43
vii) Plant and Machinery - Sub station 568.64 3.49 388.19 92897 31,35
viii}__ IPlant and Machinery - Transmission lines §77.33 1033.16 (388.67) 446.14 1075.68
ix) Plant and Machinery - Gthers - -
%) Construction Equipment N -
xi) Water Supply System/Drainage and Sewerage 29,58 1577 7.8% 37.50
Xii) Computers i - = .
xiii)__ {Communication Eguiprnent - -
xiy}  |Office Equipments - ~
xv} |Assets awaiting installation _ -
xvi) _|CWAP - Assets Under 5 KM Scheme OF the GOI - "
xvii) Survey, investigation, consultancy and supervision charges 3462.10 595,13 4056.23
xviif) |Expenditure on compensatory Afforestation - ~
xix) |Expenditure attributable to construction (Refer Note-32) 102987.74 21730.40 [31.03}) 12468711
Less: Capital Work in Frogress Provided - -
Sub totai !a) 207672.60 195296.45 {18.16} 1601.00 491349 89
Construction Stores 1.22 - 1.22
Less : Provisions for construction stores B B -
] Sub total (b) 1.22 - - - 1.22
TOTAL 297673.82 195296.35 {18.16) 1601.00 491351,11
Previous year 189385,93 110314.42 (178.16) 1848.37 297673.82
2.2.1 (a} CWIP aging schedule as on 31st March 2024
Amount in CWIP for a perlod of
Particufars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years|More than 3 Years Total
Projects in Progress 193,677.30 110,131,74 58,418.22 129.123.85 491,351.11
Projects temporarily Suspended M
Total 183,677,30 1i0,131.74 £8,418,22 128,123.85 491,351,111
(b) CWIP Completion Schedule as on 31st March 2024 for delayed
projects
To be Completed in Total
Project
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years|More than 3 Years;
Pakal Dul HEP 327,565.77 327,565.77
Kiru HERP 129,083.69 129,093,64
Total - 129,093.64 327,565.77 - 456,659,41
22,2 [a) CWIP aging schedule as on 31st March 2023
Amcunt In CWIP for a period of
Particutars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years|More than 3 Years Tetal
Projects in Progress 108,738,74 58,632.49 37,753,32 92,549.27 297,673.82
Projects tempaorarily Suspended N
Total 108,738.74 58,632.48 37,753.32 62,546.27 297.673.82
{b) CWIP Cempietion Schedule zs on 31st March 2023 for delayed
projects
Te be Completed in
Profect Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years| More than 3 Years Tatal
Pakal Pul HEP 214,435.09 214,435.08
Kiru HEP 64,250.54 64,350.54
Total - 64,250.54 214,435.02 278,685.63

2.2.3 Expenditure attributable to Construction {EAC) includes T 3,153.80/- Lakh {Previous year € 2310.4B/-

2.2.4 Underground Works amounting to T 23,223.49/- Lakh {Previous year ¥ 16,334.95/- Lakh) created on "Land

respective heads of Capita! Work in Progress {CWIP},
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Lakh) towards borrowing cost capitalised during the year.

-Right to Use" classified under Right of Use Assets, are Included under



CUMMULATIVE EDC

Annexure to Note 2.2
{Rupees in Lakhs)
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Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
A, EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, allowances 47438.37 41868.39
Gratufty and contribution to provident fund (including administration '
fees) 7539.93 6842.64
Staff welfare expenses 3292.02 2811.26
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution 14.91 14.91
Sub-totol{a) 58285.23 51537.20
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period 0.00 0.00
Sub-total{A) 58285.23 51537.20
B. GENERATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
EAC-WATER USAGE CHARGES AT PROJECTS GENERATING INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
CONSUMPTION OF STORES AND SPARES AT PROJECTS GENERATING
INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE- DAM/WATER REGULATING SYSEM AT
PROJECTS GENERATING INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE- GPM/ OTHER POWER PLANT SYSTEM AT
PROJECTS GENERATING INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
Repairs-Building 2772.00 2074.25
Repairs-Machinery 13.03 13.02
Repairs-Others 499,63 38139
Rent 1478.37 1234.20
Rates and taxes 56.43 50.05
Insurance 24.80 22.84
Security expenses 3461.28 325171
Electricity Charges 265.83 214.28
Travelling and Conveyance 737.14 647.18
Expenses on vehicles 189.30 138.99
Telephone, telex and Postage 344.62 209.24
Advertisement and publicity 194.24 181.99
Entertainment and hospitality expenses 4.72 4.72
Printing and stationery 188.42 150.72
Remuneration to Auditors .53 0.53
Design and Consultancy charges: 0.00
- Indigenous 18536.01 15555.64
- Foreign 502.11 502.11
Expenses on compensatory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/
environmental expenses/development expenses 4824.49 221.00
Expenditure on land not belonging to corporation 4590.86 2903.30
Land acquisition and rehabilitation 0.00 0.00
EXPENDITUR ON WORK OF DOWNSTREAM PROTECTION WORKS 0.00 0.00
EAC - LEASE RENT 1571.07 1241.85
Loss on assets/ materials written off 1.69 1.67
Losses on sale of assets 23.43 17.10
Cther general expenses 1583.26 1453.62
: Sub-totol (b) 41863.31 30471.40
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period 0.00 0.00
Sub-total{B) 41863.31 30471.40
C. FINANCE COST
i} Interest on :
a) Government of India loan 0.00 0.00
b} Bonds 0.00 0.00
¢) Foreign loan 0.00 0.00
d) Term loan 0.00 0.00
e} Cash credit facilities /WCBDL 0.00 -0.00
g) Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost 0.00 0.00
Loss on Hedging Transactions 0.00 0.00
ff) Bond issue/ service expenses 0.00 0.00
iii) Commitment fee 0.00 0.00
iv) Guarantee fee on lcan 0.00 0.00
v) Other finance charges 43.10 © 719




vi) EAC- INTEREST ON LOANS FROM CENTRAL GOVERNMENT-
ADJUSTMENT ON ACCOUNT OF EFFECTIVE INTEREST

vii) EAC- INTEREST ON SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY-
ADJUSTMENT ON ACCOUNT OF EFFECTIVE INTEREST

vii) EAC- COMMITTED CAPITAL EXPENSES- ADJUSTMENT FOR TIME
VALUE

X) EAC- INTEREST EXPENSES - UNDER LEASE (IND AS)
Sub-total c)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-total (C)

D. EXCHANGE RATE VARIATION (NET}
i} ERV (Debit balance)
Less: i} ERV (Credit bafance}
Sub-total {d)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-total{D)

E. PROVISIONS
Sub-totalfe)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-totalfE)

F. DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

Sub-total {f]
Less: Capitafized During the year/Period
Sub-total(F)

G. PRICR PERIOD EXPENSES (NET)
Pricr paricd expenses
Less Prior period income
Sub-total (g)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-total (G)

H. LESS : RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES
i} Income from generation of electricity —
precommissioning

ii) Interest on loans and advances

iif} Miscellaneous receipts

iv) Profit on sale of assets

v} Provision not required written hack

Vi) Hire charges/ outturn on plant and machinery
vii} EAC-FAIR VALUE GAIN - SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY
viil} EAC-MTM Gain on derivatives
ix) EAC- FAIR VALUE GAIN ON PROVISIONS FOR COMMITTED CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE

Sub-totaf {h)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-total {H)

I. C.O./Regional Office Expenses (i}
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-totalfi}

GRAND TOTAL ( ath+ctd+efig-h+)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period

GRAND TOTAL ( A+B+C+D+E+F+G-H+)

ix} EAC- INTEREST ON FC LOANS - EFFECTIVE INTEREST ADJUSTMENT -

5985,95 2B32.15
63.52 91.81
.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
27.01 23.81
6115.58 2954.96
0.00 0.00
6119.58 2854.96
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

6.27 6.27

6.27 6.27

0.00 0.00

6.27 6.27
7400.82 5872.50
32076 284.23
7730.58 6156.73
0.00 0.00
7730.58 6156.73
237,63 237.63
0.72 0.72
236.91 23691
0.00 0.00
236.91 236.91
0.00 0.00
16357.57 12617.16
680.88 509.56
146 1.46
677.21 677.21
267.54 13875
.38 0.17
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
17985.02 13944.31
0.06 0.00
17985.04 13944.31
28430.27 25568.58
0.00 0.00
28430.27 25568.58
124687.11 102987.74
0.00 0.00
124687.11 . 102987.74
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NOTE NO. 3.1 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

Total

NOTE NO. 3.2 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

{Amount in T)

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

PARTICULARS 2024 2023
Trade Receivables - Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note
3.2.1,3.2.2and 3.2.3} - -
Total - -
3.2.1 Refer Annexure-! to Note No-3.2 for Ageing schedute of Trade Receivables.
3.2.2 Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of
them elther severally or jointly with any other person or debts due . .
by firms or private companies respectively in which any director of Nil Nil
the Company is a partner or a director or a member.
3.2.3 Debt due by subsidiaries/ Jeint Ventures and cthers related parties Nil Nil
of the company .
3.2.4 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
NOTE NO. 3.3 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS (Tin Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023
At Amortised Cost
A Loan to Related Party - Credit Impaired- Unsecured (Refer Note
34(8), 3.3.1 and 3.3.9) B -
Less: Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party (Refer . )
Note 3.3.3)
Sub-total - -
B Loans to Employees (inciuding accrued interest} {(Refer Note 3.3.1
and 3.3.2)
- Considered good- Secured 8.32 7.81
- Considerad good- Unsacured 80.38 1.17
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans (Refer Note ) .
3.3.4)
Sub-total 88.70 8.98
C Contractor / supplier
- Considered good- Secured - -
- Considered good- Unsecured - -
- Against bank guarantee - -
- Cthers - -
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractor/ Supplier _ .
{Refer Note 3.3.5)
Sub-totai - _
D State Government in settlement of dues from customer
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured - -
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Loan to State Govemment
{Refer Note 3.3.6)
Sub-total - -
E Loan including Interest to Government{Refer Note 3.3.7)
- Considered good- Unsecured - -
Sub-total - -
TOTAL 88.70 8.98
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3.3.1|Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are repayable on - -
demand.
Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are without - -
specifying any terms or period of repayment.
3.3.2|Due from directers or other officers of the company. (Refer Note
34(9} of Financial Statements).
3.3.3|Loss Allowances for doubtful Joan to Related Party
Opening Balance ) -
Addition during the year -
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance -
3.3.4 Loss Aliowances for doubtful Empioyees lcans
Addition during the year
Closing balance

3.3.5 Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractor/ Supplier

Addition during the year

Closing balance -
3.3.6 Loss Allowances for doubtful Loan to State Government

Addition during the vear

Clesing balance

3.3.7 Loan to Government granted for Business Purpose includes :

- Principal
- interest
3.3.8 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the company. The
Carrying value may be affected by the changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.
3.3.9 Advance due by firms or private companies in which any Director of Nil il
the Company is a Director or member .
3.3.10 FParticulars of Loans as required in terms of Section 186 {4) of the Companies Act, 2013 kave been disciosed under

Note 3,3 above.
3.3.11 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances,

NOTE NO. 3.4 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (X in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023

A Security Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured 18.44 - 137.72
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits {Refer Note 3.2.1) - -
Sub-total 18.44 137.72

Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity (Refer Note . .
3.4.3}
Lease Rent receivable (Refer Note 3.4.5, 3.4.6 and 34{15) - -
Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fully Serviced by
Government of India

Interest receivable on fease

Interest accrued on:

- Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity -
Derivative Mark to Market Asset -
H Receivable on account of Late payment Surcharge -
i Amount Recoverable
] Share Application Money Pending Allotment R .

- Subsidiary Jloint Venture (Refer Note 3.4.4)
Less:-Loss allowances for Share application monay pending . .
allotment (Refer Note 3.4.7)

mm O N W

[»]

Sub-total - -

TOTAL 18.44 137.72
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3.4.1 Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

3.4.2 Amount payable towards Bends fully serviced by Government of India;-Nil

3.4.3 Bank Deposits of more then 12 manths maturity includes FDR of Rs. Nii which has been taken to provide 100%

margin money for Bank Guarantee issued by the Company for obtaining electricity connectlon.

3.4.4 share Application money pending altotment includes com,
following subsidiary/joint venture company:-

pany contribution towards subscription of Share Capital in

Subsidiary Company

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

Joint Venture Company

Total

3.4.5 Refer Note 34{8) of the Financial Statements with regard to assets m

ortgaged/hypothecated as security.

346

Loss Allowances for Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Openinrg Baiance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

3.4.7 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

NOTE NO, 4 NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) (T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 3]6;154 March, As at 3%,5;3”3":“'
Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source - -

Less: Provision for Current Tax - -

Non Current Tax (Refer Note No-23) 11.03 6.34

11.03 6.34

Total

Page 202



NOTENO. 5 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

D.

CAPITAL ADVANCES
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured

- Against bank guarantee

- Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 5.1)

Sub-total

ADVANCES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ADVANCES
i) DEPOSITS
- Considered good- Unsecured
Less : Expenditure booked against demand raised by Government
Departments.
- Censidered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 5.2)
Sub-total

Interest accrued

" Others

- Considered Good
QOthers
1y Advance against arbitration awards towards capital works

{Unsecured}
Released to Contractors - Against Bank Guarantee
Released to Contractors - Others

Depesited wlth Court
Sub-total

fi} Prepaid Expenditure
iii) Deferred Fareign Currency Fiuctuation Assets/ Expenditure
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets

Deferred Expenditure on Foreign Currency Fluctuation
Sub-total

iv) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances

3,664.15

25,922.99
19,925.52

3,670.35

50,954.57
B,033.97

49,512.66

62,658.89

1,754.32

344,03

2451

1.20

TOTAL

51,291.49

63,004,12

5.1 Allowances for doubtful Advances
Opening Balance
Additlon during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

5.2 Allowances for doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used durlng the yvear
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

5.3 Advances due from Directors or other officers.

5.4 Advances due by Firms ar Private Companies in which any dlrector
of the Company Is a director or mamber.

Nil
Nil

5.5 Refer Note 34{12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil
Nil

Page 203



NOTE NO. 6 [INVENTORIES

(X in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

{Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)

Stores and spares

Stores and spares-5tores in transit/ pending inspection

Loose tools

Material at site

Materlal issued to contractors/ fabricators

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) / Verified
Carbon Units (VCUs)

Less: Allowances for Obsclescence and Diminution in Value (Refer
Note 6.1)

TOTAL

6.1 Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value
Opening Balance
Addition during the year {Refer Note 6.1.1)
Used during the year
Reversed during the year (Refer Note 6.1.2)

Clasing balance

6.1.1 During the year, inventories written down to net realisable value
(NRV) and recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

6.1.2 Allowances for Obsolence and Diminution in value of inventory

booked in earlier years and reversed during the year,

NOTE NO. 7.1 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

TOTAL

NOTE NO. 7.2 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECENVABLES

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
- 2023

- Trade Receivables- Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note
7.2.2,7.2.3,7.2.4 and 7.2.7)

- Trade Receivables-Unbilled- Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer
Note 7.2.4 and 7.2.5)

- Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired {Refer Note 7.2.2,7.2.3 and
7.2.4)

Less: Loss allowances for Trade Receivables (Refer Note 7.2.1)

TOTAL

7.2.1 Loss allowances for Trade Receivables

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

7.2.2 Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of
them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due
by firms or private companies respectively in which any director of
the Company is a partner or a director or a member.

7.2.3 Debt due by subsidiaries/ Jolnt Ventures and others related parties
of the company.

7.2.4 Refer Annexure-l to Note No-7.2 for Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables,

7.2.5 Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to be the same as their

fair value.

7.2.6 Trade Recelvables amounting to ¥ Nil (Previous Year ¥ Nil ) liguidated by way of discounting of bills from various
banks have not been derecognised in view of terms of the bill discounting agreement as per which the Company
guarantees to compensate the banks for credit losses that may occur in case of default by the respective
beneficiaries. Refer Note 20.1.2 with regard to liability recognised in respect of discounted bills.

7.2.7 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 8 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(T in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023
A Balances with banks
with scheduled banks
i} - In Current Account 2,582,97 3,715.47
i) - In deposits account
(Deposits with original maturity of less than three monihs) 26,000.00 44,350.00
fi) - InCurrent Account -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks ) )
(Refer Note 8.2)
with other banks
- In current account
Bank of Bhutan - -
8 Cheques, drafts on hand - -
c cash on hand (Refer Note 8.1) - -
TOTAL 28,582.97 48,065.47
8.1 Includes stamps on hand - -
8.2 Includes balances which are not freely available for the business of
the Company :-
{i} held for works being executed by Company on behalf of other _ )
agencies.
(i} Held for Payment of Monthly instalment on account of
securitization of ROE of Chamera-| Power Station to Lender (HDFC - -
Bank}
N
NOTE 9 : CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH Al @® in Lakhs)
EQUIVALENTS
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023
A Bank Deposits for priginal maturity more than 3 months upte 12
months {Refer Note 9.1) 2,811.00 23,565.00
B Earmarked Balances with Banks
- Deposit -Unpaig_pividerlq o - -
- Deposit -Unpaid Principal/ interest - -
- Other - -
TOTAL 2,811.00 23,565.00
9.1 Includes balances which are not freely available for the business of the Company :
{i) held for works being executed by Company on behalf of other . h
agencies.
NOTE NO. 10 CURRENT - EINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS (Tin Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 023

A Loans lincluding interest thereon) to Reiated Parties - Unsecured
{Refer Note 34(7),10.1 and 10.2)
Loan Recelvable - (Considered Good)

Loan Receivable-Credit impaired
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party {Refer

Note 10.4)
Sub-total - -
B Loans to Employees (including accrued interest) (Refer Note 10.2
and 10.3}
. Considered good- Secured 1.56 1.70
- Considered good- Unsecured 87.94 36.15
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans (Refer Note R )
10.5)
Sub-total 89.50 37.85
o Loan to State Govermnment in settiement of dues from customer
- Unsecurad (considered good) - -
Sub-total - -
o] Advances to Subsidiaries / JV's - -
TOTAL 89.50 37.85
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Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are repayable on
demand.

Leans and advances in the nature of loan that are witheut
specifying any terms or period of repayment.

Due from directors or other officers of the company.

Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

10.4 Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

10.5 Advance due by firms or private companies in which any Director of

the Company is a Director or member ,

il

10.6 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest lncome for the company. The

Carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterpaities.

Note 10 above.

10.7 Particulars of Loans as reguirad In terms of Section 186 (4} of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed under

10.8 Refer Note 34(12} of the Financiai Statements with regard fo confirmation of balances.

Nil

NOTE NO. 11 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(Tin Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

. As at 31st March,
2023

——IOT m

-

Security Deposits
- Considered good- Uinsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Ailowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 11.1)

119.28

Sub-total

119.28

Amount recoverable
Less: Loss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables (Refer Note 11.2)

26,032.77

12,240.88

Sub-total

26,032.77

12,240.88

Receivabie from Subsidiaries { Joint Ventures

Receivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge

Less: Loss allowances for Receivable on account of Late Payment
Surcharge {Refer Note 11.3)

Sub-fotal

Lease Rent receivable {Finance Lease} {Refer Note 3.4.6 and
34(15)

interest Income accrued on Bank Deposits {Refer Note 11.4)
Interest receivable on Finance lease

Interest recoverabie from beneficiary

Interest Accrued on Investment (Bonds}

Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fuily Serviced by
Government of india

-Principal

- Interest accrued

Interest accrued on Loan to State Government in settlement of dues
from customers

Derivative MTM Asset

Claim recoverabte from parent company - NHPC LTD,

TOTAL

26,203.81

12,788.65
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11.1 Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Amount recoverable - it includes amount of claim to be reimbursed
by State Taxes Department, Government of J&K to the Company in
terms of scheme “Reimbursement of State Goods and Services
Taxes on Utilization of Goods and Service in the Power Projects in
the Union Territory of Jammu and Kashmir (RSGTPP)" for
development and construction of PakalDul HEF, Kiru HEP &Kwar
HEP notified by Finance Department, Government of Jammu &
kashmir vide Notification 50. 281 dt. 17.08.2021 to the extent
11,2 Suppliers’ involces are reflected in GSTR 2A of the Company 25,861.70 12,140.69
including cash paid by it on Reverse Charge Mechanism (RCM)
basis. Wherever the amount of claim to be reimbursed by State
Taxes Department, Government of J&X was booked as cost of
PPE/CWIP in earlier years, the same has also been included in the
racoverable amount after Correspending adjustment to PPEJCWIP.

11.3 Loss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
aeversed during the year
Closing balance

11.4 Loss Allowances for Receivables on account of late payment
surcharge
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance

11.5 Includes interest accrued on balances of held for works being
executed by Company on hehalf of other agencies and are not
freely available for the business of the Company.

11.6 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of baiances.

NOTE NO. 12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS {NET) (% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 5023
Current Tax Assets
A Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source - -
B Less: Provision for Current Tax - -

Net Current Tax Assets (A-B)
Income Tax Refundable

Total -
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NOTE NO. 13.1 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Tin Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

A, Advances other than Capital Advances
a) Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured

Less : Expenditure booked against demand raised by Government

Departements
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits {(Refer Note 13.1.1)

b) Advance to contractors and suppliers {Refer Note 13.1.8)
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Against bank guarantee
- Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less ; Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 13.1.2)

Sub-total

c) Other advances - Employees
- Considered good- Unsecured (Refer Note 13.1.7)

Sub-total

d) Interest accrued
Others
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful
Less: Ailowances for Doubtful Interest (Refer Note 13.1.3)

Sub-total

B. Others
a) Expenditure awaiting adjusiment

Less: Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

(Refer Note 13.1.4)

Sub-tetal

b} Losses/Assets awaiting write off sanction/pending investigation

less: Allowances for losses/Assets pending investigation/awaiting

write off / sanction (Refer Note 13.1.5)

Sub-total

c} Work In Progress
Construction wark in progress{on behalf of client)
Consultancy work in progress(on behalf of client)

d) Prepaid Expenditure

e) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances

f) Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets
Deferred Expenditure on Forelgn Currency Fluctuation

g) Goods and Services Tax Input Receivable
Less: Allowances for Goods and Services Tax Input Receivabie
{Refer Note 13.1.6)

Sub-total

h) Others {Mainly on account of Material 1ssued to Contractors)

Sub-total

1.83

3.88

1.93

3.98

187.74

2,189.58

187.74

2,189.58

72.46
2,12

1.43

1.43

TOTAL

407.30

2,440.30
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13.1.2

13.1.1 Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Allowances for doubtful advances (Contractors and Suppliers)

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

13.1.3

13.1.4

13.15

13.1.6

13.1.7
13.1.8

13.1.9

Allowances for Doubtful Accrued Interest
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Aliowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Allowances for losses pending investigation/ awaiting write off f
sanction

Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

0.75

0.75

Closing balance

Allowances for Goods and Services Tax Input Receivable
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Due from Directors or other officars of the company.
Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of
ihe Company Is a Director or member.

Nil
il

Refer Note 34(12) of the Financiai Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

il
Nil

NOTE NO. 13.2 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

{Amount in ¥}

As af 31st March,

As at 31st March,

PARTICULARS 2024 2023
Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Nota 13.2.1) 1.76 3.33
1.76 3.33

TOTAL

13.2.1

Property, Plant and Equipment incudes Plant and equipment and Other assets (Office equipment, vehiclesfurniture
and fixtures,ete,) have been identified for disposal due to replacement/ obsolescence of assets which happens in the

normal course of operations,
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NOTE NO. 14.1 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT DEBIT BALANCES

{ZTin Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

A Regulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of Subansiri Lower
Project
COpening Balance
Addition during the year {Refer Note 31)
Adjustment during the year
Reversed during the year
Less:Provided for

Closing balance

B Wage Revision as per 3rd Pay Revision Committee
Cpening Balance
Adjustment during the year (through Statement of Profit and Loss)
(Refer Note 31)
Adjustment duting the year (through Other Comprehensive Income)
(Refer Note 30.2)
Reversed during the vear

Closing balance

C Differential Depreciation due to Moderation of Tariff

QOpening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Adjustment during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

D Exchange Differences on Monetary ltems

Cpening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31}
Adjustment during the year

Reversed during the year

56.37
(4.06)

10.60
45.77

Closing balance

5231

56.37

E Interest Payment on Court/Arbitration Cases

Cpening Baiance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Adjustment during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

F Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto

2009

Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31}
Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

G Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-

2019 and onwards

QOpening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

52,31

56.37

Less: Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries

Regulatory Deferral Account Balances net of Deferred Tax.

52.31

56.37

14.1

and Reguistory Deferral Account Baiances .

NOTE NO. 14.2 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT CREDIT BALANCES

Refer Note 34 (18) and 34 (22) of Financial Statements for futher disclosures regarding Impairement

{Z in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

MAT Credit to be passed on to beneficiaries
Cpening Balance

Addition during the year {Refer Note 31)
Used during the year (Refer Note 31)
Reversed during the year (Refer Note 31)

Closing balance

14.2.1

Refer Note 34 (22) of Financial Statements for futher disclosure regarding Regulatory Deferral Account Balances .
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(¥ Lakhs)

NOTE : 15.1 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount

Authorized Share Capital (Par value per 52000.00 520000.00 52000.60 520000.00
share Rs. 10)
Equity shares issued, subscribed and fully 44503.41 445034.13 36923.91 369239.13
paid (Par value per share Rs. 10}

15.1.1 Reconciliation of eguity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Opening Balance 36923.91 369239.13 33364.51 333645.13
Add: No. of shares/Share Capital issued/ 7579.50 75795.00 3558.40 35594.00
subscribed during the year .
Less:-Buyback of shares during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 44503.41 445034.13 36923.91 369239.13

15.1.2

The Company has issued only one kind of equity shares with voting rights proportionate to the share holding of the
shareholders, These voting rights are exercisable at meeting of shareholders, The holders of the equity shares are also
entitled to receive dividend as deciared from time to tima. ln the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of
equity shares wiil be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of al! preferential amounts.

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

15.1.3 Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent specifying the number of shares held : -
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Number In (%) Number In (%}
i) NHPC Limited 24041.11 54.02% 19473.91 52.74%
ii) JKSPDC Limited 20462.30 45.98% 17450.60 47.26%
Total 44503.41 100.00% 36923.91 100.00%
15.1.4 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2024
S.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares |% Change during
the year
1 NHPC Limited 24041,11 54.02% 1.28%
2 [JKSPDC Limited 20462.30 45,98% -1.28%

15.1.5 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2023
5.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares (% Change during
the year
1 NHPC Limited 19473.91 52.74% -2.39%
2  |JKSPDC Limited 17450.00 47.26% 2.3%9%
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NOTE NO. 15,2 OTHER EQUITY ) (% Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 | A% 3 31t March,
(i} Share Application Money Pending Allotment ‘
As per tast Balance Sheet 22,469.00 10,000.00
Add: Received During The Year 76,242.00 48,063.00
Less: Shares Issued during the Year 75,795.00 35,594.00
As at Balance Sheet date 22,916.00 22,469.00

{ii} Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Adg: Transfer from General Reserve
Add: Transfer from Securities Premium account
Less: Write back during the year
As at Balance Sheet date

(iit) Bond Redemption Reserve
As per |ast Balance Sheet
Less: Transfer to Surplus/Retained Earnings
As at Balance Sheet date
{iv} General Reserve
As per |last Balance Sheet
As at Balance Sheet date

{v) Surplus/ Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet 7,215.28 5,400.73
Add: Profit during the year © 1,068.19 2,514.55
Add: Other Comprehensive income during the year
Add: Transfer from Bond Redemption Reserve
Less: Dividend (Final and Interim)

As at Balance Sheet date 8,983.47 7,915.28

(vi) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC!)-Debt Instruments

As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Change in Fair value of FVTOCI (Net of Tax}
As at Balance Sheet date

{vil) Fair value through Other Comprehensive income {FVTOCI}-Equity Instruments
As par fast Balance Sheet
Add: Change in Fair value of FVTOCI {Net of Tax)

As at Balance Sheet date
TOTAL 31,899.47 30,384.28

15.2.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

{i} General Reserve : The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation
purposes, as the same is created by transfer from one component of equity to another.The same will be utilised as per the
provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013

(i) Surplusf Retained Earnings : Surplus/ Retalned earnings generally represent the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated
earnings of the company and includes remeasurement gain/ losses on defined benefit obligations.
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NOTE NO. 15.3 FUNDS FROM CORPORATE QFFICE {Transfer Accounts) (Tin Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023
FUNDS FROM CORPORATE OFFICE 400,674.13 301,923.39
C.0.{JAMMU) 73,740.38 37,581.89
PAKAL DUL (111,833.74) (75,212.45)
KIRU (52,979.50) {26,384.04)
KWAR {16,252.08) {13,458.59)
CHEQUE PAID ACCOUNT
C.0. {(JAMMU) 140,384.98 92,763.99
DULHASTI {STAGE - 1) - -
PAKAL DUL (300,072.34) (217.848.16)}
KIRU {90,806,52) (74,839.72)
KWAR (42,855.31} (24,526.31)

Total
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NOTE NO. 16.1 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS {¥in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 T 2023
At Amortised Cost
A - Secured Loans
-Bonds - -
-Term Loan - -
- from Banks - -
- from Other (Financial Institutions) - -
B - Unsecured Loans
-Bonds - -
-Term Loan
- from Bank - .
- from Government of India (Subordinate Debts)
{Refer Note 16.1.2) 60,987.31 38,454.67
- from Other (in Forelgn Currency) - -
C Loan from Parent Company
- Term Loan -Unsecured {(Refer Note 16.1.4) - -
TOTAL 60,987.31 38,454.67

16.1.1 Debt Covenants : Refer Note 33(3) with regard to capital Management.

16.1.2 Term Loan-From Government of india (Subordinate Debts) is net of fair valuation since these loans carry interest rate
which is lower than the prevailing market rate. Total Subordinate Debts outstanding as on 31,03.2024 is ¥
1,62,771.00 Lakhs(Previous Year T 1,02,349.00 Lakhs). This includes current maturity amounting to ¥ Nil (Previous
Year T Nil). :

16.1.3 Particulars of Redemption, Repayments, Securities and Rate of Interest:

Subordinate Debt from Government of India for Pakal Dul HEP {Repayment to be started from 8th year of completion
of profect and continue till 18th year i.e. from September 2034 along with interest @ 1% p.a to be charged after
completion of the project.

16.1.4 Maturity Analysis of Borrowings

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's
borrowings and lease liability based on coniractual payments
{Undisccunted Cash Flows) :

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2024

As at 31st
March, 2023

More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years

More than 5 Years 162,771.00 102,349.00
TOTAL 162,771.00 '102,349.00
NOTE NO. 16.2 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES {Amount in )
PARTICULARS As at gtszt4March, As at glésztaMarch,
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34({16)(A)) 21.12 54.72
TOTAL 21.12 54.72
16.2.1 Maturlty Analysis of Lease Liability
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's
borrowings and lease liability based on contractual payments
(Undiscounted Cash Flows) :
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Mare than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years 23.80 56.71
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years
More than 5 Years
TOTAL 23.80 56.71
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
16.2.2 Movement in Lease Liabiiity 2024 2023
Opening Balance 149.39 129.05
Addition in lease liabilities 42.38 110.39
Finance Cost accrued during the year 7.36 8.42
Less: Payment of iease liahilities 108.55 98.47
Closing Balance 90.58 149.39
Current maturities of lease obligations {Refer Note 20.2) 69.46 94.67
Long term maturities of lease obligations 21.12 54,72
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NOTE NO. 16.3 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILTIES - OTHERS

T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

16.3.1

Payable towards Bends Fuliy Serviced by Government of India

- Principal
Retentlen Maney
Liability against capltai works/supplies
Payable for Late Payment Surcharge
Derivative MTM Liability

117.46

TOTAL

117.46

Maturity Analysis of Note No-16.3
The tabie below summarises
deposits/retention money based on
(Undiscounted Cash Flows) :

contractual

the maturity proflle of the
payments

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2024

As at 31st
March, 2023

More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years
More than 5 Years

11.81

113.25
5.59

TOTAL

11.81

118.84

NOTE NO.

17 PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT

(% in Lakhs}

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Provision for Long term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation)
As per last Balance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

—

1,192.11
24794

952.67
239.44

Closing Balance

1,440.05

1,192.11

QOTHERS

i} Provision For Committed Capital Expenditure
As per last Baiance Sheet :
Additions during the year
Amount used during the yeaar
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

ii) Provision For Livelihood Assistance
As per last Balance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

iii} Provision-Cthers

As per last Baiance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

TOTAL

1,440.05

1,192.11

17.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions Is given In Note 34 (18} of Financiai Statements.
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NOTE NO. 18

NON CURRENT - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

{T in Lakhs}

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

Deferred Tax Liability

a) Property, Plant and Equipments, Right of Use, Investment Property
and Intangible Assets.

b} Financlai Assets at FVTOCI

c) Other ltems
Deferred Tax Liability

Less:-Set off Deferred Tax Assets pursuant to set off provisions

a) Pravisicn for employee benefit scheme, doubtful debts, inventory
and others

b) Other ltems

c) MAT credit entittement

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabliity (Net)

NOTE NO. 19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(T in Lakhs)

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

PARTICULARS 2024 2023
income received in advance-Advance Against Depreciation - -
Defarred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Liabiiities - -
Deferred Income from Foreign Currency Fluctuation Account - -
Grants in aid-from Government-Deferred Income (Refer Note 19.1) 107,769.64 66,726.48

TOTAL 107,769.64 66,726.48
19.1 GRANTS IN AID-FROM GOVERNMENT-DEFERRED INCOME
Opening Balance (Current and Non Current) 66,726 39,565.33
Add: Received during the year 41,043 27,161.15
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 24.2}
Closing Balance (Current and Non Current) {Refer Note 19.1,1}) 107,769.64 66,726.48
Grants in Aid-from Government-Deferred Income (Current}- (Refer _ .
Note Neo-21)
Grants in Aid-from Governmeant-Deferred Income
(Non-Current) 107,769.64 66,726,428
19.1.1 Grant includes:-
{i) Fair value gain on Subordinate Debts received from Government of
india for Pakal Dul HEP accounted as Grant in Aid. 107,769.64 66,726.48
Total 107,769.64 66,726.48

NOTE NO. 20.1 BORROWINGS - CURRENT

{Amount in T)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

Loan Repayable on Demand

From Banks-Secured (Refer Note 20.1.1})

Qther Loans

From Bank-Secured (Refar Note 20.1.2)

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 20.1.3)
- Bonds-Secured

-~ Term Loan -Banks-Secured

- Term Loan -Financiai Institutions-Secured

- Term Loan -Banks-Unsecured

- Unsecured-From Government (Subordinate Debts)
- Other-Unsecured (in Foreign Currency)

Sub Total (C)
Loan frem Parent Company (Refer Note 20.1.4)
- Term Loan -Unsecured

TOTAL
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(% in Lakhs)

NOTE NO. 20.2 CURRENT - FINANCIAL EIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILTIES
As at 31st March, As at 31st Maich,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34(15) 69.46 94.67
TOTAL 69.46 94.67
NOTE NO. 20.3 TRADE PAYABLE - CURRENT (Amount in T)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2024 2023
Totai outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises
(Refer Note 20.3.1) 129.25 113.76
Totai outstanding dues of Creditors othar than micre enterprises and
smail enterprises (Refer Note 20.3.3) 287.21 203.77
TOTAL 416.46 323.53
20.3.1 Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise ;-
129,25 119.76

Qutstanding Liabilities towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

Disclosure of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the information avaiiable with the Company
regarding the status of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
(the Act). Additionai disclosure as required under Sectlon 22 of the Act is given under Note No.34{14) of Financial

Statements.

20.3.2 Refer Annexure-i to Note No-20.3 for Ageing scheduie of Trade Payables.
20,3.3 Totai outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises includes Rs. Nil {(Pevious Year Rs. Nil) due to Parent

Campany.

20.3.4 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to conflrmation of balances.

NOTE NO. 20.4 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

Bond application money

Liability against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Smail
Enterprises (Refer Note 20.4.4}

Deposits

Liablllty against capital works/supplies-Micro and Srali Enterprises
(Refer Note 20.4.1)

Liability agalnst Corporate Social Respansibility

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Interest accrued and due on borrowlngs

Payable towards Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of India
- Principal

- Interest

Earnest Monay Deposit/ Retention Money

Due to Subsidiaries/Parent

Liabllity for share appiication money -to the extent refundabie
Unpaid dividend

Unpaid Principaif Interest

Payable for Late Payment Surcharge

Derlvative MTM Liability

Payahle to Empioyees

Payable to Others

24,970.54

17.54
23.76

5,424.05
934.36

31.23
4,94

16,794.92

3.21
20.22

2,165.39
156.74

46.28
457

TOTAL

31,406.42

19,191.33

204.1

Disclosure regarding Micro, Smalil and Medium Enterprise :-
Qutstanding Liabilities towards Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprise
Qutstanding Interest towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

Disclosure of amount payable te Micro and Smail Enterprises Is based on the information available with the Company
regarding the status of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
(the Act), Additlonal disclosure as required under Section 22 of The Act is given under Note No.34(14) of Financial

Statements.

Parent Company.

17.54

20.4.2 Interest accrued but not due on barrowings includes interest amounting to Rs.Nil payable to Parent Company.
20.4.3 Interest accrued and due on borrowings includes interest amounting to Rs. Nil payabie to Parent Company.

20.4.4 Liabiiity against capitai works/supplies other than Mlcro and Small Enterprises Includes Rs 544.42 Lakhs Payabie to

20.4.5 Refer Note 34{15) of the Finznclal Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

321
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Annexure-l to Note No-20.3

As at 31st March 2024

(Rs in Lakhs)

Trade Payble due and outstanding for following period from due date

icul of payment
Particulars Unbill N l.ess than 1 More than 3
nbilled otDue  year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years Total
() MSME 77.89 0.08 51.28 129.25
(i) Others 114.57 0.00 164.05 5.83 2,76 287.21
(iii} Disputed dues-MSME o 0
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0
Total 192,46 0.08 215.23 5.83 2.76 0 416.46
As at 31st March 2023
Trade Payble due and outstanding for following period from due date
icul of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not D Less than 1 More than 3
nbifle of Due year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years Total
(i) MSME 98.38 0.64 20.74 119.76
(i} Others 91.85 0.74 108.42 0.35 2.4 203.77) -
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME 0
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0
Total 180.23 1.38 129.16 0.35 241 0 323.53
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NOTE NO. 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount In )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

Income received in advance (Advance against depreciation)
Deferred Incorme from Foreign Currency Fluctuation Account
Deferred Foreign Currency Fiuctuation Liabiilties

Unspent amount of deposit/fagency basis works

Water Usage Charges Payables

Statutory dues payables

Contract Liabilities-Deposit Works

Contract Llabilitles-Project Management/ Consultancy Work
Provision toward amount recoverable in respect of Project
Management/ Consuitancy Work

Advance from Customers and Others

Grants tn aid-from Government-Deferred income (Refer Note No-
19.1)

2,057.06

1,616.83

TOTAL

2,057.06

1,616.83

21.1 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

NOTE NO. 22 PROVISIONS - CURRENT

(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

A, PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Provision for Long term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation)

As per last Balance Sheet

Additions during the year

Amount usedftransfered during the year
Amount reversed during the year

32.43
38.49
32.43

26.44
32.43
26.44

Closing Balance

38.49

32.43

r

—

Provisign for Wage Revision
As per last Balance Sheet

Additlons during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

Less: Advance paid
Closing Balance {Net of advance)

iif} Provision for Performance Related Pay/Incentive
As per last Baiance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the vear
Amount reversed during the year

871.21
670.57
849.01

0.13

803.88
965.69
897.93

0.43

Closing Balance

692.64

871.21

Less:-Advance Paid

2.16

12.73

Closing Balance Net of Advance

690.48

858.48

iv} Provision for Superannuation / Pension Fund

As per last Balance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount raversed during the year

Closing Balance

v} Provision For Wage Revision - 3rd Pay Revision Committee
As per last Balance Sheat
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance
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B. OTHERS
i} Provision For Tariff Adjustment
As per last Balance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

ii) Provision For Committed Capital Expenditure
As per last Balance Sheet

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

10,165.73
3,083.41
500.00

12,165.73

2,000.00

Closing Balance

12,749.14

10,165.73

iii) Provision for Restoration expenses of Insured Assets
As per last Balance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

iv) Provision For Livelihood Assistance
As per last Balance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

v) Provision in respect of arbitration award/ court cases
As per last Balance Shest
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

vi} Provision - Others
As per last Baiance Sheet
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the vear

Closing Balance

TOTAL

13,478.11

11,056.64

22.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions is given in Note 34 (1B) of Financial Statements.

NOTE NO. 23 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET}

(Tin Lakhs)

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

PARTICULARS 2024 2023
Current Tax Liability as per last Balance Sheet 1,345.34 789.70
Additions during the year 899.60 1,345.35
Amount adjusted during the year 1,345.35 789.70
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Closing Balance of Current Tax Liablity (A) £899.60 1,345.34
bess: Current Advance Tax including Tax Deducted at Source (B) 910.63 1,351.68
Net Current Tax Liabilities (A-B) (11.03) {6.34)

11.03 6.34

[Disclosed under Note No-4 above}

TOTAL
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NOTE NO. 24.1 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS % in Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Operating Revenue

A SALES (Refer Note 24.1.1 and 24.1.3 )
Sale of Power - -
Advance Against Depreciation -Written back during the year - -
Performance based Incentive - -

Sub-total (1) - -
Lass :
Saies adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation - . -
Tariff Adjustments (Refer Note 24.1.2}) - -
Regulated Power Adjustment - -
Income from generation of electricity ~ precommissioning -
(Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction) (Refer - -
Note 32)
Rebate to customers ’ - -

Sub-total (i) - -
Sub - Total {A) = {ii) - -
B income from Finance Lease {Refer Note 34(15}(B)) - -
c Income from Operating Lease (Refer Note 34(15)(C) - -
D Reveknue From Contracts, Project Management and Consultancy
Works

Contract income ' - -
Revenue from Project management/ Consultancy works - -

Sub - Total (D) - -

E Revenue from Power Trading
Sale of Power - -
{ess:-Rebate to customers - -
Trading Margin {Refer Note 24.1.4}) - -

Sub - Total (E) - -

Sub-Taotal-l {A+8+C+D+E}) - -

F OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
Inceme Fram Sale of Self Generated VERS/REC - ’ -
Income on account of generation based incentive (GBI} - -
Interest from Beneficiary States -Revision of Tariff - -
Incorne on account of Sale of Scrap - -

Sub-Total-ll - -

TOTAL (I+11) - -
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NOTE NO. 24.2 OQTHER INCOME

(T In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

A)

B}

(03]

Interest Income
- Investments carried at FVTCCI- Non Taxable

- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Taxable

- Interest - Government Securities (8.5% tax free bonds issued by
the State Governments)

- Loan to Government of Arunachal Pradesh
- Deposit Account
- Employee's Loans and Advances (Net of Rebate)
- Advance to contractors
- Unwindling of Falr Value Loss on Financial Assets
- Cthers
Dividernd Income
- Dividend from subsidiaries (Refer Note 34.8)
- Dividend - Others
Other Non Operating Income (Net of Expenses directly attributable
to such income}
Late payment surcharge
Realization of Less Due To Business Interruption
Profit on saie of investments
Profit on sale of Assets (Net)
Income from insurance Claim
Liabilities/ Impairment Aliowances/ Provisions not required written
hack {Refer Note 24.2.1)
Material Issued to contractor
(i} Sale on account of material issued to contractors
(i) Less: Cost of materiai issued to contracters on recoverable basis
{iii) Net: Adjustment on account of material issued to contractor
Amortization of Grant in Aid (Refer Note 19.1)
Exchange rate variation (Net)
Mark to Market Gain on Derivative
Others

Suhb-total
Add/(Less): C.0. Income Allacation
Add/(Less): Regional Office Income Ailocation

Sub-totai
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Transferred to Advance/ Deposit from Client/Contractees and
against Deposit Works
Less: Transfer of other income fo grant

Total

3,574.38
1.22

3,740.26

303.89
7,619.75

5,342.13
1.64
5,653.05

3.34

143,70
11,145.13

7.619.75
4,044.35

11,145.13
5,798.44

3,575.40

5.346.69

24,2.1 Detail of Llabillties/impairment Allowances/Provisions not required

written back
&) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Employees Loans
b) Aiiowances for Bad & Doubtful Advances to Contractor/ Supplier
c) Aliowances for Bad & Doubtful Loan to State Government
d) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Capital Advances '
e) Allowances for Obsoiescence & Diminution in Vaiue of Inventories
f) Aliowances for trade receivabies
g) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Daposits
h) Allowances for loan which have signtficant increase in credit risk
1) Alfowances for doubtfui recoverables
1) Allpwances for Doubtful Accrued interest
k) Aiiowances for project expenses awalting write off sanction

i} Aliowances for losses pending investigation/awaiting write off / sanction

m) Provision for Leng Term Beneflts {Provided for on the basis of acturial
valuation)
n) Provision for PRP / Incentive /Productivity Linked Incentive

o} Provision for tariff adjustment
p} Provision for Committed Capital Expenditure

q) Prevision for Livellhood Assistance

r} Provision for Restoration expenses of Insured Assets
s) Pravision for 3rd PRC

t) Others

1.27

TOTAL

1.27
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NOTE NO. 25.1 Purchase of Power - Trading

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Purchase of Power
Less : Rebate from Supplier

Total

NOTE NO. 25.2 GENERATION EXPENSES

{Tin Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Water Usage Charges

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Sub-total

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction

Total

NOTE NO. 26 EMPLOYEE BEENEFITS EXPENSE

(T in Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Selaries and Wages B,125.82 7,420.22
gggt)nbutlon to provident and other funds {Refer Note 26.2 and 1,008.44 1,054.84
Staff weifare expenses 813.81 520.66
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution - -
Sub-total 9,948.07 9,004.72
Add/(Less): C.0. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/({Less):; Regionai Office Expenses Allocation - -
Sub-total 9,948.07 9,004.72
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributabie to Construction 8,890.02 7,890.50
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 1,058.05 1,114.22

26,1 Disclosura about leases towards residential accomodation for empioyees are given in Note 34 (15) {A) of Financial

Statements,

26.2|Contribution to provident and other funds include contributions:

For the Year ended
31st March, 2624

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

i) towards Employees Provident Fund
it) towards Employees Defined Contripution Superannuation
Scheme

306.72
366.53

473.32
469.64

26.3 Salary and wages includes expenditure on short term leases as per
IND AS-116 " Leases",
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NOTE NO. 27 FINANCE COSTS

(% in Lakhs}

Government of India lean
Short Term Loan

Cash credit facilities /WCDL
Other interest charges

For the Year ended For t'he Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Bonds “ -
Term loan - -
Foreignh igan -

Lease Liabilities 7.36 8.42
Unwinding of discount-Government of india Loan 3,153.80 2,310.48
Sub-total 3,161.16 2,318.90
B Other Borrowing Cost
Call spread/ Coupon Swap -
Bond issuef service expenses - -
Commitment fee - -
Guarantee fee on foreign loan - -
Other finance charges 37.00 0.01
Unwinding of discount-Provision & Financial Liablities Q.98 17.38
Sub-total 37.98 17.39
c Applicable net {gain)/ loss on Foreign currency transactions and
transiation
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost - -
Less: Transferred to Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets - -
Sub-total - -
D Interest on Income Tax 4,10 -
Total (A + B+ C+D) 3,203.24 2,336.29
Addf{Less): C.C. Expenses Allocation - -
Addf{Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation - -
TOTAL 3,203.24 2,336.29
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction 3,197.57 2,334.72
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 5.67 1.57
NOTE NO, 28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES (T in Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Depreciation -Property, Plant and Equipment 739.49 990.25

DCepreciation-Right of use Assets 1,041.27 1,031.28

Amortization -Intangible Assets 24861 11.06
Depreciation adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate . B

Variation (Refer Note 19 and 5(D){iii)

Add/(Less): C.0. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less): Regional Cffice Expenses Allocation - -
aAdd/{Less): Depreciation aliocated to/from other units - -

Sub-total 1,805.37 2,032.59

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction 1,726.54 1,972.47
Less: Recoverable from Depaosit Works - -

Total 78.83 60.12
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NOTE NO. 29 OTHER EXPENSES

(% In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Direct Expenditure on Contract, Project Management and
Consultancy Works

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
- Building
- Machinery
- Others
Rent {Refer Note 29.4)
Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Security expenses
Efectricity Charges
Travelling and Conveyance
Expenses on vehicies
Telephone, telex and Postage
Advertisement and publicity
Entertainment and hospitality expenses
Printing and stationery
Legal Expenses
Consultancy charges - Indigenous
Consultancy charges - Foreign
Audit expenses (Refer Note 29.3)
Expenses on compensatory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/
environmental expenses/development expenses
Expenses on work of downstream protection works
Expenditure on land not belenging to company
Loss on Assets (Net)
Losses out of insurance claims
Donation
Corporate social responsibility {(Refer Note 34{13))
Community Development Expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Interest on Arbitration/ Cowrt Cases
Compensation on Arbltration/ Court Cases
Interest to beneficiary
Expenditure on Self Generated VER's/REC
Exchange rate variation {Net)
Training Expenses
Petition Fee fRegistration Fee /Other Fee - To
CERC/RLDC/RPCHEX/PXIL
Operational/Running Expenses of Kendrlya Vidyalay
Operationalf&unning Expenses of Cther Schools
Operational/Running Expenses of Guest House/Transit Hostel
COpersting Expenses of DG Set-Other than Residential
Fair Vaiue Loss on Financiai Assets
Change in Fair Value of Derivatives
Other general expenses

Sub-total

Add/{Less): C.0. Expenses Allocation
Add/({Less): Regional Office Expenses Ailocation
Sub-total
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recaverable from Deposit Works
Less: Transfer to Generai Reserve for Expenses on Buyback

Sub-total (i)
PROVISIONS/ IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE
Loss alfowance for trade receivables
Loss Allowance for Expected Credit Loss -Trade Recelvables
Altowance for Bad and doubtful advances [ depaosits
Allowance for Bad and doubtful claims
Aliowance for Bad and Doubtful Loan
Allowance for Doubtful Interest
Aliowance for stores and spares/ Construction stores
Altowance for Shortage In store & spares provided
Allowance against diminution in the value of investment
Allowance for Project expenses
Allowance for losses pending investigation/ awaiting write off / sanction
Allowance for Diminution in value of Inventory of Self Generated VER's
Provided for
Allowance for catchment area treatment plan
Interest to Beneficiary {Refer Note 29.2)
Interest against court/arbitration award

Cthers

Sub-total
Add/(Less): C.0O. Expenses Ailocation
Addf{Less): Regicnal Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-total

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction

Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works
Sub-total {ii)

Total {i-+i)

1,064.83 870.40
0,02 -
147.27 135.99
334.54 284.29
250.21 210.55
86.14 54,97
7.71 7.34
308.20 299.58
103.73 91.58
188.11 177.85
8B8.01 83.83
211.62 86.42
22.48 18.32
7.03 7.11
60.26 36.82
12.85 5.79
2,900.32 2,478.45
5.90 6.49
4,603.49 64.43
1,687.56 274.09
13.64 11.03
.39 0.25
34.57 20,93
4.70 37.02
11.22 8.72
0.96 .
1,72 -
207.72 834.35
12,455.22 6,107.90
12,455.22 6,107.90
11,060.62 5,730.40
32.85 20.84
261.75 356.66
461,75 356,66
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28.1 Disclosure about leases are given in Note 34 (15) (A) of Financiai Statements.

(T in Lakhs)

29.2
Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Pending notification of revisien order by CERC in respact of truing
up application filed by the company under CERC notification dated
21.02.2014, stated amount has been provided in the books during
the year towards interest to Beneficiary States, which may have to
be pald in case of reduction in tariff as a resuit of said revision
order.

" (Zin Lakhs)

29.3
Detail of audit expenses are as under: -

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For. the Year ended
31st March, 2023

i) Statutory auditors

As Auditor

- Audit Fees

- Tax Audit Fees

In other Capacity

- Taxation Matters

- Company Law Matters

- Management Services

- Other Matters/services

- Reimbursement of expenses
ii) Cost Auditors

- Audit Fees

- Reimbursement of expenses
i) Goods and Service Tax (GST) Auditors
- Audit Fees

- Refmbursemeant of expenses
Totai Audit Expenses

(i) Expenditure on short-term leases other than iease term of one
month or less
(it} Expenditure on iong term iease of iow-vaiue assets
(iii) Variable iease payments not included in the measurement of iease
liabilities

NOTE NO. 30.1 TAX EXPENSES

29.4 Rent inciudes the foliowing expenditure as per iND AS-116 " Leases".

4,72 4.72
1.18 1.77
5.0 6.49
267.33 240.72
§7.21 43.57
(% in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Current Tax
Provision for Current Tax
Adjustment Relating Te Earlier years

899.60
(0.75})

1,345.35

Total Current Tax expenses

898.85

1,345.35

Deferred Tax

Decrease (increase) in Deferred Tax Assets

- Relating to origination and reversai of temporary differences
- Relating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of eariier years

- Adjustments on account of MAT credit entitlement

Increase {decrease} in Deferred Tax Liabilities

- Refating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
- Reiating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments in respect of defarred tax of eariier years

Total Deferred Tax Expenses {benefits)

Net Deferred Tax

Total

898.85

1,345,35
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NOTE NO. 30.2 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Zin Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

{1} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of the post employment definad benefit
obllgations

Less: Income Tax on remeasurement of the post employment
defined beneafit obligations

Remeasurement of the post empioyment defined benefit
obligations (net of Tax)

Less:-Movement in Regulatory Deferraf Account Balances in respect
of tax on defined benefit obilgations

-Movement in Reguiatory Deferral Account Balances-
Remeasurement of post employment defined benefit abiigations
Less: Impact of Tax on Reguiatory Deferrai Accounts

Sub total (a)

(b) Investment in Equity instruments
Less: Incorme Tax on Equity Instruments

Sub total (b)

Total (i)=(a)+(b)

(i} Items that will be reclassified to profit or ioss
- investment in Debt instruments
Less: Income Tax on investment in Debt Instruments

Total (ii)

Total ={i+i)

NOTE NO. 31 Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

(T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

(ty Wage Revision as per 3rd Pay Revision Committee
{ii) Depreciation due to moderation of Tariff
{iii) Exchange Differences on Monetary Items
(iv) Interest Payment on Court/Arbitration Casas
(v) Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto
2009
(vi) Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liahilities for tariff peried 2014-
2019 and onwards
(vil} Reguliatory Liability on account of recognition of MAT Credit

(4.06)

TOTAL (1) +{H)+(fil )+ {iv+{v)+ (vi) +(vii)

Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferrai Accounts

Less: Deferred Tax on Reguiatory Deferrai Account Bafances
Add: Deferred Tax recoverabie from Beneficiaries

Totai
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NOTE NO. 32 EXPENDITURE ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONSTRUCTION (EAC) FORMING PART OF CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE

YEAR
(% in_Lakhs}
For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A, GENERATION EXPENSE
Weter Usage Charges - -
Consumption of stores and spare parts - .
Sub-total - -
B. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages 5,569.98 4,841.80
Contribution to provident and other funds 697.29 726.35
Staff welfare expenses 480.76 290.17
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution - -
Sub-total 6,748.03 5,958.32
C. EINANCE COST
Interest on : {Refer Note 2.2.3}
Bonds - -
Foreign loan - -
Term loan - -
Lease Liabilities 3.20 3.59
3.20 3.59
Cash credit facilities /WCDL - -
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost - -
Loss on Hedging Transactions - -
Bond issue/ service expenses - -
Commitment fee - -
Guarantee fee on loan - -
Other finance charges 37.00 0.01
Transfer of expenses to EAC- Interest on loans from Central
Government-adjustment on account of effective interest 3,133.80 2,310.48
Transfer of expenses to EAC-Interest on security deposit/ retention 0.53 17.03
money-adjustment on account of effective interest ' ’
Transfer of expenses to EAC-committed capital expenses-adjustment _
for time value i
Sub-total 3,194.53 2,331.11
D. DEFRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES 1,573.86 1,834.16
Sub-total 1,372.86 1,834.16
E. QTHER EXPENSES
Repairs And Maintenance:
-Building : 697.75 543.38
~Machinery 0.02 -
-Others 118.28 108.70
Rent & Hire Charges 573.39 490,75
Rates and taxes 6.39 11.02
Insurance 1.96 1.32
Security expenses 208.56 201.80
Electricity Charges 51.55 46.19
Traveiling and Conveyance 89.86 112.08
Expenses on vehicles 50.32 42.62
Telephone, telex and Postage 135.40 65.84
Advertisement and publicity 12.26 0.84
Entertainment and hospitality expenses - -
Printing and stationery 37.71 18,23
Legal and Consuftancy charges:
« Indigenous 2,980.39 2,470.97
- Faoreign - -
Expenses on compensatary afforestation/ catchment area treatment/ 4.603.49 54.43
environmental expenses/ development expenses e '
Expenses on works of downstream protection works - -
Expenditure on land nok belonging o company 1,687.56 274.09
Assets/ Claims written off 0.02 -
Land Acquisitlon and Rehabiiitation Expenditure - -
Losses on sale of assets 6.33 B.30
Other genera! expenses 130.22 779.67
Exchange rate variation (Debit) - -
Sub-total 11,392.56 5,240.23
F. PROVISIONS - -
Sub-total - -
G. CORPORATE OFFICE/REGIONAL OFFICE EXPENSES
Other Income {3.62) (2.32)
Other Expenses 568.06 430.17
Employee Benefits Expense 2,141.99 - 1,832.18
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 152.68 138.31
Finance Cost 3.04 3.61
Provisions - -
Sub-total 2,862.15 2,561,95
H. LESS: RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES
Inceme from generation of electricity — precommissiening - -
Interest on loans and advances 3,740.41 5,653.47
Profit on sale of assets - -
Exchange rate variation (Credit) - -
Provision/Liability not required written back - 1.20
Miscellaneous recejpts 300.11 141.45
Transfer of fair value gain to EAC- security deposit 0.21 -
Transfer of income to EAC - MTM Gain on Derivatives - -
Transfer of fair value gain to EAC - en provisions for committed _
capital expenditure i
Sub-total 4.,040.73 5,796.12
TOTAL (A+B4C4+D4+E+F4G-H} (Refer Note 2.2} 21,730.40 12,129.65
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Note No. —34: Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts

1. Disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for -

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

(i} Capital works
Contractors have lodged claims aggregating to Rs. 98697.35 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 24021.02

Lakhs) against the Company on account of rate and quantity deviation, cost relating to extension of
time, idling charges due to stoppage of work/delays in handing over the site etc. These claims are
being contested by the company as being not admissible in terms of provisions of the respective
contracts or are lying at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with the Company.
These include Rs. 264.42 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 264.42 Lakhs) towards arbitration awards
including updated interest thereon, against the Company, which have been challenged/decided to
be challenged in the Court of Law.

Management has assessed the above claims and recognized a provision of Rs Nil (Previous year Rs
841.08 Lakhs) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and
estimated Rs 98,697.35 Lakhs {Previous year Rs 23,179.94 Lakhs)as the amount of contingent
liability i.e. amounts for which Company may be heid contingently liable. In respect of such
estimated contingent claims either the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable or a reliable estimate of the amount required for settling the obligation cannot be made.
In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered

as remote.
(i) Land Compensation cases

In respect of land acquired for the projects, some of the erstwhile land owners have filed claims for
higher compensation amounting to Rs Nil {Previous year Rs Nil) Before various authorities/courts.
Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and provided an amount of Rs Nil{Previous year Rs
Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic henefits and estimated Rs
Nil(Previous year Rs Nil) as the amount of contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered

as not probable.
(iii) Disputed Tax Demands

Disputed GST demand on payment made to CAMPA fund raised by DY. Commissioner GST, Jammu is
Rs 322.22 Lakhs (Previous year Rs Nil). Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and provided
an amount of Rs Nil (Previous year Rs Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits and Rs. 322.22 Lakhs(Previous year Rs Nil} are being disclosed as contingent
liability as outflow of resources is considered not probable.

{iv) Others

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters amount to Rs Nil (Previous year Rs 3.07 Lakhs).
These claims are pending before various forums. Pending settlement, the Company has assessed
and provided an amount of Rs Nil {Previous year Rs Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits and estimated Nil {Previous year Rs 3.07 Lakhs) as the amount of
contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered as not probable. In respect of the rest of
the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.
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The above is summarized as below:

{Rs in Lakhs)

Sl. | Particulars Claims as on up to | Contingent Contingent Addition/ Decrease of
No. 31.03.2024 date | liabilityason | liabilityason | {deduction) contingent
Provi | 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 from liability from
sion contingent Opening
again liability during | Balance as
st the the year on
claim 01.04.2023
s
(i) (i) {iii) {iv) {v) {vi) {vii)={v}-{vi} {viii}
. 986,97.35 - 98,697.35 23,179.94 75,517.41 1,545.16
1. | Capital Works
Land - - - - - -
2. | Compen-
sation cases .
3 Disputed tax 322,22 - 322.22 - 322.22 -
" | matters
4, | Others 0 0 0 3.07 {(3.07} 3.07
Totai 99,019.57 - 99,019.57 23,183.01 75,836.56 1,552.23

(bJThe above do not include contingent liabilities on account of pending cases in respect of service
matters and others where the amount cannot be guantified.

{c) It is not practicable to ascertain and disclose the uncertainties relating to outflow in respect of
contingent liabilities.

(d) There is possibility of reimbursement to the company of Rs Nil{Previous year Rs Nil}towards above
Contingent Liabilities.

(e) (}An amount of Rs Nil {Previous year Rs Nil} stands paid towards above Contingent Liabilities in
respect of Capital Works, pursuant to Niti Aayog directions issued vide OM No. 14070/14/2016-
PPPAU dated 5th September 2016, in cases where Arbitral Tribunals have passed orders in favour
of contractors and such awards/orders have been further challenged/being challenged by the
Company in a Court of Law. The amount so paid has been shown under Other Non-Current Assets
(Also refer Note No. 5). '

(ii) An amount of Rs 79.39 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 79.39 Lakhs) stands paid /deposited with
courts/paid as per Court Order towards above contingent liabilities to contest the cases and has
been shown under Gther Current Assets {Also refer Note no. 13)

(fiThe Management does not expect that the above claims/obligations {including under litigation), when
ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the company’s
results of operations or financial condition.

2. Contingent Assets: Contingent assets in respect of the Company are on account of the following:

a) Counter Claims lodged by the company on other entities:

The company has lodged counter claims aggregating to Rs 351.81 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 351.81
Lakhs) against claims of other entities. These claims have been lodged on the basis of contractual
provisions and are being contested at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with the
counterparty. it includes counter claims of Rs Nil{Previous year Rs Nil} towards arbitration awards
including updated interest thereon.
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Based on Management assessment, a favourable outcome is probable in respect of the claims
aggregating Rs Nil{Previous year Rs Nil) and for rest of the claims, the possibility of any inflow is
remote. Accordingly, these claims have not been recognised.

b) Other Cases
Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters estimated by Management to be Rs Nil(Previous
year Rs Nil) has not been recognised.

3. Commitments (to the extent not provided for):
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account are as under
(Rs in Lakhs)

sl . As at 31.03.2024 Asat 31.03.2023
Particulars
No.
(i) (i) (iii) {iv)
1, Property Plant and Equipment 9,64,064.41 11,55,253.08
(including Capital Work in Progress)
2. intangible Assets 141.43 141.43
Total 9,64,205.84 11,55,394.51

4.  Other Commitments (if any): NIL

5. The effect of foreign exchange rate variation{FERV) during the year are as under:
(Rs in Lakhs)

S | Particulars For the period | For the period
No. ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

{i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as - -
FERV

(i} | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as - -
Borrowing Cost*

(iii} | Amount adjusted in the carrying amount of PPE - -

{iv} | Amount recognised in Regulatory Deferral Account (4.06) 45.77
Balances

*There is however no impact on profitability of the Company, as the impact of change in foreign
exchange rates is recoverable from beneficlaries in terms of prevalling CERC (Terms and Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations 2019-24. The exchange rate variation included under borrowing cost for the
year is transferred to deferred foreign currency fluctuation assets (recoverable from heneficiaries)
as per Significant Accounting Policy of the Company.

6. Operating Segment:
a) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company.

b} The Company has a single geographical segment as all its Power Stations are located within the
Country.
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7. Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”:
{A) List of Related parties:

{i) Parent Company:

Principle place of
Name of Company operation
NHPC Limited india
JKSPDC India

{ii) Key Managerial Personnel:

sl Name Position Held
No.
1 Shri Suresh Kumar,JAS {Retd) | Chairman -Nominee of JKSPDC
2 Shri H.Rajesh Prasad , iAS Director -Nominee of JKSPDC
3 Shri Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS | Director -Nominee of JKSPDC{w.e.f. 31.08.2023)
4 Shri R.P. Goyal Director -Nominee of NHPC
5 | ShriBiswajit Basu Director -Nominee of NHPC (Ceased on 31.12.2023)
6 Shri Hasan Nadeem Managing Director-Nominee of NHPC (Ceased on
05.12.2023)
7 Shri Ramésh Mukhiya Managing Director-Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f.
05.12.2023)
8 Shei Vijay Kumar Sinha Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 01.01.2024)
9 Smt. Madhusmita Pany Director-Nominee of NHPC
10 | ShriSudhir Anand Company Secretary, CVPPPL

{iii) Post-Employment Benefit Plans of CVPPPL:

. Principal place of
Name of Related Parties operation
CVPPPL Employees Social Security Scherne Trust India
NHPC Ltd. Employees Provident Fund India
NHPC Employees Social Security Scheme Trust India
NHPC Ltd, Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation India
Scheme Trust
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{iv) Other entities with joint-control or significant influence over the Company:

The Company s 3 Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (A Govt. of India Enterprise) & JKSPDC (A Govt. of
J&K Enterprise] controlled by Central Government and &K Government respectively. The
Company has applied the exemption available for government related entities and has made
limited disclosures in the Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS 24. Accordingly, details
of material/significant transaction carried out with the Central Govt and J&K Govt. only have been
disclosed. Transactions with these related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of
business at normal commercial terms. '

sl Name of the Government Nature of Relationship with NHPC
No.
1 Government of India Shareholder having control over Parent
Company(NHPC)
2 NHPC Holding Company
3 | JKSPDC Shareholder having significant influence
over the Company
4 Government of lammu & Kashmir Shareholder having control over Parent
Company{JKSPDC)

{B) Transactions and Balances with related parties are as follows:

{i) Transactions and Balances with NHPC :-

{Rs in Lakhs)
Transactions with Parent For the Period ended | For the period ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(i (i) i)
Services received by the Company from
5 NHPC 2,888.26 2,853.28
Dividend paid by the company to
=  NHPC . -
Equity contributions (including share
application money) received by the compan
from: :
=  NHPC 44,981.00 33,263.00
Reimbursement of Cost of employee on
deputaticn/Posted by
= NHPC -

Loans & Advances given by the Company to:

=  NHPC - -
Loans & Advances received by the Company
from:

*  NHPC -
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{Rs in Lakhs)

Balances with Parent As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023
{i) i) (i)
Receivable {unsecured) from
= NHPC - -
Payable {unsecured) to
"  NHPC 1,478.79 655.36

investment in Equity by {Including Share
Application Money Pending Allotment)

= NHPC

2,62,189.13

2,17,208.13

Loans & Advances Receivable from:

= NHPC

Loans & Advances Payable to:

*  NHPC

{ii} Transactions and Balances with JKSPDC:-

(Rs in Lakhs)

Transactions with JXSPDC For the pericd ended | For the period ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(M ii) (i)
Services Pravided by the Company - -
Services Received by the Company - -
Equity contributions (including share application 31,261.00 14,800.00

money) received by the company

Loan given by the company

Loan received by the company

Interest on Loan Paid by the company

Interest on Loan received from the company

Grant received during the year

Balances with JKSPDC

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

{i)

(i)

(iii)

Receivable {unsecured)

Payable (unsecured)

Investment in Equity {Including Share
Application Money Pending Allotment)

2,05,761.00

1,74,500.00

Loans & Advances Receivable

Loans & Advances Payable
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{iif) Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnek
{Rs in Lakhs)

Particuiars Transactions for the period ended 31.03.2024 and Balances as at 31.03.2024
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management
Personnel (KMP)
Name Short Term | Post- Other  [Termination | interest Sitting | Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received on | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term outstanding Loans
Benefits ; Benefits ioans receiva
ble
1, Chairman
Suresh Kumar 23.26 - - - -
PAN-
AJUPK7760L - -
2. Managing Director
Ramesh 22,15 - - - -
Mukhiya
PAN:-
AFUPM3498K - -
Hasan Nadeem 42,22 - - - -
PAN:-
ABGPH44911G - -
3. Company Secretary
Sudhir Anand 2759 - - - -
PAN-
AFIPA4889E - -
(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Transactions for the period ended 31.03.2023 and Balances as at 31.03.2023
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management
Personnel [KMP)
Name Short Term | Post- Other [Fermination | Interest Sitting | Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received on | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term outstanding Loans
Benefits | Benefits loans _ receiva
ble
1. Chairman
Suresh Kumar 21.94 - - - - -
PAN-
AJUPK7760L .
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2. Managing Director

Hasan Nadeem 50.01

PAN:-
ABGPH4911G

Rajat Gupta 9.56

PAN-
ACBPG4686M

3. Company Secretary

Sudhir Anand 25.75

PAN-
AFIPA4889E

{(iv) Transactions& Bafances with Post -Employment Benefit Plans

{Rs in Lakhs)

Post -Employment Benefit
Plans

Contribution by the company (Net of
Refund from Post -Employment Benefit
Plans)

Balances with Post -
Employment Benefit Plans

For the period For the period
ended 31.03.2024 | ended 31.03.2023

As at As at
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023

CVPPPL Employees Social 3.68 8.96 - -
Security Scheme Trust

NHPC Ltd, Employees 321.68 296.86 - -
Provident Fund

NHPC Employees Social 8.35 7.77 - -
Security Scheme Trust

NHPC Ltd. Employees 326.55 287.26 - -

Defined Contribution

(v} Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company { i.e

Central Government)

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the period For the period
ended 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023

(i)

()

{iii)

Services Received by the Company -

Services Provided by the Company -

Sale of goods ( Electricity) by the Company -

Dividend Paid during the year

Subordinate Debts received by the company 60,422.00

42,492.00

Interest on Subordinate debts
{including interest accrued)

paid by company -
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{vi) Outstanding balances and guarantees with Central Gevernment:

{Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | Asat31.03.2023
vii}T (i) {ii) {ifi)
Balances with Central Government (that has control over
the Company)

* Loan Payable to Government (Subordinate debts) 1,62,771.00 1,02,349.00

=  Payables (unsecured) - -

» Receivables {Unsecured) - -

{vii) Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company { i.e J&K

Government)

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

ended 31.03.2024

For the period

For the period
ended 31.03.2023

{i)

(ii)

(iii)

Services Received by the Company

5,820.92

195.02

Services Provided by the Company

Sale of goods {Electricity) by the Company

Dividend Paid during the year

Subordinate Debts received by the company

Interest on Subordinate debts paid by company
{(including interest accrued)

{viii} Outstanding balances and guarantees with J&K Government:

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

(i)

(i)

(i)

Balances with J & K Government (that has control over
the Company)

®  |oan Payable to Government (Subordinate debts)

*  Payables (unsecured)

s Recejvables (Unsecured)

25,861.70

12,140.69
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C} Other notes to related party transactions:

(i) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties:

(a)

(b)

{c)

Transactions with the state governments and entities controlled by the Government
of India are carried out at market terms on arms- length basis (except subordinate
debts received from Central Government at concessional rate) through a transparent
price discovery process against open tenders, except in a few cases of procurement of
spares/services from Qriginal Equipment Manufacturers {OEMs) for proprietary items
on singie tender basis due to urgency, compatibility or other reasons. Such single
tender procurements are also done through a process of negotiation with prices
benchmarked against available price data of same/similar items.

Consultancy services received by the Company from Parent Company are generaily on
nomination basis at the terms, conditions and principles applicable for consultancy
services pravided to other parties.

Outstanding balances of Parent company as at 31.03.2024 are unsecured and
settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances other than loans are
interest free. No impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties has been recognised. Assessment of impairment is undertaken each financial
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

8. Particulars of Security: The carrying amount of assets mortgaged/ hypothecated as security for

borrowings are as under.

{Amount in Rs)

Sl
No

Particulars As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023
Specific Common Specific Comman
Assets Assets Assets Assets
mortgaged/ | mortgaged | mortgaged/ | mortgaged
hypothecate | / hypothecat | /
d mgainst hypotheca | ed against hypotheca
Borrowings | ted against | Borrowings | ted against
Borrowing Borrowing
s # )
Property, Plant & Equipment - - - -
Capital work in progress - - - -
Financial Assets-Others - " B -
Total - - - -

# The actual value of security pledged against common poo! of assets is Rs Nil as on 31.03.2024
(Previous Year Rs Nil},

9. Disclosures Under ind AS-19 “ Employee Benefits”:

{A) Defined Contribution Plans-
Social Security Scheme: The Company has a Social Security Scheme in lieu of the
erstwhile scheme of compassionate appointment. The Company also makes a matching
contribution per month per employee and such contribution was in operation ie.
05.06.2018. The scheme has been created to take care of and helping bereaved families
in the event of death or permanent total disability of its employee. The expenses
recoghised during the year towards social security scheme are Rs 8.68 Lakhs (Previous

(i)

period Rs 8.96 Lakhs).
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(i}

Provident Fund: The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at
predetermined rates to Employees Provident Fund Organization. The contribution to the
fund forthe year is recognised as expense and is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss/Expenditure Attributable to Construction. The obligation of the Company is to make
fixed contribution. '

(B) Defined Benefit Plans- Company has following defined post-employment benefit obligations :

(a) Description of Plans:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The ceiling limit of gratuity
is fixed as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whereby every employee who has
rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity at 15 days
salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for each completed
year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 0.20 Crores on superannuation,
resignation, termination, disablement or on death. The plan is being managed by a
separate Trust created for the purpose and obligation of the company is to make
contribution to the Trust based on actuarial valuation.

Retired Empioyees Health Scheme (REHS): The Company has a Retired Employee
Health Scheme, under which retired employee and/or spouse of retiree and eligible
dependent children of deceased/retired employees are provided medical facilities in
the empanelled hospitals under Group Medical Claim Policy. They can also avail
treatment as Out-Patient subject to a ceiling fixed by the Company. The liability for the
same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Allowances on Retirement/Death: Actual cost of shifting from place of duty at which
employee is posted at the time of retirement to any other place where he / she may iike
to settle after retirement is paid as per the rules of the Company. In case of death,
family of deceased employee can also avail this facility. The liability for the same is
recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(b) Disclosure of Balance Sheet amounts and sensitivity analysis of Plans:

Gratuity: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2024 and 31.03.2023 along with
the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years 2023-24 and 2022-23 are as

follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Present Value Fair value of Net Amount

of Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/

{Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-{ii)
2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 405,04 405.04
Current Service Cost 53.96 53.96
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 29.93 29.93
Benefits Paid (2.49) {2.49)
Total Amount recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss/
Expenditure During Construction 81.41 81.41
Remeasurements '
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/ {Income) i )
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{Gain)/loss from change in
demographic assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

486.44

486.44

-{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value
of Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(ii)

tii={i)-{il)

2022-23

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2022

333.41

333.41

Current Service Cost

47.42

47.42

Interest Expenses/ {Income)

24.21

Total Amount recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss/
Expenditure During Construction

71.63

24.21

71.63

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/ (Income)

(Gain}/loss from change in
demographic assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2023

405.04

405.04

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive [ncome disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of Rs Nil (previous year Rs
Nil) accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of employees of
NHPC posted in CVPPPL.
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The net liability disclosed above refated to unfunded plans are as follows:

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Present Value of unfunded obligations 486.44 405.04
Fair value of Plan Assets

Deficit/{Surplus) of unfunded plans 486.44 405.04
Unfunded Plans

Deficit/[Surplus) before asset ceiling 436.44 405.04

Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Changein impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions Increase in * Decreasein
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March | March
2024 . 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Discount Decrease Increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% by 7.67% 7.92% by 8.52% 8.82%
Salary | Increase Decrease
growth rate | 0.50% 0.50% by 4.51% 5.37% by 4.82% 5.36%

(i)

Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
31.03.2024 and 31.03.2023 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during
the years 2023-24 and 2022-23 are as follows:

{Rs in Lakhs)

Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

Particulars Present Value of | Fairvalue of | Net Amount

Obtigation Plan Assets | Obligation/

{Asset)
(i) (if) iii = (i) - (i)
2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 243.43 - 243.43
Current Service Cost 59.66 59.66
interest Expenses/ {Income) 17.99 17.99
Total Amount recognised in Statement of 77.65 77.65

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/{Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience {gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive income
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Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

321.08

321.08

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value of
Cbligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
{Asset)

(i)

{ii)

il = (i) - (i)

2022-23

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2022

173.78

173.78

Current Service Cost

57.03

57.03

Interest Expenses/ {Income)

12.62

12.62

Total Amount recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

69.65

69.65

Re-measurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(income)

{Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain}/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience {gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive income

Contributions:-

-Emplovers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2023

243.43

243.43

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Construction and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of Rs Nil (previous year Rs
Nil} accounted as receivable/{payable} from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHPC posted in

CVPPPL.
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The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans are as follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Present Value of Unfunded obligations 321.08 24343
Fair value of Plan Assets

Deficit/(Surplus) of Unfunded pians 321.08 243.43
Unfunded Plans

Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling 321.08 24343

Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Change in impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Discount Decreas increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% |eby 9.20% 3.44% by 9.83% 5.04%

{iii)

Allowances on Retirement/Death: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2024
and 31.03.2023 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years

2023-24 and 2022-23 are as follows:

of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

{Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Present Value of Fair value of Net Amount
Cbligation Plan Assets Obligation/
{Asset)
(i) (i) iii=(i)-(i1)
2023-24
Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 2.33 - 2.33
Current Service Cost 0.44 - . 0.44
Interest Expenses/ {income) 0.17 - 0.17
Total Amount recoghised in Statement 0.61 0.61

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/{income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

{Gain}/loss from change in financial
assumptions
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Experience (gains)/Losses‘

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

2.94

2.94

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount

" Obligation/

{Asset)

(i)

(ii)

iii=(i)-(ii)

2022-23

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2022

1.92

1.92

Current Service Cost

0.27

0.27

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

0.14

0.14

Total Amount recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Constructlon

0.41

0.41

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

{Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

{Gain)/loss from change in financtal
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2023

2.33

2.33
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Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of Rs Nil (previous year Nil)
accounted as receivable/{payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHPC posted in

CVPPPL.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans.

Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the
weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Change in impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assurmptions increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 3ist 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Discount Decrease Increase .
Rate 0.50% 0.50% by 9.60% 9.95% by 10.41% 11.18%

(g Defined Benefit Plans: Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions:

31st March 2023

Particulars 31st March 2024
Discount Rate 7.25% 7.39%
Salary growth rate 6.50% 6.50%

(d) Risk Exposure: Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the
most significant of which are detziled below:

Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As

such, the company is exposed to various risks as follows:

A) Salary Increase- Actual salary increase will increase the Plan’s liability. increase in salary
increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B} Investment Risk — if Plan is funded then assets-liabilities mismatch and actual investment
return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact
the liability.

C) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s
liability.

D) Mortality and disability — Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than
assumed in the valuation can impact the [iabilities.

E} Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and
change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.
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(f} The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit plans is as follows:

The expected maturity analysis of Gratuity, Post employment Medical Benefits, Allowances on
Retirement/Death and Memento.

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Lessthana | Between1-2 | Between Over 5 Total
year years | 2-5vyears years

31.03.2024

Gratuity 12.47 9.77 27.51 436.69 486.44

Post-employment 0.02 0.03 0.20 320.72 321.08

Medical Benefits (REHS)

Allowances on 0.01 0.06 0.17 2.70 2.94

Retirement/Death

TOTAL 12.50 9.87 27.98 760.11 810.46

31.03.2023

Gratuity 8.82 3.26 23.41 364.55 405.04

Post-employment 0.01 0.06 1.92 241,44 243.43

Medical Benefits (REHS)

Allowances on 0.01 0.05 0.14 2.13 2.33

Retirement/Death

TOTAL 8.84 8.37 25.47 608.12 650.80

(C} Other long-term employee benefits (Leave Benefit): The Company provides for earned Jeave
and half-pay leave to the employees which accrue annually @ 30 days and 20 days
respectively. Eamed Leave (EL) is also en-cashable while in service. The maximum ceiling of
encashment of earned leave is limited to 300 days. However, any shortfail in the maximum
limit of 300 days in earned leave on superannuation shall be fulfilied by half pay ieave to that
extent. The fiability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial vaivation. The expenses
recognised during the year on the basis of actuarial valuation are Rs. 506.56 Lakhs(Previous

year Rs. 326.31 Lakhs).

{D} The corresponding expenditure of actuarial valuation in respect of employees of NHPC who are
presently on the rolls of Chenab Valley Power Projects [P] Limited has been transferred to
CVPPPL in the respective year through a debit/credit advice. The effect of the same has been

acknowledged in IUT certificate during the year

10. Particulars of income and expenditure in foreign currency and consumption of spares are as

under:-
{Rs in Lakhs)
Sl. | Particulars For the period For the period
No. ended 31.03.2024 | ended 31.03.2023
a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
i) interest - -
ii) Other Misc. Matters 3,141.89 4,825.39
b) | Value of spare parts and Components
consumed in operating units. - -
i} Imported - -
i) Indigenous
c) Earning in foreign currency (Specify Nature) - -
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11.

a) The Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) are as under:

c)

Earnings Per Share:

Particulars For the period For the period
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Earnings ;_Jer Sharte before Regulatory iIncome {Rs} - 0.0262 0.0681
Basic and Diluted
Earnings per Share after Regulatory Income (Rs) — Basic 0.0261 0.0694
and Diluted
Par value per share (Rs) 10 10
b} Reconciliation of Earning used in calculating Earnings Per Share:
Paiticulars For the period For the period
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Net Profit after Tax but before Reguiatory income
used as numerator (Rs in Lakhs) 1,072.25 2,468.77
Net Profit after Tax a_nd Regulatory Income used as 1,068.19 2,514.55
numerator (Amount in Rs)
Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares used as denominator :
Particulars For the period For the period
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Welghtc?d Average numb.er of equity shares used as 10,855.68 36,234.05
denominator (Numbers in Lakhs)

12,

Disclosure related to Confirmation of Balances is as under :

{a) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and
other parties. There are no unconfirmed balances in respect of bank accounts and borrowings

from banks & financial institutions.

(b} The confirmation in respect of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Deposits, loans {other than
employees), Advances to Contractors/Suppliers/Service Providers/Others including for
capital expenditure and material issued to contractors have been sought for outstanding
balances of Rs. 5.00 Lakh or above in fespect of each party as at 31st December, 2023, Status
of confirmation of balances as at December 31, 2023 as well as amount outstanding as on

31.03.2024 is as under:

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding Amount Outstanding
amount as on | confirmed amount as on
31.12.2023 31.03.2024
Trade receivable {excluding unbilled)* - B
Deposits, Loans, Advances to 43,574.23 39,461.24 49,862.60
contractors/ suppliers/  service
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providers/ others inciuding for capital
expenditure and material issued to

contractors
Trade/Other payables 7,978.55 5,407.51 25,349.97
Security Deposit/Retention Money 4,165.57 3,921.35 5,419.60

payable

* Trade recelvables are including receivables on account of interest receivable from
Beneficiaries and net of advance from customers.

{c) in the opinion of the management, unconfirmed bafances wiil not require any adjustment
having any material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.

13. Disclosure related te Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) {Refer Note 29)

i As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two
per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the

year are as under:
(Rs in Lakhs)

L Particulars For the vyear | For the year
No ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A Amount required to be spent during the year
{iy  Grossamount (2% of average net profit as 3457 22.13
per Section 135 of Companies Act,2013)
(i)  Surplus arising out of CSR project - -
(iii) Set off available from previous year 1.20 1.20
(iv) Total CSR obligation for the year [(i}+{ii) -(ifi)] 33.37 20.93
B Amount approved by the Board to be spent during 34.57 22.96
the year
C Amount spent during the year 14.70 20.65
D Set off available for succeeding years (C- Aliv)) - -
E Amount Unspent during the year (B-C) 19.87 2.31
F CSR Expenditure to be incurred on Ongoing Projects 19.82 -
and deposited in Separate CSR Unspent Account
G Unspent Amount to be deposited in Fund 0.05 0.28

Note:- The set off available in the succeeding years has not recognised as an asset as 3 matter of
prudence, considering the uncertainty involved In the adjustment of the sare in future years.

The breakup of CSR expenditure under various heads of expenses incurred is as below:

(it}

(Rs in Lakhs)
Sl Heads of Expenses constituting CSR For the year For the
No. expenses ended ‘year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Health Care and Sanitation .14.70 20.65
2 Education and Skill Development - -
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3 Women Empowerment /Senior Citizen - -
4 Environment - -
5 Art and Culture - -
6 Sports - -
7 Rural Development - -
8 Swachh Vidyalaya Abhiyan - -
9 Swachh Bharat Abhiyan - -
10 Disaster Management - -
11 Contribution to Central Government Fund - -
(including Contribution to PM CARES Fund)
12 Administrative Overhead - -
13 CSR fmpact assessment - -
14 CSR Expenditure to be incurred on Ongoing 19.82 -
Projects -
15 Unspent Amount ' 0.05 0.28
Total amount 3457 20.93

(ili} Otherdisclosures:-

(2) Details of expenditure incurred during the year paid in cash and yet to be paid in cash along with

the nature of expenditure (capital or revenue nature) is as under:-
: {Rs in Lakhs)

Purpose For the year ended 31.03.2024 [For the year ended 31.03.2023
Paid in Yet to be Total Paid in Yet Total
cash paid in {a+b) cash to be (a+b)
{a) cash (b) {a) paid
in
cash
(b)

(i) | Construction/ - - - -
Acquisition of

any asset
(i) | For purpose 14.70 19.82 34.52 20.65 - 20.65
other than (i)
above
Total 14.70 19.82 | 34.52 20.65 - 20.65

(b ) As stated above, a sum of Rs. 19.82/- Lakhs out of the total expenditure of Rs. 34.52/- Lakhs is
yet to be paid to concerned parties which are included in the relevant head of accounts

pertaining to liahilities,
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